From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna
(CPQC); planning@rodneyfong.com; Rich Hillis; Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com);
Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO EXPEDITE TRAFFIC SAFETY
PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS

Date: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 9:17:45 AM

Attachments: 3.6.19 Pedestrian Safety Improvements.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309,Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR)

Sent: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 9:13 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO EXPEDITE
TRAFFIC SAFETY PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, March 6, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

«#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO
EXPEDITE TRAFFIC SAFETY PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS

To accelerate the goals of the recent Vision Zero Action Strategy, the San Francisco
Municipal Transportation Agency, San Francisco Police Department, and San Francisco
Public Utilities Commission will expedite and increase pedestrian safety measures

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced new measures aimed at
advancing the goals of San Francisco’s Vision Zero Action Strategy and expediting traffic
safety projects in San Francisco.

Under Mayor Breed’s direction, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency
(SFMTA) will develop a policy that requires SFMTA staff to move forward with quick, near-
term safety enhancements on high injury corridors, including paint, safety posts, and
temporary sidewalk extensions.

Additionally, she has directed the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) to increase traffic
enforcement and the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) to commit staff
resources to achieving Vision Zero goals.
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, March 6, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO EXPEDITE

TRAFFIC SAFETY PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS
To accelerate the goals of the recent Vision Zero Action Strategy, the San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency, San Francisco Police Department, and San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission will expedite and increase pedestrian safety measures

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced new measures aimed at
advancing the goals of San Francisco’s Vision Zero Action Strategy and expediting traffic safety
projects in San Francisco.

Under Mayor Breed’s direction, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)
will develop a policy that requires SFMTA staff to move forward with quick, near-term safety
enhancements on high injury corridors, including paint, safety posts, and temporary sidewalk
extensions.

Additionally, she has directed the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) to increase traffic
enforcement and the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) to commit staff
resources to achieving Vision Zero goals.

Mayor Breed’s announcement follows a series of traffic incidents that resulted in two deaths and
multiple injuries. While the annual number of traffic fatalities has decreased in San Francisco
since Vision Zero legislation was introduced in 2014, these recent events highlight the need for
continued focus and action to ensure traffic safety.

“The events of the last week are yet another tragic reminder of how much work we still have to
do to ensure that all of our residents are safe on our streets,” said Mayor Breed. “The current
pace of traffic safety improvements in San Francisco is unacceptable and I refuse to allow red
tape and bureaucracy to stop us from taking immediate, common-sense steps to improve safety
while we undergo long-term improvements. Every life lost on our streets is one too many.”

While the City is committed to implementing traffic improvements on high-injury corridors
through capital improvements, these projects can be lengthy to deliver. Mayor Breed’s directive
will create more near-term, low-cost safety improvements until longer-term improvements are
made.

“The heartbreaking reality of every fatality is that there is a family that is left grieving in its
wake,” said Board President Norman Yee. “I authored Vision Zero five years ago because every
resident deserves to feel and to be safe using the streets and sidewalks of our city. | stand firmly
with Mayor Breed in her call for urgency to expedite simple and effective measures that we
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know work to improve the safety of our streets and that save lives. We must be relentless when it
comes to enforcing a no-tolerance policy on any shortcomings - from pursuing hit-and-run
drivers to urging our state’s legislators to clear any obstacles to implementing Automated Speed
Enforcement citywide.”

Mayor Breed has directed the SFPD to increase enforcement of behavior most likely to result in
a severe or fatal collision: speeding, violating the pedestrian right-of-way in a crosswalk, running
red lights, running stop signs, and failing to yield while turning. As a benchmark, she wants the
SFPD to increase the number of citations and to meet the so-called “focus-on-the-five” goal of
issuing at least 50% of citations to these top five traffic violations.

“There have been two vehicular fatalities in my district in the last month and both of them
involved seniors in the crosswalk,” said Supervisor Sandra Lee Fewer. “This is heartbreaking.
We need more enforcement to change the driving habits of people to slow down, yield to
pedestrians and eliminate distractions while driving. Lives are at stake.”

Finally, to ensure that the City is working collaboratively on traffic safety improvements, Mayor
Breed has called on the SFPUC to devote staff resources to the City’s Vision Zero Task Force
and Traffic Fatality Response Team. Among the most recent collisions, more than half occurred
at night, highlighting the need for proper street-lighting on dangerous corridors.

“Walk SF thanks Mayor Breed for coming out strong and taking immediate action to save lives,
especially after this horrific past week,” said Jodie Medeiros, Executive Director of WalkSF.
“Installing quick, inexpensive safety improvements on all of our deadliest streets by 2020 will
have an impact on dangerous driving behavior. Traffic deaths are preventable, and of all places,
San Francisco can lead the way in ending traffic violence.”
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Mayor Breed’s announcement follows a series of traffic incidents that resulted in two deaths
and multiple injuries. While the annual number of traffic fatalities has decreased in San
Francisco since Vision Zero legislation was introduced in 2014, these recent events highlight
the need for continued focus and action to ensure traffic safety.

“The events of the last week are yet another tragic reminder of how much work we still have
to do to ensure that all of our residents are safe on our streets,” said Mayor Breed. “The
current pace of traffic safety improvements in San Francisco is unacceptable and I refuse to
allow red tape and bureaucracy to stop us from taking immediate, common-sense steps to
improve safety while we undergo long-term improvements. Every life lost on our streets is one
too many.”

While the City is committed to implementing traffic improvements on high-injury corridors
through capital improvements, these projects can be lengthy to deliver. Mayor Breed’s
directive will create more near-term, low-cost safety improvements until longer-term
improvements are made.

“The heartbreaking reality of every fatality is that there is a family that is left grieving in its
wake,” said Board President Norman Yee. “I authored Vision Zero five years ago because
every resident deserves to feel and to be safe using the streets and sidewalks of our city. I
stand firmly with Mayor Breed in her call for urgency to expedite simple and effective
measures that we know work to improve the safety of our streets and that save lives. We must
be relentless when it comes to enforcing a no-tolerance policy on any shortcomings - from
pursuing hit-and-run drivers to urging our state’s legislators to clear any obstacles to
implementing Automated Speed Enforcement citywide.”

Mayor Breed has directed the SFPD to increase enforcement of behavior most likely to result
in a severe or fatal collision: speeding, violating the pedestrian right-of-way in a crosswalk,
running red lights, running stop signs, and failing to yield while turning. As a benchmark, she
wants the SFPD to increase the number of citations and to meet the so-called “focus-on-the-
five” goal of issuing at least 50% of citations to these top five traffic violations.

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

Finally, to ensure that the City is working collaboratively on traffic safety improvements,
Mayor Breed has called on the SFPUC to devote staff resources to the City’s Vision Zero Task
Force and Traffic Fatality Response Team. Among the most recent collisions, more than half
occurred at night, highlighting the need for proper street-lighting on dangerous corridors.

“Walk SF thanks Mayor Breed for coming out strong and taking immediate action to save
lives, especially after this horrific past week,” said Jodie Medeiros, Executive Director of
WalkSF. “Installing quick, inexpensive safety improvements on all of our deadliest streets by
2020 will have an impact on dangerous driving behavior. Traffic deaths are preventable, and
of all places, San Francisco can lead the way in ending traffic violence.”
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: planning@rodneyfong.com; Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Richards, Dennis
(CPQ); richhillissf@gmail.com; Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: Fwd: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES DEREK FLORES TO THE PLANNING
COMMISSION

Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 6:32:36 PM

Attachments: 3.5.19 Planning Commission.pdf

ATT00001.htm

Jonas P. lonin
Director of Commission Affairs

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mavorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: March 5, 2019 at 5:16:43 PM PST

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED
NOMINATES DEREK FLORES TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES DEREK
FLORES TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Flores, who was raised in the Richmond District and now resides there, brings
extensive experience in construction of multi-family buildings and Accessory
Dwelling Units in San Francisco

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed has nominated Derek Flores to
serve as the newest member of the Planning Commission. Flores, 33, has
extensive experience with creating new housing both in San Francisco and across
the state, particularly multi-family units and Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs).

Flores is a native San Franciscan who was raised in the Richmond District and
now lives a few blocks from where he grew up, with his fiancée Christina. Flores
has previously worked for NASA and Lockheed Martin Space Systems as an
engineer. He is currently the President of Development and Construction at
Tesseract Capital Group (TCG), where he utilizes his expertise as a general
contractor to develop and renovate multi-family housing units.

“I am proud to nominate Derek Flores to serve on the Planning Commission
because he represents a viewpoint that is too often missing from the discussion of
housing in San Francisco,” said Mayor Breed. “Derek grew up here, and through
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*x* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES DEREK FLORES TO
THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Flores, who was raised in the Richmond District and now resides there, brings extensive
experience in construction of multi-family buildings and Accessory Dwelling Units in San
Francisco

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed has nominated Derek Flores to serve as the
newest member of the Planning Commission. Flores, 33, has extensive experience with creating
new housing both in San Francisco and across the state, particularly multi-family units and
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUS).

Flores is a native San Franciscan who was raised in the Richmond District and now lives a few
blocks from where he grew up, with his fiancée Christina. Flores has previously worked for
NASA and Lockheed Martin Space Systems as an engineer. He is currently the President of
Development and Construction at Tesseract Capital Group (TCG), where he utilizes his expertise
as a general contractor to develop and renovate multi-family housing units.

“I am proud to nominate Derek Flores to serve on the Planning Commission because he
represents a viewpoint that is too often missing from the discussion of housing in San
Francisco,” said Mayor Breed. “Derek grew up here, and through his work he knows both how
complicated we make it to create new homes and the effect that has on young families, longtime
residents, and our low- and middle-income communities. | am confident that he will help our
City improve our housing process as we work to address this crisis.”

In 2018, Flores and his team successfully completed the process of building two additional
ADUs in a 6-unit apartment building in the Richmond District, which served as a crash-course in
the intricacies and complexities of the requirements set forth by the various City departments
charged with regulating ADU construction.

“It is truly an honor to be nominated to the San Francisco Planning Commission by Mayor
Breed,” said Flores. “As a third-generation San Franciscan, I’ve seen the City change
dramatically over the decades. Serving on the Planning Commission will allow me to help guide
the direction of development in our City for generations to come and to give back to the
community that not only raised me, but has continued to give me so much over the years. As a
Commissioner, | will leverage my experience in creating housing while balancing it with
empathy for those who call San Francisco home. | will work alongside the community and City
leaders to identify opportunities to build more affordable housing, and guide responsible growth
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so that people from all backgrounds and income levels have the opportunity to live, work, and
thrive in our beautiful city.”

Flores is a third generation Chinese-American. He attended Alamo Elementary School, Presidio
Middle School, and Washington High School. He graduated with a degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of California Berkeley, and later earned a Masters in Product
Development Engineering from the University of Southern California.
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his work he knows both how complicated we make it to create new homes and the
effect that has on young families, longtime residents, and our low- and middle-
income communities. I am confident that he will help our City improve our
housing process as we work to address this crisis.”

In 2018, Flores and his team successfully completed the process of building two
additional ADUs in a 6-unit apartment building in the Richmond District, which
served as a crash-course in the intricacies and complexities of the requirements set
forth by the various City departments charged with regulating ADU construction.

“It is truly an honor to be nominated to the San Francisco Planning Commission
by Mayor Breed,” said Flores. “As a third-generation San Franciscan, I’ve seen
the City change dramatically over the decades. Serving on the Planning
Commission will allow me to help guide the direction of development in our City
for generations to come and to give back to the community that not only raised
me, but has continued to give me so much over the years. As a Commissioner, I
will leverage my experience in creating housing while balancing it with empathy
for those who call San Francisco home. I will work alongside the community and
City leaders to identify opportunities to build more affordable housing, and guide
responsible growth so that people from all backgrounds and income levels have
the opportunity to live, work, and thrive in our beautiful city.”

Flores is a third generation Chinese-American. He attended Alamo Elementary
School, Presidio Middle School, and Washington High School. He graduated with
a degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of California Berkeley,
and later earned a Masters in Product Development Engineering from the
University of Southern California.

HiHt



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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** COMMUNITY FORMS THE SOMA WEST COMMUNITY BENEFIT DISTRICT
Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 2:49:55 PM

Attachments: 3.5.19 SoMa West Community Benefit District.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309]Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR)

Sent: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 2:46 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** COMMUNITY FORMS THE SOMA WEST COMMUNITY BENEFIT
DISTRICT

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
COMMUNITY FORMS THE SOMA WEST COMMUNITY
BENEFIT DISTRICT

Board of Supervisors votes to approve the formation of the largest community benefit district
in the City to address cleaning and public safety; Mayor Breed to sign legislation

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Matt Haney, the Office of
Economic and Workforce Development, and the SoMa West Steering Committee today
announced the establishment of the SoMa West Community Benefit District (CBD). The
SoMa West CBD is geographically the largest of the 17 CBDs citywide, and will help ensure a
welcoming, clean, and economically vibrant local community.

“I am focused every day on keeping our communities clean, safe, and vibrant,” said Mayor
Breed. “The formation of the SoMa West CBD demonstrates that these neighbors, merchants,
property owners, and stakeholders are committed to meeting the challenges we see on our
streets every day. I am proud that they have come together to work collaboratively to improve
their neighborhood, and I am committed to working with them to make our streets cleaner and
safer for everyone."
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

Board of Supervisors votes to approve the formation of the largest community benefit district in
the City to address cleaning and public safety; Mayor Breed to sign legislation

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Matt Haney, the Office of Economic
and Workforce Development, and the SoMa West Steering Committee today announced the
establishment of the SoMa West Community Benefit District (CBD). The SoMa West CBD is
geographically the largest of the 17 CBDs citywide, and will help ensure a welcoming, clean,
and economically vibrant local community.

“I am focused every day on keeping our communities clean, safe, and vibrant,” said Mayor
Breed. “The formation of the SoMa West CBD demonstrates that these neighbors, merchants,
property owners, and stakeholders are committed to meeting the challenges we see on our streets
every day. | am proud that they have come together to work collaboratively to improve their
neighborhood, and I am committed to working with them to make our streets cleaner and safer
for everyone."

The SoMa West CBD was formed after a majority vote was cast by property owners in the area
based off weighted assessments, and the Board of Supervisors today voted to approve the
formation. It will raise approximately $3.74 million per year in special assessments from those
properties to carry out its management plan over the next 15 years. The boundaries of the District
include approximately 2,765 parcels located on approximately 100 whole blocks, including
blocks and partial blocks bounded by 5th Street and 6th Street on the east, Minna Street and
Folsom Street on the north, South VVan Ness Avenue and the U.S. Highway 101 Freeway on the
west, and Townsend Street on the south.

"I’m excited that the SoMa West CBD will help provide cleaner and safer streets for the
residents, and build community across the diverse neighborhood,” said Supervisor Haney. “West
SoMa is one of the highest needs areas in the city that deserves urgent focus and action. I’'m
happy to see that we were able to include a more affordable assessment for nonprofits, and a
commitment to an inclusive, diverse board with broad representation from community
organizations, tenants, small businesses, and property owners.”

The services that the SoMa West CBD will provide include:
e Maintenance teams that sweep, scrub, and pressure wash sidewalks and public spaces to
remove litter, graffiti, and trash;
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e Beautification and activation improvements to make SoMa West more visually attractive,
which may include green spaces, wayfinding signage, trashcans, public art programs, and
public space activation programs;

e Safety improvements, which will include a pedestrian and bicycle safety program;

e Marketing and district branding to promote SoMa West as a regional destination; and

e A community grant program that will allow area nonprofits and cultural districts to apply
for funding for programming.

The formation of SoMa West took more than two years of outreach and planning by property
owners, businesses, renters, nonprofits, and other stakeholders looking to mirror the successes of
CBDs throughout the City. Approximately 90 public informational sessions and planning
meetings were held during the planning process. The steering committee included a diverse mix
of 35 local merchants, property owners, renters, and area nonprofits that reflect the
neighborhood. Technical assistance was provided throughout the process by the Office of
Economic and Workforce Development, which will continue to work with the new CBD to
ensure the smooth operation of the District and help ensure it follows all legal and community
obligations.

“As a resident and service provider in the neighborhood, | am excited about the potential of the
SoMa West CBD. This tremendous effort by residents, business owners, and community
members has embodied United Playaz’ motto, ‘It takes the hood to save the hood,” and we are
looking forward to the positive impact that it will have for Western Soma,” said Misha Olivas,
Director of Community and Family Engagement at United Playaz and a Western SoMa resident.

“Throughout the years in Western SoMa, residents, property owners, businesses, and
stakeholders have wanted a safer, cleaner, and a more vibrant neighborhood. Those of us living
and working here have always believed in our neighborhood. The past two years has seen the
neighborhood unify and work to this goal to form the SoMa West CBD. We are all pleased to
say that the SoMa West CBD will now be a reality for everyone’s benefit,” said James Spinello,
chair of the SoMa West CBD Steering Committee. “It has been an incredible journey listening to
and hearing from our neighborhood. SoMa West CBD will be a combined effort to make our
neighborhood a wonderful place to live, work, and visit. We are excited for the future and look
forward to showing everyone the success of SoMa West in the years to come.”

More information on the SoMa West Community Benefit District and the Management District
Plan can be found at: http://oewd.org/community-benefit-districts.
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The SoMa West CBD was formed after a majority vote was cast by property owners in the
area based off weighted assessments, and the Board of Supervisors today voted to approve the
formation. It will raise approximately $3.74 million per year in special assessments from those
properties to carry out its management plan over the next 15 years. The boundaries of the
District include approximately 2,765 parcels located on approximately 100 whole blocks,
including blocks and partial blocks bounded by 5th Street and 6th Street on the east, Minna
Street and Folsom Street on the north, South Van Ness Avenue and the U.S. Highway 101
Freeway on the west, and Townsend Street on the south.

"I’m excited that the SoMa West CBD will help provide cleaner and safer streets for the
residents, and build community across the diverse neighborhood,” said Supervisor Haney.
“West SoMa is one of the highest needs areas in the city that deserves urgent focus and action.
I’m happy to see that we were able to include a more affordable assessment for nonprofits, and
a commitment to an inclusive, diverse board with broad representation from community
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

o Beautification and activation improvements to make SoMa West more visually
attractive, which may include green spaces, wayfinding signage, trashcans, public art
programs, and public space activation programs;

o Safety improvements, which will include a pedestrian and bicycle safety program,;

o Marketing and district branding to promote SoMa West as a regional destination; and

¢ A community grant program that will allow area nonprofits and cultural districts to
apply for funding for programming.

The formation of SoMa West took more than two years of outreach and planning by property
owners, businesses, renters, nonprofits, and other stakeholders looking to mirror the successes
of CBDs throughout the City. Approximately 90 public informational sessions and planning
meetings were held during the planning process. The steering committee included a diverse
mix of 35 local merchants, property owners, renters, and area nonprofits that reflect the
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

“As a resident and service provider in the neighborhood, I am excited about the potential of
the SoMa West CBD. This tremendous effort by residents, business owners, and community
members has embodied United Playaz’ motto, ‘It takes the hood to save the hood,” and we are
looking forward to the positive impact that it will have for Western Soma,” said Misha Olivas,
Director of Community and Family Engagement at United Playaz and a Western SoMa
resident.

“Throughout the years in Western SoMa, residents, property owners, businesses, and
stakeholders have wanted a safer, cleaner, and a more vibrant neighborhood. Those of us
living and working here have always believed in our neighborhood. The past two years has
seen the neighborhood unify and work to this goal to form the SoMa West CBD. We are all
pleased to say that the SoMa West CBD will now be a reality for everyone’s benefit,” said



James Spinello, chair of the SoMa West CBD Steering Committee. “It has been an incredible
journey listening to and hearing from our neighborhood. SoMa West CBD will be a combined
effort to make our neighborhood a wonderful place to live, work, and visit. We are excited for
the future and look forward to showing everyone the success of SoMa West in the years to
come.”

More information on the SoMa West Community Benefit District and the Management
District Plan can be found at: http://oewd.org/community-benefit-districts.

HiHt


https://oewd.org/community-benefit-districts

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND BOARD PRESIDENT NORMAN YEE TO CO-CHAIR
AFFORDABLE HOUSING BOND WORKING GROUP, ANNOUNCE COMMUNITY CO-CHAIRS

Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 1:37:21 PM

Attachments: 3.5.19 Capital Plan Affordable Housing Bond Working Group.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 1:09 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND BOARD PRESIDENT NORMAN YEE TO
CO-CHAIR AFFORDABLE HOUSING BOND WORKING GROUP, ANNOUNCE COMMUNITY CO-CHAIRS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

##% PRESS RELEASE ***

MAYOR LONDON BREED AND BOARD PRESIDENT
NORMAN YEE TO CO-CHAIR AFFORDABLE HOUSING
BOND WORKING GROUP, ANNOUNCE COMMUNITY CO-
CHAIRS

Mayor Breed to also introduce 10-Year Capital Plan at Board of Supervisors, which lays out
long-term infrastructure plan that includes an Affordable Housing Bond for November
election

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Board President Norman Yee today
announced that they will co-chair the Affordable Housing Bond Working Group, which will
be tasked with placing an Affordable Housing Bond on the November 2019 ballot. The
Working Group will begin meeting in March, with a plan to introduce the Bond at the Board
of Supervisors in the coming months. Mayor Breed and President Yee also announced the
Community Co-Chairs who will help lead the effort.

“I’m proud to be co-chairing this important effort to fund more affordable housing with Board
President Yee,” said Mayor Breed. “It is important that we bring everyone to the table to help
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
long-term infrastructure plan that includes an Affordable Housing Bond for November election

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Board President Norman Yee today
announced that they will co-chair the Affordable Housing Bond Working Group, which will be
tasked with placing an Affordable Housing Bond on the November 2019 ballot. The Working
Group will begin meeting in March, with a plan to introduce the Bond at the Board of
Supervisors in the coming months. Mayor Breed and President Yee also announced the
Community Co-Chairs who will help lead the effort.

“I’m proud to be co-chairing this important effort to fund more affordable housing with Board
President Yee,” said Mayor Breed. “It is important that we bring everyone to the table to help
shape this Affordable Housing Bond so we can prepare the most effective measure possible to
provide more badly needed affordable housing for the residents of San Francisco. By working
collaboratively, we can explore all options available to maximize this effort while still working
within the process of our Capital Plan.”

“I am looking forward to this collaborative, solutions-led approach to the housing crisis,” said
Board President Yee. “We have so many pressing needs we need to fulfill. It is invaluable to
have the political will of both the Mayor and the Board so we can push for the most impactful
bond measure possible and provide the affordable housing we need for the future of San
Francisco. | am thankful for this opportunity to co-chair this Working Group with Mayor Breed
along with our community’s best thought partners.”

The Affordable Housing Working Group Community Co-Chairs will be Myrna Melgar of
Jamestown Community Center, Tomiquia Moss of Hamilton Families, and Malcolm Yeung of
Chinatown Community Development Center. The Working Group will consist of elected
officials, housing experts, affordable housing developers, tenant advocates, property owners,
labor leaders, community leaders and others to help craft the expenditure plan for the bond.

“This bond is a significant down payment on the deficit of affordable housing our City has
accrued,” said Myrna Melgar, Executive Director of Jamestown Community Center and
President of the San Francisco Planning Commission. “I am honored to help Mayor Breed in her
efforts to build more affordable housing and build it faster.”
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“I am happy to support Mayor Breed and President Yee’s leadership in prioritizing an affordable
housing bond for the November 2019 ballot,” said Tomiquia Moss, Executive Director of
Hamilton Families. “Working with community-based organizations and stakeholders is critical to
ensure that the City and County of San Francisco are investing much needed resources in
housing for our most vulnerable San Franciscans.”

“Affordability in San Francisco is an issue that isn’t going away,” said Malcolm Yeung of
Chinatown Community Development Center. “Affordable housing needs to be treated like public
infrastructure—something the city regularly invests in—not just in times of crisis. | applaud
Mayor Breed for recognizing the long-term nature of this problem by including affordable
housing in the City’s capital planning process.”

Mayor Breed will also be introducing the 10-Year Capital Plan at the Board of Supervisors
today, which was approved by the Capital Planning Committee last week. Under the proposed
Capital Plan, a $300 million Affordable Housing Bond is scheduled for the November 2019
election. Mayor Breed has expressed interest in finding ways to increase the amount of the bond
while maintaining current property tax levels, following the policy constraint of the Capital Plan,
which could include identifying extra bonding capacity as the City’s financial forecast is updated
later this month.

Published every other year, the 10-Year Capital Plan is a fiscally constrained expenditure plan
that lays out infrastructure investments over the next decade. The City Administrator prepares
the document with input from citywide stakeholders that have put forth their best ideas and most
realistic estimates of San Francisco’s future needs.
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shape this Affordable Housing Bond so we can prepare the most effective measure possible to
provide more badly needed affordable housing for the residents of San Francisco. By working
collaboratively, we can explore all options available to maximize this effort while still
working within the process of our Capital Plan.”

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
Francisco. I am thankful for this opportunity to co-chair this Working Group with Mayor
Breed along with our community’s best thought partners.”

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
President of the San Francisco Planning Commission. “I am honored to help Mayor Breed in
her efforts to build more affordable housing and build it faster.”

“I am happy to support Mayor Breed and President Yee’s leadership in prioritizing an
affordable housing bond for the November 2019 ballot,” said Tomiquia Moss, Executive
Director of Hamilton Families. “Working with community-based organizations and
stakeholders is critical to ensure that the City and County of San Francisco are investing much
needed resources in housing for our most vulnerable San Franciscans.”

“Affordability in San Francisco is an issue that isn’t going away,” said Malcolm Yeung of
Chinatown Community Development Center. “Affordable housing needs to be treated like
public infrastructure—something the city regularly invests in—not just in times of crisis. |
applaud Mayor Breed for recognizing the long-term nature of this problem by including
affordable housing in the City’s capital planning process.”

Mayor Breed will also be introducing the 10-Year Capital Plan at the Board of Supervisors
today, which was approved by the Capital Planning Committee last week. Under the proposed
Capital Plan, a $300 million Affordable Housing Bond is scheduled for the November 2019
election. Mayor Breed has expressed interest in finding ways to increase the amount of the
bond while maintaining current property tax levels, following the policy constraint of the
Capital Plan, which could include identifying extra bonding capacity as the City’s financial
forecast is updated later this month.

Published every other year, the 10-Year Capital Plan is a fiscally constrained expenditure plan
that lays out infrastructure investments over the next decade. The City Administrator prepares
the document with input from citywide stakeholders that have put forth their best ideas and
most realistic estimates of San Francisco’s future needs.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com); Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen
Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: TZK Broadway, LLC submittal for HPC & response to Telegraph Hill Dwellers

Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 9:36:30 AM

Attachments: TZK letter to Planning reply to TTHD-02--4-2019.pdf

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

From: Jay Wallace <jwallace @jaywallaceassociates.com>

Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 4:24 PM

To: Vimr, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Stan Hayes <stanhayes1967 @gmail.com>
Subject: TZK Broadway, LLC submittal for HPC & response to Telegraph Hill Dwellers

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Dear Jon and Jonas: Please see attached letter for submission to the Historic Preservation
Commission and the Commissioners. Thank you. Jay Wallace

Jay Wallace

Kenwood Investments, LLC
Platinum Advisors, LLC

170 Columbus Avenue, #240
San Francisco, CA 94133
415-601-2081

jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:andrew@tefarch.com
mailto:kate.black@sfgov.org
mailto:dianematsuda@hotmail.com
mailto:ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com
mailto:ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com
mailto:jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:rsejohns@yahoo.com
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
mailto:jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com

TZK Broadway, LLC
March 4, 2019

ViaEmail:  jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

Jonathan Vimr and Jonas Ionin

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94103

RE:  Seawall Lots 323 & 324/2015-016326C0A
Dear Jon and Jonas:

TZK Broadway, LLC would like to respond to the Telegraph Hill Dwellers’ (THD)
March 4, 2019 letter.

We would like to begin by stating that we are pleased to have worked with THD
over the last three years on the project’s design, and believe that the limited number
of concerns expressed by THD represents our shared good faith discussions during
that time. While we do not agree on all issues, we believe THD’s concerns can be or
have been ameliorated by steps already made by the project or endorsed by the
Planning Department. With that said, we’d like to address THD’s concerns.

THD’s first concern involves the placement of the spiegeltent in the right-of-way and
how that interplays with the City’s General Plan. The General Plan, however, is only
a framework and no project is required to comply with all General Plan policies. In
fact, as the Mitigated Negative Declaration (“MND”) states, “achieving complete
consistency with the general plan is not always possible”.!

That said, the spiegeltent’s location on the site was confirmed after discussions with
the Planning Director Rahaim and his staff, and was required due to height
limitations on the site (40X), which the project has fully adhered to, and the need to
seamlessly integrate the two uses—hotel and theater—into a single building design
to ensure the continuation of the theater activity on the site.

Moreover, there are hundreds of General Plan Policies and Objectives that the
project complies with, including the Urban Design Element policies that address
views, Arts Element, Recreation and Open Space Element, Transportation Element,
and the Port of San Francisco’s Waterfront Land Use Plan and its Waterfront Design

! See Pages 37-44 of the MND, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, for General Plan consistency findings.





and Access Plan?, the Planning Department’s Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan,
and the State of California’s Public Trust Doctrine. Compliance with these policies
and plans ensures that the project is legally consistent with the City’s General Plan.3

Moreover, the mitigation that THD proposes, returning the site to the Port at the end
of the use, is imbedded in the proposed transaction with the Port, given that there is
no automatic extension on the term of the lease, and the property will revert back to
and is always held by the Port at the conclusion of the lease term.

Second, we have had several conversations with THD regarding the glass gazebo,
the historic spiegeltent and the integration of those elements with the hotel. What
allows for the theater’s return to San Francisco is its integration with the hotel, as
noted above. We have re-analyzed the size of the glass gazebo and the spiegeltent
and according to our design architect, Hornberger + Worstell, the glass gazebo is
only approximately 20% larger than the spiegeltent, not 3 times larger as claimed.

The size of the glass gazebo is designed to be the minimum necessary for
performers and wait staff to move around the tent, an active feature that will add to
the site’s potential along the waterfront, for sound attenuation in the neighborhood,
and to provide the minimum headroom necessary to keep the tent and glass gazebo
clean. Again, while we respectfully disagree with THD on this issue, we are in
agreement that the glass gazebo should be consistent with the Historic District, a
finding confirmed by the Planning Department in its HRE, Part 2 finding.

Third, we agree with THD that materials should be inspected to provide an accurate
sense of their in-place appearance, and we think that the Department’s Condition
requiring an on-site mock-up covers the request made.

Thank you for your consideration of our views and we look forward to discussing
the project with you and the community.

lace
oadway, LLC

CC:  Historic Preservation Commissioners (through Commission Secretary)
Supervisor Aaron Peskin
Stan Hayes/Telegraph Hill Dwellers

Z Significantly, Vallejo Street is not designated as a street with a view in multiple sections of the Port’s
Design and Access Plan. See Page 39, footnote 23, of the MND. Moreover, the view from Vallejo
Street is not impacted at all from Battery Street westward up towards Telegraph Hill.

3 The proposed project also meets the eight priority policies of Section 101.1(b) of the San Francisco
Planning Code. See Page 44 of the MND, attached as part of Exhibit 1.
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AN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Initial Study

Preliminary Mitigated Negative Declaration

Date:

Case No.:
Project Title:
Zoning:

Block/Lot:

Lot Size:
Project Sponsor

October 17, 2018
2015-016326ENV

Seawall Lots 323 and 324 - Hotel and Theater Project
C-2 (Community Business) Use District
Waterfront 3, Special Use District

40-x Height and Bulk District

0138/001

0139/002

59,750 square feet

Jay Wallace

TZK Broadway, LLC

(415) 955-1100 ext. 4007

Lead Agency: San Francisco Planning Department
Staff Contact: Laura Lynch (415) 575-9045
Laura.Lynch@sfgov.org
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

1650 Mission St.
Suite 400

San Francisco,
CA 94103-2479

Reception:
415.558.6378

Fax:
415.558.6409

Planning
Information:
415.558.6377

The project site includes two Port of San Francisco (Port) assessor’s parcels, Assessor’s Block 0138, Lot
001 and Assessor’s Block 0139, Lot 002, and two Port right-of-way parcels. These parcels compose
approximately 59,750 square feet (1.37-acre) of Port property, with primary frontages along The

Embarcadero, Broadway, and Davis Street. The Port currently leases the project site to a parking operator.

The project sponsor, TZK Broadway LLC, proposes to demolish the existing 250 space parking lot and
construct a mixed-use development consisting of three components: an approximately 29,570-gross-
square-foot (gsf) entertainment venue that would house Teatro ZinZanni’s historic .s'pie,gveltentl and 285-seat
dinner-theater-entertainment venue and program; an approximately 118,000-square-foot, four-story hotel
with 192 rooms; and an approximately 14,000 gsf, privately financed and maintained public park, all built
to conform with the 40-X height and bulk district.

' The Zinzanni spiegeltent, the Paliais Nostalgique, is a 100+ year old European cabaret tent constructed of wood,

stained glass, red velvet and gold fabric. The spiegeltent was constructed by renowned craftsman Willem
Klessens. The tent is 29 feet tall with a circumference of 211 feet. It has historically been used to host a variety of
entertainment uses such as dances, wine tastings, cabarets, and celebrations.





No off-street parking is proposed at the project site. Parking would occur through valet services and offsite
parking at existing nearby facilities. Approximately 20 class I bicycle parking spaces and 28 class II bicycle
parking spaces are proposed. Construction on the project site is estimated to take up to approximately 22

months.

FINDING:

This project could not have a significant effect on the environment. This finding is based upon the criteria
of the Guidelines of the State Secretary for Resources, Sections 15064 (Determining Significant Effect),
15065 (Mandatory Findings of Significance), and 15070 (Decision to prepare a Negative Declaration), and
the following reasons as documented in the Initial Evaluation (Initial Study) for the project, which is

attached.

Mitigation measures are included in this project to avoid potentially significant effects. See section F,
Mitigation Measures and Improvement Measures on page 169.





and in three locations along the project frontage (see Figure 4). The proposed building would include 20 class I and
43 class II bicycle parking spaces (28 new class 11 spaces are proposed). The class I bicycle parking spaces would be
provided for use by hotel employees and commercial tenant employees only, and would be located on the ground
floor along Davis Street and accessed via a locked door at that location. The 43 class II bicycle parking spaces
would be located on sidewalks in front of the project site (14 new spaces along Davis Street, 10 new spaces along
The Embarcadero, and four new spaces in the park, in addition to 15 existing spaces located on The Embarcadero).
The location of bicycle parking spaces within the public ROW would be subject to review and approval by the Port.

e Article 10 Historic District/Special Use District. The project site is a noncontributing property within the
Northeast Waterfront Landmark District, a designated historic district per Planning Code article 10. As described in
Appendix D of article 10, this historic district is maintained as an architecturally historic and aesthetically historic
significant area. Appendix D establishes the location and boundaries of the historic district, outlines the character-
defining features of the district and criteria for reviewing alterations and new construction within the district.
Because of the location of the project site, the proposed project is subject to the review and approval of a Certificate
of Appropriateness application by the Historic Preservation Commission for compatibility with the Northeast
Waterfront Landmark District, pursuant to article 10 and Appendix D.

The project is also within Waterfront Special Use District No. 3, and is subject to the requirements outlined in
Planning Code section 240.3. Section 240 sets forth regulations to preserve the unique characteristics of waterfront
special use districts, requiring developments to undergo a waterfront design review process. Section 240.3 discusses
the specific design, land use, scale, and other factors for development within Waterfront Special Use District No. 3.

The proposed project would generally be consistent with provisions of the San Francisco Planning Code. As stated above,
potential inconsistencies of the proposed project with applicable plans, policies, and regulations do not, by themselves,
indicate a significant environmental effect. To the extent that physical environmental impacts may result from such conflicts,
these impacts are discussed in Section E, Evaluation of Environmental Effects. Any inconsistencies between the proposed
project plans, policies, and planning code land use controls that do not relate to physical environmental issues or result in
physical environmental effects will be considered by City decision-makers as part of their determination on whether to

approve, modify, or disapprove the proposed project.

C.2. LOCAL PLANS AND POLICIES

San Francisco General Plan

In addition to the San Francisco Planning Code, the proposed project is subject to the San Francisco General Plan. The
general plan provides general policies and objectives to guide land use decisions. The general plan provides the City’s vision
for the future of San Francisco. The general plan is divided into 10 elements that apply citywide policies and objectives into
the following topical areas: Air Quality, Arts, Commerce and Industry, Community Facilities, Community Safety,
Environmental Protection, Housing, Recreation and Open Space, Transportation, and Urban Design. In addition, the
proposed project is governed by the Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan, a specific area plan of the City’s General Plan, which
is discussed more below. Development in San Francisco is subject to the general plan, which provides objectives and policies
to guide land use decisions, and contains some policies that relate to physical environmental issues, some of which may
conflict with each other. Achieving complete consistency with the general plan is not always possible for a proposed project.
CEQA does not require an analysis of a proposed project in relation to all general plan policies; it asks whether a proposed
project would conflict with any plans or policies adopted to protect the environment. The General Plan’s Northeastern
Waterfront Area Plan recognizes that the proposed project is also subject to the Port of San Francisco’s Waterfront Land Use
Plan and its Design and Access Element, as well as the requirements of the Burton Act governing Port properties.
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Achieving complete consistency with the general plan is not always possible for a proposed project. CEQA does not require
an analysis of a proposed project in relation to all general plan policies; it asks whether a proposed project would conflict
with any plans or policies adopted to protect the environment. Elements of the San Francisco General Plan that are
particularly applicable to planning considerations associated with the proposed project are the Urban Design, Arts,
Recreation and Open Space, and Transportation elements, in addition to the Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan.

The Urban Design Element is concerned both with development and with preservation, recognizing that enhancement and
conservation of the positive attributes of the city are necessary to meet human needs. Of these positive attributes, the city’s
characteristic city pattern is integral to maintaining “an image, a sense of purpose, and a means of orientation.” Views,
topography, streets, building form and major landscaping are of particular importance to the city’s pattern. The Urban Design
Element indicates that preservation of landmark buildings and districts contributes to the sense of permanence and continuity
in the urban fabric of the city. The proposed project is within a designated landmark district under article 10 of the

San Francisco Planning Code. As such, the proposed project is subject to the approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness
from the Historic Preservation Commission for new construction in the Northeast Waterfront Landmark District, which

would review the project for compatibility with the surrounding development.

In addition, the following Urban Design Element policies under Objective 2, Conservation of Resources, include policies that
provide for a sense of nature, continuity with the past, and freedom from overcrowding. Specifically, policies 2.8, 2.9 and
2.10 are relevant to the project as they relate to use of street areas. Policy 2.9 states that there is a rebuttable presumption that
street space should be retained as valuable public open space in the tight-knit fabric of the city.

The proposed project meets Policy 2.8: Maintain a strong presumption against the giving up of street areas for private
ownership or use, or for construction of public buildings. No active or planned street areas are being given up for private
ownership or use, or for the construction of public buildings. The proposed project includes the vacation of a ROW parcel
that is between Seawall Lots 323 and 324 and which currently crosses through the existing parking plot from Davis Street to
The Embarcadero. The ROW parcel is an unmapped, undeveloped, paper street, under the Port’s jurisdiction which is not
currently used as a street. The Port would remain the owner of the ROW with implementation of the proposed project. The
proposed project would build on top of the existing ROW, but the development would be offset by the construction of a new
public park that would allow public access through the site and would also provide a dedicated easement for San Francisco
Fire Department access through the site. The public park would include passive recreational areas, pathways and benches
which would enhance the pedestrian experience, while maintaining a new easement for access by emergency vehicles. A curb
cut on Davis Street would allow circulation through to The Embarcadero on a paved pathway, secured by movable bollards.
The proposed project meets Policy 2.9: Review proposals for the giving up of street areas in terms of all the public values
those streets afford. The proposed project would repurpose the ROW parcel that is currently occupied by a surface parking lot
and is not used as a street area. The proposed project would develop the site to include a new hotel, entertainment venue,
restaurant and a public park, uses which are consistent with the General Plan, Waterfront Land Use Plan and the Burton Act.
Currently the ROW parcel is an unmapped, undeveloped, paper street, not used or planned for use as a street. The proposed
project would not cause any detriment to vehicular or pedestrian circulation but would allow for designated pedestrian
circulation through the site along with emergency vehicular access with two curb cuts connecting from Davis Street to The
Embarcadero and the new public park that would allow emergency vehicles to pass through the site. The proposed project
would not interfere with utility lines or services. The proposed project does not contain any natural features nor does it cause
any detriment to the scale and character of the surrounding area because it is being designed to conform to the existing
character, height and bulk limits for the area and in accordance with the City’s Planning Code Article 10, the Northeastern
Waterfront Area Plan and the Waterfront Land Use Plan and Access and Design Element. The proposed project would not
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obstruct, diminish or eliminate a significant view.” The public walkways and open space around and through the project site
would provide new view corridors that would link Vallejo Street to the Embarcadero and would provide new public open
space amenities in the neighborhood . Policy 2.9 outlines 12 conditions that would discourage approval of a proposed street
vacation and none of these conditions are present under the proposed project. The proposed project would facilitate a public
serving, Public Trust consistent project (hotel and entertainment venue) and would create a public space that would allow
public access use of the site including a new privately owned public open space (POPO) in the form of a new public park.

The proposed project meets Policy 2.10: Permit release of street areas, where such release is warranted, only in the least
extensive and least permanent manner appropriate to each case. The proposed project would be constructed pursuant to a Port
ground lease, and the Port would always retain the interest in the site which permits the Port to recapture the proposed project
site’s occupied ROW parcel should that be warranted following lease termination, thereby ensuring that the release is not
permanent. The proposed project would release the unused ROW parcel in a manner that the public values and purpose of
streets as expressed in the Urban Design Element and elsewhere in the General Plan would be consistent with the preferred
uses for the project site as set forth in the Port’s Waterfront Land Use Plan. The effects of the proposed street vacation or use
of the ROW parcel is minimized because the public access through the site by people and emergency vehicles is still
maintained. The vacation of the ROW would enhance the pedestrian experience and public life and would create a new
POPO and would involve Trust consistent uses (hotel and entertainment venue).

The Arts Element is intended to “‘validate and increase the role of the arts as a major economic force in the region.” The
importance of the arts to the cultural identity and economic prosperity of San Francisco is underscored in a number of
policies seeking to support local artists and artwork. Objective I-2 seeks to increase the contribution of the arts to the
economy of San Francisco, including the continued support and increased promotion of arts and arts activities throughout the
city for the benefit of visitors, tourists, and residents (policy 1-2.2). Policy VI-1.9 supports the creation of opportunities for
private developers to include arts spaces in private developments citywide. The proposed project would comply with the

Arts Element by providing permanent arts and entertainment space at the proposed entertainment venue, which would host
the 100-year-old spiegeltent. The proposed building would provide support space for performers and producers. The design
of the proposed building would allow passersby along The Embarcadero to see “behind the scenes” during performances. The
proposed project would also include a public park and outdoor stage that could potentially host community performances and
public gatherings such as neighborhood exercise classes, a children’s dance or singing performance, or lunchtime music or

lecture session.

The Recreation and Open Space Element is intended to improve the quality of life in San Francisco communities by
providing places for “recreation, activity and engagement, for peace and enjoyment, and for freedom and relief from the built
world.” Among its objectives is increasing recreation and open space to meet the long-term needs of the city and bay region.
Objective 2, policy 2.12 of the Recreation and Open Space Element encourages the expansion of the privately owned public
open spaces requirement to new mixed-use development areas, ensuring that spaces are truly accessible, functional, and
activated. Objective 3 promotes improved access and connectivity to open space within the city. The proposed project would
comply with the Recreation and Open Space Element by providing the POPO as an additional public recreational area in the
vicinity of other popular recreational facilities, such as The Embarcadero Promenade.

? The Design and Access Element provides that Vallejo is not designated as: (1) a street that has “planned public access and open
space” (Public Access and Open Space Map, Exhibit B); (2) a street with Major Views of the Bay and Across Water or a street that
involves “hilltop views of the waterfront” (Page 44); (3) a street that is designated for “new views of the Bay and across water” (Page
45) or an existing or proposed street that connects to the Bay, historic structures or architecture” (Page 46); (4) a street that has a view
to the Bay or a view to a historic building (Page 80) or a street where it is deemed necessary to preserve or create views of historic
buildings or architecture (Page 83); or (5) a street that needs to maintain Bay views (Page 87) or a street with a “street corridor with an
unobstructed view of the Bay”, a street with a “proposed view to the Bay”, a street with a “view to historic structures”, “a street with
views of historic structures” or “a street with a proposed view to architecture with a waterfront identity” (Pages 126-127, Appendix

A).
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The Transportation Element includes discussions about pedestrian issues and provides direction and policies to encourage
safe, convenient and pleasant pedestrian movement as part of the transportation system. Objective 24 is focused on the design
of every street for safe and convenient walking with corresponding policies. Objective 25, Improve the ambience of the
pedestrian environment, contains a relevant policy to the proposed project, Policy 25.5: Where consistent with transportation
needs, transform streets and alleys into neighborhood-serving open spaces or “living streets” by adding pocket parks in
sidewalks or medians, especially in neighborhoods deficient in open space. This policy encourages excess paved areas to be
converted to pocket parks on widened sidewalks, curb extensions or new medians in appropriate circumstances. This policy
defines pocket parks as small, active public spaces created in the existing public right-of-way. In addition to landscaping,
pocket parks may include features such as seating areas, play areas, community garden space, or other elements to encourage
active use of the public open space. The proposed public park for the proposed project replaces the parking lot currently
located on the ROW parcel with similar park features as suggested in Policy 25.5. The compatibility of the proposed project
with General Plan goals, policies, and objectives that do not relate to physical environmental issues would be considered by
decision-makers as part of their decision whether to approve or disapprove the proposed project.

The General Plan also requires compliance with the Port of San Francisco’s Waterfront Land Use Plan and its Waterfront
Design and Access Plan, and the State of California’s Public Trust doctrine. The proposed project also satisfies all of the key
provisions of those governing documents. The Waterfront Land Use Plan provides that Seawall Lots 323 and 324 are
principally permitted for hotel, entertainment and open space uses. The proposed project proposes to construct a new hotel,
entertainment venue and POPO, consistent with the Waterfront Land Use Plan.

The Design and Access Plan provides that Seawall Lots 323 and 324 are prime sites for infill development and that new uses
should take advantage of the major public access amenities of Pier 7 and provide a focal point for the area where Broadway
meets The Embarcadero. The proposed project would use the Seawall Lots in a manner that meets those primary policies for
the project site. The Design and Access Plan also provides that development on Seawall Lots should:

e Respect City form by stepping new buildings down toward The Embarcadero

e  Use strong and bold building forms and detailing on new buildings to reinforce the large scale of The Embarcadero
e  New buildings should respect the scale and architectural character of adjacent neighborhoods

e  Maintain City street corridor views shown on the City Street View map in chapter 3.

The proposed project meets all of the aforementioned policies in that it: (1) would be constructed to comply with the areas
40-foot height limit, (2) the building has continuous massing along The Embarcadero that reinforces the street wall and large
scale of The Embarcadero, (3) uses strong and bold building forms and detailing to reinforce the large scale of The
Embarcadero by construction to the property line, (4) uses materials that are consistent with the area, and incorporates many
other design details that are consistent with the district (5) respects the scale and architectural character of the adjacent
Northeast Waterfront Historic District insofar as it has been designed to comply with Article 10, Appendix D Guidelines for
building form, massing fenestration and materiality in the historic district and conforming with Secretary of the Interior
Standards-Standard 9, Additions to Historic Districts (6) maintains the designated street corridor views as described in the
Design and Access Plan (Chapter 3, Map B, Open Spaces and Access), insofar as the project does not have any impact on
Broadway or Davis Street, and Vallejo Street is not mentioned as an existing open space and public access area, or a planned

open space and public access area or a view corridor

The General Plan also requires compliance with the Burton Act and the California Public Trust doctrine. The proposed
project fully complies with the Burton Act Public Trust doctrine insofar as it involves three trust consistent, public assembly
and Port commercial uses—hotel, entertainment venue and public park-and supports the other requirements of the Burton Act
such as promoting access to and along the waterfront and will pay fair market rent and contribute to the general fund for

public trust uses.
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Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan”

The Northeast Waterfront Area Plan, part of the San Francisco General Plan, includes goals, policies, and objectives to
maintain, expand, and allow new shipping, commercial, and recreational maritime operations that provide improved and
expanded commercial and recreational maritime facilities, open spaces, and public access along the waterfront. This

area plan, last amended by the San Francisco Planning Commission in 2003, includes the area along San Francisco Bay from
Fisherman’s Wharf to China Basin. The area plan includes land under Port jurisdiction and the areas of the city adjacent to
the Port area. Although the area’s role in San Francisco’s maritime shipping industry has declined over time, the Port remains
responsible for ensuring the continuation of maritime commerce, navigation, and fisheries within the Northeastern
Waterfront. The Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan envisions the addition of hotel, restaurant, and retail uses in this area to

promote increased access and enjoyment of the waterfront.

The project site is within the area plan’s Base of Telegraph Hill Subarea, which contains a mix of maritime, residential, and
commercial uses. A variety of land uses are designated appropriate on inland sites, including hotel, residential, office, and
other commercial activities. The open space policy for this subarea also encourages the provision of landscaping and publicly
accessible open space in the development. The area plan indicates that new development on these parcels shall be designed to
“preserve and enhance the rich historic character of the subarea, and, as appropriate, highlight access points to the nearby
North Beach, Chinatown and Fisherman’s Wharf districts.”

The following areawide objectives and policies of the Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan relate to the proposed project:

e Objective 1: To develop and maintain activities that will contribute significantly to the City’s economic vitality and
provide additional activities which strengthen the predominant uses in each subarea of the northeastern waterfront,
while limiting their concentration to preserve the environmental quality of the area.

e Objective 2: To diversify uses in the northeastern waterfront, to expand the period of use of each subarea and to
promote maximum public use of the waterfront while enhancing its environmental quality.

e  Objective 7: To strengthen and expand the recreation character of the northeastern waterfront and to develop a
system of public open spaces and recreation facilities that recognizes its recreational potential, provides unity and
identity to the urban area, and establishes an overall waterfront character of openness of views, water and sky and

public accessibility to the water's edge.

e Policy 8.2: Limit additional parking facilities in the Northeastern Waterfront and minimize the impact of this
parking. Discourage long-term parking for work trips which could be accommodated by transit. Restrict additional
parking to: (a) Short-term (less than four hour) parking facilities to meet needs of additional business, retail,
restaurant, marina, and entertainment activities; (b) Long-term parking facilities for maritime activities, hotel and
residential uses. To the extent possible, locate parking away from areas of intense pedestrian activity. Encourage

shared parking at adjacent or nearby facilities.

e Policy 8.5: Base the determination of the amount of parking allowed for permitted uses on the desirability of
reducing automobiles along the waterfront and, to the maximum extent feasible, consider the use of existing public
transit and inland parking, as well as public transit and inland parking which could reasonably be provided in the

future.

* San Francisco Planning Department, Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan, 1998 and Amendments by Resolution 16626 on July 31,
2003, http.//www.sf-planning.org/fip/General_Plan/NE_Waterfront.htm.
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e Policy 8.6: Remove or relocate inland those existing parking facilities on or near the water's edge or within areas of

intense pedestrian activity.

e  Policy 10.5: Permit nonmaritime development bayward of the sea wall only if the following qualifications are met:
a. Maximum feasible public access is provided to the water's edge. b. Important Bay and waterfront views along
The Embarcadero and level inland streets are preserved and improved. Minor encroachment into the view corridors
from level inland strects may be permitted: (1) Where the encroaching element has a distinct maritime character and
adds variety to the views along the waterfront; (2) Where minor structures (such as kiosks) are desirable to provide
public amenities contributing to a continuity of interest and activity along the waterfront; (3) Where essential
maritime facilities cannot reasonably be located and designed to avoid view blockage; and (4) Where the public
enjoyment of the Bay will be enhanced by providing a place of public assembly and recreation which allows unique
vistas and overviews that include portions that are publicly accessible during daytime and evenings consistent with

ensuring public safety,

e Policy 10.6: Retain older buildings of architectural merit or historical significance to preserve the architectural and
historical character of the waterfront and ensure the compatibility of new development.

The following policies and objective of the Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan specific to the Base of Telegraph Hill Subarea

relate to the proposed project:

e Policy 18.3: Encourage moderate development of uses such as shops, restaurants, entertainment and hotels which
activate the waterfront during evenings and weekends, but to a lesser overall intensity and concentration than present
in the adjacent downtown and Fisherman’s Wharf areas.

e Policy 18.4: Design new development on Seawall Lots 323 and 324 as an orientation point for the waterfront which
also highlights the intersection of Broadway and The Embarcadero.

e Policy 19.3: Design transportation access to new developments on seawall lots to minimize congestion on Bay
Street, Broadway, and The Embarcadero.

e  Objective 20: To develop the area in such a way as to preserve and enhance the physical form of the waterfront and
Telegraph Hill, and to preserve views from the hill.

The proposed project would convert an existing surface parking lot along The Embarcadero to a hotel, entertainment venue,
and public park. The addition of the proposed project to the site would better define the intersection of The Embarcadero and
Broadway for all roadway users, marking the importance of the intersection as a gateway point. Rather than creating new
parking facilities in an area well served by existing transit, the proposed project would enhance the pedestrian experience on
and around the site, promoting recreation along The Embarcadero. Although the proposed project would add new
entertainment uses to the site, the intensity of use would be consistent with immediately surrounding uses along the
waterfront, which generally are less intense in use than destinations located downtown or in Fisherman’s Wharf. The Historic
Preservation Commission and Architectural Review Committee must review the project design to ensure consistency with the
historic district in which the project is located. The proposed project would not conflict with any goals, objectives, or policies
of the Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan. The proposed project is compatible with the heights of the surrounding buildings
and would provide appropriate streetscape for pedestrians, accommodate pedestrians and bicyclists, create open space
connections, and make sure that the new development would fit into the context of historic properties in the area.

The project site is within the boundary of the Northeast Embarcadero Study: An Urban Design Analysis for the Northeast
Embarcadero Area (Northeast Embarcadero Study), prepared by the San Francisco Planning Department. This study was
conducted to assess empty surface parking lots, including the project site, along the western side of The Embarcadero for
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future infill development. The study was adopted on July 8, 2010, and its guidelines were incorporated into the Northeast
Waterfront Area Plan. The objectives of the Northeast Embarcadero Study are to create site guidelines that are beneficial to
the pedestrian realm, establish east-west connections between the city and the Bay, establish an appropriate streetscape for
pedestrians, create open space connections, and make sure that new development fits into context of historic properties. The
proposed project is compatible with the heights of the surrounding buildings and provides accessible open space in the form
of a new public park that would allow for passage of pedestrians from Davis Street through to The Embarcadero.

Waterfront Land Use Plan

Land use and development on properties within Port jurisdiction, including the project site, are guided by the Waterfront
Land Use Plan.” The lands within the Port’s jurisdiction are held in public trust and managed by the Port. The Port, as trustee
of these public lands, is required to promote maritime commerce, navigation, and fisheries, and to protect natural resources
and develop recreational facilities for public use. The Waterfront Land Use Plan is intended to designate lands to meet these
objectives and to serve the intensified demand for residential and commercial development on appropriate inland parcels.

Providing improved access to the waterfront is among the plan’s primary objectives.

The Waterfront Land Use Plan designates the project site as a Mixed Use Opportunity Area anticipated to include a new open
space component, The plan notes that the project site (encompassing Seawall Lots 323 and 324) is currently underused and
recommends that it be developed with uses that activate the waterfront and are integrated with adjacent uses. Suggested uses
include support space and ancillary parking for pier activities or mixed-use hotel, office, or residential developments with
ground-floor retail uses. The plan indicates that these lots should provide a smooth transition from inland neighborhood uses
to shoreline improvements, making the area inviting to local residents. The plan also notes that the project site is within the
Northeast Waterfront Historic District and that the design of new development must respect and enhance the historic and

architectural character of adjacent development.

In 2015, the Port completed the Waterfront Land Use Plan 1997-2014 Review.” The review documents land use changes at
the Port over an 18-year period and identifies recommendations for a targeted update of the Waterfront Land Use Plan, which
is currently underway. The review identified goals for the project area similar to those identified in the 2009 Waterfront Land
Use Plan, including the development of a boutique hotel at the intersection of Broadway and Embarcadero (on Seawall Lot
324). The current review of the Waterfront Land Use Plan continues to make the same finding. Such a development would
need to be designed to be compatible with existing land uses and to define the intersection’s role as an area gateway. Seawall
Lot 323 is identified as an opportunity to reconnect adjacent neighborhoods with the waterfront and improve the public

realm.
The Accountable Planning Initiative

In November 1986, the voters of San Francisco approved Proposition M, the Accountable Planning Initiative, which added
section 101.1 to the planning code and established the following priority policies, set forth in section 101.1(b):

(1) That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future opportunities for resident
employment in, and ownership of, such businesses be enhanced

(2) That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected to preserve the cultural and economic

diversity of our neighborhoods

* Port of San Francisco, Waterfront Land Use Plan, June 2004; Revised October 2009, http:/sfport.com/waterfront-land-use-plan-0.,

accessed May 22, 2016.
* Portof San Francisco, Waterfront Land Use Plan 1997-2014 Review, 2015, http.//sfport.com/sites/default/files/FileCenter/

Documents/10303-WLUP_Review_Chapterl_July2015_reduced%20size.pdyf, accessed May 22, 2016.
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(3) That the City’s supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced
(4) That commuter traffic not impede Muni transit service or overburden our streets or neighborhood parking

(5) That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting the City’s industrial and service sectors from
displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for resident employment and

ownership in these sectors be enhanced

(6) That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life in an earthquake

(7) That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved
(8) That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from development

Policies 1, 2, and 5 are addressed in the initial study checklist in Section E.1, Land Use and Planning. Policy 3 is addressed in
Section E.2, Population and Housing. Policy 4 is addressed in Section E.4, Transportation and Circulation. Policy 6 is
addressed in Section E.13, Geology and Soils. Policy 7 is addressed in Section E.3, Cultural Resources. Policy 8 is addressed

in Section E.8, Wind and Shadow.

The proposed project would not conflict with any of the eight priority policies of section 101.1(b). Because the project site is
located within a designated landmark district under article 10 of the San Francisco Planning Code, the Historic Preservation
Commission will review and issue a decision on a certificate of appropriateness provided for the project. The San Francisco
Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors will review the proposed project for consistency with the priority policies
during the public hearing on the proposed project before acting on the conditional approval for the hotel use. The case report
and approval motions for the proposed project that are presented to the planning commission will contain the planning
department’s comprehensive project analysis and findings regarding the proposed project’s consistency with the priority
policies, plans, policies, and planning code provisions that do not relate to physical environmental issues. The planning
commission and board of supervisors will also consider the information in this initial study when they determine whether to

approve, modify, or disapprove the proposed project.

Other Local Plans and Policies

In addition to the San Francisco General Plan, the Northeast Waterfront Area Plan, the Waterfront Land Use Plan, the
Northeast Embarcadero Study, the planning code and zoning maps, and the Accountable Planning Initiative, other local plans
and policies that are relevant to the proposed project are discussed below.

e  San Francisco Transit First Policy is a set of principles that emphasize the City’s commitment that the use of
public ROWs by pedestrians, bicyclists, and public transit be given priority over the private automobile. These
principles are embodied in the policies and objectives of the Transportation Element of the San Francisco General
Plan. All City boards, commissions, and departments are required by law to implement the City’s Transit First

Policy principles in conducting the City’s affairs.

e  San Francisco Bicycle Plan is a citywide bicycle transportation plan that identifies short-term, long-term, and other
minor improvements to San Francisco’s bicycle route network. The overall goal of the San Francisco Bicycle Plan is

to make bicycling an integral part of daily life in San Francisco.

e  San Francisco Better Streets Plan classifies the City’s public streets and ROW, and creates a unified set of
standards, guidelines, and implementation strategies that guide how the City designs, builds, and maintains its public
streets and ROW to enhance the livability of the City’s streets.
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

Subject: FW: Categorical Exemptions

Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 9:35:45 AM

Attachments: 2018-012893ENV-CEQA Checklist and PTR (ID 1080045).pdf

2018-016992ENV-CEQA Checklist and PTR (ID 1080132).pdf

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

From: Huggins, Monica (CPC)

Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 5:03 PM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: Categorical Exemptions

Hello,
Please forward the attached Categorical Exemptions to the HPC Commissioners.

Thank You,

Monica Huggins

Administrative Assistant

City and County of San Francisco
Environmental Planning

1650 Mission Street, 41 Floor
San Francisco, CA 94105
415-575-9128
Monica.Huggins@sfgov.org
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination

PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Address Block/Lot(s)

1055 Ingerson Ave 4969039

Case No. Permit No.

2018-012893ENV 201809211090

Il Addition/ [[] pemoilition (requires HRE for ] New
Alteration Category B Building) Construction

Project description for Planning Department approval.

HORIZONTAL ADDITON TO AN EXISTING SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH A PROPOSED
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU)@ 3RD FL. INCLUEDES ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING,EXCAVATION &
STRUCTURAL WORK. ORDIANCE 95-17 (ADD 5 BATHROOMS, 1 BEDROOM)

STEP 1: EXEMPTION CLASS

*Note:

If neither class applies, an Environmental Evaluation Application is required.*

Class 1 - Existing Facilities. Interior and exterior alterations; additions under 10,000 sq. ft.

O

Class 3 - New Construction. Up to three new single-family residences or six dwelling units in one
building; commercial/office structures; utility extensions; change of use under 10,000 sq. ft. if principally
permitted or with a CU.

Class 32 - In-Fill Development. New Construction of seven or more units or additions greater than
10,000 sq. ft. and meets the conditions described below:

(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan
policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.

(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than 5 acres
substantially surrounded by urban uses.

(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered rare or threatened species.

(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or
water quality.

(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.

FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING USE ONLY

Class

SIS E: 415.575.9010

SAN FRANCISCO Para informacién en Espafiol llamar al: 415.575.9010
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawag sa: 415.575.9121






STEP 2: CEQA IMPACTS
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

If any box is checked below, an Environmental Evaluation Application is required.

O

Air Quality: Would the project add new sensitive receptors (specifically, schools, day care facilities,
hospitals, residential dwellings, and senior-care facilities within an Air Pollution Exposure Zone? Does the
project have the potential to emit substantial pollutant concentrations (e.g., backup diesel generators,
heavy industry, diesel trucks, etc.)? (refer to EP _ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Air Pollution
Exposure Zone)

Hazardous Materials: If the project site is located on the Maher map or is suspected of containing
hazardous materials (based on a previous use such as gas station, auto repair, dry cleaners, or heavy
manufacturing, or a site with underground storage tanks): Would the project involve 50 cubic yards or
more of soil disturbance - or a change of use from industrial to residential? If yes, this box must be
checked and the project applicant must submit an Environmental Application with a Phase |
Environmental Site Assessment. Exceptions: do not check box

if the applicant presents documentation of enrollment in the San Francisco Department of Public Health
(DPH) Maher program, a DPH waiver from the Maher program, or other documentation from
Environmental Planning staff that hazardous material effects would be less than significant (refer to
EP_ArcMap > Maher layer).

Transportation: Does the project create six (6) or more net new parking spaces or residential units?
Does the project have the potential to adversely affect transit, pedestrian and/or bicycle safety (hazards)
or the adequacy of nearby transit, pedestrian and/or bicycle facilities?

Archeological Resources: Would the project result in soil disturbance/modification greater than two
(2) feet below grade in an archeological sensitive area or eight (8) feet in a non -archeological sensitive
area? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Archeological Sensitive Area)

Subdivision/Lot Line Adjustment: Does the project site involve a subdivision or lot line adjustment
on a lot with a slope average of 20% or more? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers >
Topography)

Slope = or > 20%: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage expansion greater
than 1,000 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50 cubic yards or more of
soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Topography) If box is
checked, a geotechnical report is required.

Seismic: Landslide Zone: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage expansion
greater than 1,000 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50 cubic yards or
more of soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Seismic Hazard
Zones) If box is checked, a geotechnical report is required.

O

Seismic: Liquefaction Zone: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage
expansion greater than 1,000 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50

cubic yards or more of soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers >
Seismic Hazard Zones) If box is checked, a geotechnical report will likely be required.

If no boxes are checked above, GO TO STEP 3. If one or more boxes are checked above, an
Environmental Evaluation Application is required, unless reviewed by an Environmental Planner.

Comments and Planner Signature (optional): Laura Lynch
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STEP 3: PROPERTY STATUS - HISTORIC RESOURCE
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

PROPERTY IS ONE OF THE FOLLOWING: (refer to Parcel Information Map)

D Category A: Known Historical Resource. GO TO STEP 5.

- Category B: Potential Historical Resource (over 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 4.

|:| Category C: Not a Historical Resource or Not Age Eligible (under 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 6.

STEP 4: PROPOSED WORK CHECKLIST
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

Check all that apply to the project.

1. Change of use and new construction. Tenant improvements not included.

2. Regular maintenance or repair to correct or repair deterioration, decay, or damage to building.

3. Window replacement that meets the Department’'s Window Replacement Standards. Does not include
storefront window alterations.

4. Garage work. A new opening that meets the Guidelines for Adding Garages and Curb Cuts, and/or
replacement of a garage door in an existing opening that meets the Residential Design Guidelines.

5. Deck, terrace construction, or fences not visible from any immediately adjacent public right-of-way.

6. Mechanical equipment installation that is not visible from any immediately adjacent public
right-of-way.

7. Dormer installation that meets the requirements for exemption from public notification under Zoning
Administrator Bulletin No. 3: Dormer Windows.

O|0|co|d (ol

8. Addition(s) that are not visible from any immediately adjacent public right-of-way for 150 feet in each
direction; does not extend vertically beyond the floor level of the top story of the structure or is only a
single story in height; does not have a footprint that is more than 50% larger than that of the original
building; and does not cause the removal of architectural significant roofing features.

[l

Note: Project Planner must check box below before proceeding.

- Project is not listed. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Project does not conform to the scopes of work. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Project involves four or more work descriptions. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Project involves less than four work descriptions. GO TO STEP 6.

STEP 5: CEQA IMPACTS - ADVANCED HISTORICAL REVIEW
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

Check all that apply to the project.

D 1. Project involves a known historical resource (CEQA Category A) as determined by Step 3 and
conforms entirely to proposed work checklist in Step 4.

2. Interior alterations to publicly accessible spaces.

3. Window replacement of original/historic windows that are not “in-kind” but are consistent with
existing historic character.

4. Fagade/storefront alterations that do not remove, alter, or obscure character-defining features.

5. Raising the building in a manner that does not remove, alter, or obscure character-defining
features.

O(O|0)0 (O

6. Restoration based upon documented evidence of a building’s historic condition, such as historic
photographs, plans, physical evidence, or similar buildings.
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- 7. Addition(s), including mechanical equipment that are minimally visible from a public right -of-way
and meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation .

8. Other work consistent with the Secretary of the Interior Standards for the Treatment of Historic
Properties (specify or add comments):

9. Other work that would not materially impair a historic district (specify or add comments):

(Requires approval by Senior Preservation Planner/Preservation Coordinator)

10. Reclassification of property status. (Requires approval by Senior Preservation

Planner/Preservation
. |:| Reclassify to Category A . Reclassify to Category C
a. Per HRER dated ~ 03/04/2019 (attach HRER)

b. Other (specify): received signed PTR from AKV dated 3/1/2019

Note: If ANY box in STEP 5 above is checked, a Preservation Planner MUST check one box below.

I:l Further environmental review required. Based on the information provided, the project requires an
Environmental Evaluation Application to be submitted. GO TO STEP 6.

. Project can proceed with categorical exemption review. The project has been reviewed by the
Preservation Planner and can proceed with categorical exemption review. GO TO STEP 6.

Comments (optional):

Preservation Planner Signature: Monica Giacomucci

STEP 6: CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION DETERMINATION
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

|:| Further environmental review required. Proposed project does not meet scopes of work in either
(check all that apply):

[] step2- CEQA Impacts

|:| Step 5 - Advanced Historical Review
STOP! Must file an Environmental Evaluation Application.

- No further environmental review is required. The project is categorically exempt under CEQA.
There are no unusual circumstances that would result in a reasonable possibility of a significant

effect.

Project Approval Action: Signature:

Building Permit Monica Giacomucci
If Discretionary Review before the Planning Commission is requested, 03/04/2019

the Discretionary Review hearing is the Approval Action for the project.

Once signed or stamped and dated, this document constitutes a categorical exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines and Chapter
31of the Administrative Code.

In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, an appeal of an exemption determination can only be
filed within 30 days of the project receiving the first approval action.

Please note that other approval actions may be required for the project. Please contact the assigned planner for these approvals.
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STEP 7: MODIFICATION OF A CEQA EXEMPT PROJECT

TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, when a California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) exempt project changes after the Approval Action and requires a subsequent approval, the
Environmental Review Officer (or his or her designee) must determine whether the proposed change
constitutes a substantial modification of that project. This checklist shall be used to determine whether the
proposed changes to the approved project would constitute a “substantial modification” and, therefore, be
subject to additional environmental review pursuant to CEQA.

PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Address (If different than front page) Block/Lot(s) (If different than
front page)
1055 Ingerson Ave 4969/039
Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.
2018-012893PRJ 201809211090
Plans Dated Previous Approval Action New Approval Action
Building Permit

Modified Project Description:

DETERMINATION IF PROJECT CONSTITUTES SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION

Compared to the approved project, would the modified project:

O | Resultin expansion of the building envelope, as defined in the Planning Code;

Result in the change of use that would require public notice under Planning Code
Sections 311 or 312;

Result in demolition as defined under Planning Code Section 317 or 19005(f)?

O |0l d

Is any information being presented that was not known and could not have been known
at the time of the original determination, that shows the originally approved project may
no longer qualify for the exemption?

If at least one of the above boxes is checked, further environmental review is required.

DETERMINATION OF NO SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION

[J | The proposed modification would not result in any of the above changes.

If this box is checked, the proposed modifications are categorically exempt under CEQA, in accordance with prior project
approval and no additional environmental review is required. This determination shall be posted on the Planning
Department website and office and mailed to the applicant, City approving entities, and anyone requesting written notice.

Planner Name: Date:
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM

1650 Mission St.
Suite 400
Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion |2/12/2019 San Francisco,
CA 94103-2479
PROJECT INFORMATION: Reception:
Planner: Address: 415.558.6378
Monica Giacomucci 1055 Ingerson Avenue Fax:
415.558.6409
Block/Lot: Cross Streets:
4969/039 Jennings and Ingalls Streets Planning
Information:
CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.: 415.558.6377
B N/A 2018-012893ENV
PURPOSE OF REVIEW: PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
(¢ CEQA (" Article 10/11 (" Preliminary/PIC (@ Alteration (" Demo/New Construction

DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: |8/15/2018

PROJECT ISSUES:

Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource?

[] | If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?

Additional Notes:

Submitted: Supplemental Information for Historic Resource Evaluation prepared by
Howard Blecher (dated September 2018)

PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW:

Category: CA CB (e C
Individual Historic District/Context
Property is individually eligible for inclusionin a Property is in an eligible California Register
California Register under one or more of the Historic District/Context under one or more of
following Criteria: the following Criteria:
Criterion 1 - Event: (" Yes (o No Criterion 1 - Event: (" Yes (o No
Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes (o No Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes (e No
Criterion 3 - Architecture: (" Yes (o No Criterion 3 - Architecture: (" Yes (o No
Criterion 4 - Info. Potential: (" Yes (o No Criterion 4 - Info. Potential: (" Yes (o No
Period of Significance: Period of Significance:
( Contributor (" Non-Contributor






Complies with the Secretary’s Standards/Art 10/Art 11: C Yes (" No (@ N/A
CEQA Material Impairment to the individual historic resource: (" Yes (® No
CEQA Material Impairment to the historic district: ( Yes (® No
Requires Design Revisions: ( Yes (e No
Defer to Residential Design Team: (e Yes (" No

PRESERVATION TEAM COMMENTS:

According to the Supplemental Application for Historic Resource Determination and
information accessed in Planning Department files, the subject property is improved with
a one-and-a-half-story over basement wood-frame single-family residence. The subject
building was likely designed in the Queen Anne style, but it has been altered over time. A
1953 building permit allowed the removal of "ginger bread" from the front of the building,
likely referencing the building's original millwork. The building's remaining Queen Anne
architectural features include the front-facing gable with bargeboard and returns,
octagonal bay, recessed paneled residential entry, and a turned wood porch column.

The subject parcel was surveyed and recorded in 1870, and it was originally owned by
Jess Rindleberger, president of the Bay Park Homestead Association. The existing
residence was constructed in 1907 by carpenter John Mews for German immigrant Charles
H. Zentgraf and his wife, Meta (or Metor). Charles was employed as a rigger at a local
ironworks and later built trusses at a shipyard. The Zentgrafs and their two children resided
at 1055 Ingerson until 1955, when the property was sold to Franz Heinzen (occupation
unknown). Heinzen sold the property to Wilbur Ely, an employee of the San Francisco
Department of Public Works, and his wife Avanell in 1961. Their daughters, Carolyn and
Diane, inherited the property in 2004.

The only known permitted alteration was the removal of "ginger bread" and recladding
of the front facade with asbestos siding in 1953. Unpermitted work has included
installation of the garage, replacement of original doors and windows, picket fencing at
the front property line, and a rear addition.

The subject property is not included in any local, state, or national registers. It is located
within the boundaries of the African American Arts and Cultural District, but the building
does not appear to have been the site of any significant events within this context such
that the property would qualify for the California Register under Criterion 1. Likewise, none
of the owners or occupants of the subject building has been identified as important to the
history of African American arts and culture within the Bayview neighborhood or the city
of San Francisco (Criterion 2).

The building is not architecturally distinct and has had character-defining details
removed such that it would not qualify individually for listing in the California Register
under Criterion 3.

(continued)

Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: |Date:

H H Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice
Allison K. Vanderslice Date: 2019.03.01 16:32:05 -08'00'
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination

PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Address Block/Lot(s)

1375-1377 24TH 1779011

Case No. Permit No.

2018-016992ENV 201811307126

Il Addition/ [[] pemoilition (requires HRE for ] New
Alteration Category B Building) Construction

Project description for Planning Department approval.
Additions and alterations to an existing 2-unit residential building in an RH-2 zoning district. The scope of work
includes interior renovations, a third floor addition, renovation of the facade, and full seismic retrofit. There will

be no horizontal expansion in the existing ground floor and second floor. The existing structure has been found
not to be a historical resource.

STEP 1: EXEMPTION CLASS

*Note: If neither class applies, an Environmental Evaluation Application is required.*

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
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D 7. Addition(s), including mechanical equipment that are minimally visible from a public right -of-way
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
a. Per HRER dated (attach HRER)

b. Other (specify): Per PTR form signed on 3/1/2019

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

Preservation Planner Signature: Stephanie Cisneros

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

Building Permit Stephanie Cisneros
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
1375-1377 24TH 1779/011
Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.
2018-016992PRJ 201811307126
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

HSCEHIREATE: 415.575.9010
SAN FRANCISCO Para informacién en Espafiol llamar al: 415.575.9010
PLANNING DEPARTMENT Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawag sa: 415.575.9121





SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM

1650 Mission St.
Suite 400
Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion | 2/20/2019 San Francisco,
CA 94103-2479
PROJECT INFORMATION: Reception:
Planner: Address: 415.558.6378
Elizabeth Munyan 1375-77 24th Ave Fax:
415.558.6409
Block/Lot: Cross Streets:
1779/011 Irving Street and Judah Street Planning
Information:
CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.: 415.558.6377
B n/a 2018-016992ENV
PURPOSE OF REVIEW: PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
(e CEQA (" Article 10/11 (" Preliminary/PIC (e Alteration (— Demo/New Construction

DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: |12/26/2018

PROJECT ISSUES:

Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource?

[] | If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?

Additional Notes:

Submitted: Historic Resource Evaluation Part One prepared by VerPlanck Historic
Preservation Consulting (September 7, 2018)

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
Criterion 1 - Event: (" Yes (o No Criterion 1 - Event: ( Yes (o No
Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes (o No Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes (¢ No
Criterion 3 - Architecture: ( Yes (o No Criterion 3 - Architecture: ( Yes (o No
Criterion 4 - Info. Potential: ( Yes (o No Criterion 4 - Info. Potential: ( Yes (o No
Period of Significance: Period of Significance:
( Contributor (" Non-Contributor






Complies with the Secretary’s Standards/Art 10/Art 11: C Yes (" No (@ N/A
CEQA Material Impairment to the individual historic resource: (C Yes (® No
CEQA Material Impairment to the historic district: (C Yes (® No
Requires Design Revisions: C Yes (" No
Defer to Residential Design Team: (e Yes (" No

PRESERVATION TEAM COMMENTS:

According to the HRE Part One prepared by VerPlanck Historic Preservation Consulting and
information found in Planning Department files, the subject property at 1375-77 24th
Avenue contains a one-story-over-basement, wood-frame, two-family dwelling designed
in the Mediterranean style. The subject building was designed and built in 1937 on
speculation by Alex Sergo, a contractor. Upon construction, the subject property was
immediately sold to Adam and Anna Holak, who were both mattress factory employees.
The couple owned the subject property until they both died in 1942.In 1943, the subject
property was transferred to Anna’s relative Setlla Piestrzynska who converted the
basement of the subject dwelling into a three-room flat and rented the property out. After
Stella sold the property in 1953, it underwent a series of owners and multiple tenants. The
addition of the new dwelling unit at the basement level in 1948 was the most significant
alteration to the subject property. Other alterations include replacement of garage doors,
paving yard with concrete, and addition of a metal security gate (1960).

No known historic events took place at this property (Criterion 1). None of the owners or
occupants have been identified as important to history (Criterion 2). As a classic five-room
bungalow common throughout the Sunset District, the subject property lacks architectural
distinction such that it would qualify individually under Criterion 3 (Architecture). Based
upon a review of information in the Department records, the subject building is not
significant under Criterion 4 since this significance criterion typically applies to rare
construction types when involving the built environment. The subject building is not an
example of a rare construction type. Assessment of archaeological sensitivity is undertaken
through the Department’s Preliminary Archaeological Review process and is outside the
scope of this review.

The subject property is not located within the boundaries of any identified historic district
or located adjacent to any known historic resources (Category A properties). The
properties adjacent to the subject property were constructed between 1925 and 1945,
with some infill development occurring later. Although there are some parts of the Outer
Sunset that are homogeneous in terms of age, style, and urban form, the subject block is
not a cohesive unit, and a majority of properties have been significantly remodeled in
recent years making it unlikely to ever be a part of a historic district. Therefore, the subject
property is ineligible for listing in the California Register individually or as a part of a
historic district.

Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: |Date:

H H Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice
Alllson K' Vander5|lce Date: 2019.03.01 16:35:38 -08'00'
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: THD COMMENTS - 809 Montgomery (Case No. 2017-003843COA)
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:26:23 PM

Attachments: THD 809 Montaomery Itr FINAL 3-3-19.pdf

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

From: Stan Hayes <stanhayes1967@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:09 PM

To: skaggs@page-turnbull.com

Cc: Aaron Hyland <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; dianematsuda@hotmail.com; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com; rsejohns <RSEJohns@yahoo.com>;
Jonathan Pearlman <jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com>; Andrew Wolfram
<andrew@tefarch.com>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
kiernat@page-turnbull.com; Salgado, Rebecca (CPC) <rebecca.salgado@sfgov.org>; Frye, Tim (CPC)
<tim.frye@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>

Subject: THD COMMENTS - 809 Montgomery (Case No. 2017-003843COA)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Mr. Ralls -

On behalf of the Planning & Zoning Committee of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers, we want to thank you
and your project team for presenting the updated proposal for the building at 809 Montgomery.

We appreciate the revisions to the earlier design that the project team has made in response
to concerns listed in THD’s letter of September 21, 2018.

Per our attached letter, with the incorporation of these changes, THD is pleased to offer its
support for approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the project by the Historic
Preservation Commission at its upcoming hearing on March 6, 2019.

We intend that this letter be submitted as THD's comments for that hearing, and we have
copied the HPC and its members accordingly on this email.

Sincerely,


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

TR

SN
March 3, 2019 ” "\/
Daniel Ralls, Principal _
X TELEGRAPH HILL
Olson Kundig DWELLERS
c/o Elisa Skaggs
Page & Turnbull

417 Montgomery Street, 8t Floor,
San Francisco, California 94104
Via email: <skaggs@page-turnbull.com>

Re: 809 Montgomery Street
Case No. 2017-003843COA
Jackson Square Historic District

Dear Mr. Ralls,

On behalf of the Planning & Zoning Committee of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers
(THD), we thank you and your project team for presenting the updated proposal for
the building at 809 Montgomery to our committee on February 25, 2019.

We particularly appreciate the proposed revisions to the design that the
project team has made in response to the concerns listed in THD’s letter of September
21, 2018. With the incorporation of these changes, which are set forth below, THD is
pleased to offer its support for approval by the Historic Preservation Commission of a
Certificate of Appropriateness for the project.

Reducing the Third Floor Addition/Roof Deck

In the revised plan, the proposed third floor addition is lowered by 2’-10” from
the previous design and the “wall” of the addition is faced with unpainted brick to
complement the texture and color of that found in the Jackson Square Historic
District. Although THD would prefer that no volumetric expansions be made to this
historic building, we agree that these changes will help to reduce its overall visual
mass, giving deference to the original historic resource.

Regarding the previously proposed plant material on the roof deck - around
the edges and parapet, we appreciate the design team’s agreement that foliage should
not be visible from the street given the commercial character of the Historic District.
We address the proposals to add plant material to the north facing “wall” of the
addition below.

Retaining Heavy Timber Construction

As proposed in the revised plan, the heavy timber columns will be retained and
the secondary timber framing will be exposed at the gallery level to express the
historic character of the structure.

P.O. BOX 330159 S5AN FRANCISCO, CA 94133 « 415.273.1004 www.thd.org

Founded in 1954 ta perpetuate the historic traditions of San Francisco's Telegraph Hill and to represent the community inferests of its residents and property owners.
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Enhancing the Pedestrian View of Main Level Art Gallery

We again commend the project team on the treatment proposed for reducing
the visibility of the existing stairway down to the basement. In response to the
committee’s concern that the proposed illumination and bright white paint on the
gallery walls would appear highly reflective to the pedestrian, the design team agreed
to select a palette to highlight the historic character of the building. Further, as
explained by the design team at our meeting, the existing timber framing will be
retained and supplemented in areas where it had been removed with reclaimed
lumber to match as closely as possible the existing conditions and a transparent stain
will allow the natural grain to show through.

Consultation with Neighbors at 845 Montgomery

Thank you for engaging in a dialogue with the neighbors at 845 Montgomery
regarding their concerns that the new third floor addition would impair the light and
air from their residential units. As you acknowledged at our meeting, while they
would prefer that no addition be made to the 809 Montgomery building, we
understand from your presentation that most seem satisfied with the reduced
massing resulting from lowering the additional floor by 2°-10".

It is also our understanding, however, that the 845 Montgomery residents
would like the north facing “wall” of the addition to be covered with plant material. In
response, the design team presented three proposals to our committee for
consideration: 1) planted with a green wall, 2) with ivy-covered wall, and 3) without
plant material. While the committee would prefer that the wall not be covered with
plant material, it was the consensus that the ivy-covered wall would be the least
visually obtrusive from the public right of way, provided it would not damage the
original brick of the historic building.

Compatibility of Replacement Windows and Storefront System

The committee fully supports the proposed changes to the windows and doors
as presented by the project team and shown on the revised plans, including 1) the
replacement of the existing non-historic windows at the second floor with double
hung wood windows with ogee lugs; 2) the painted divided-lite glazing systems for
the entry and storefront, which are in keeping with the historic storefronts found in
the Jackson Square Historic District; and 3) the painted divided-lite glazing system
proposed for the new addition that will ensure compatibility with the historic
building.
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* * *

On behalf of THD’s Planning & Zoning Committee, we appreciate the
opportunity to work with the project team to make design changes that will help to
maintain the historic integrity and character of the Jackson Square Historic District
and the contributing status of 809 Montgomery to the City’s first historic district.

Sincerely,

/
17\
4 II-:/ /’fv\ /{;
Stan Hayes
Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee
Telegraph Hill Dwellers

cC: President, Aaron Hyland aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com
Vice-President, Diane Matsuda dianematsuda@hotmail.com
Commissioner Kate Black kate.black@sfgov.org
Commissioner Ellen Johnck ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com
Commissioner Richard Johns RSEJohns@yahoo.com
Commissioner Jonathan Pearlman Johnathan.perlman.hpc@gmail.com
Commissioner Andrew Wolfram andrew@tefarch.com
Commission Secretary Commissions.Secretary@sfgov.org
Carolyn Kiernat kiernat@page-turnbull.com
Rebecca Salgado, Preservation Planner rebecca.salgado@sfgov.org
Tim Frye, Historic Preservation Officer tim.frye@sfgov.org

Supervisor Aaron Peskin, District 3 aaron.peskin@sfgov.org
THD Planning & Zoning Committee
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Stan Hayes

Co-Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee
Telegraph Hill Dwellers



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: THD COMMENTS - Case No. 2015-016326COA (Teatro ZinZanni)
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:26:11 PM

Attachments: THD Teatro ZinZanni HPC Itr FINAL 3-4-19.pdf

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

Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:23 PM

To: Vimr, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>

Cc: Aaron Hyland <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; dianematsuda@hotmail.com; Black, Kate (CPC)

<kate.black@sfgov.org>; ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com; rsejohns <RSEJohns@yahoo.com>;
Johnathan.perlman.hpc@gmail.com; Andrew Wolfram <andrew@tefarch.com>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Frye, Tim (CPC) <tim.frye@sfgov.org>; Jay Wallace

<jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>

Subject: THD COMMENTS - Case No. 2015-016326COA (Teatro ZinZanni)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.
Mr. Vimr -
For the upcoming HPC hearing, please find attached a comment letter from the Telegraph Hill
Dwellers regarding the above-referenced application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for the

proposed Teatro ZinZanni theater/hotel project.

We look forward to further discussions with the HPC, Planning staff, and the project team as the
planning process continues.

Sincerely,
Stan Hayes

Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee
Telegraph Hill Dwellers
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March 4, 2019

Jonathan Vimr T

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94103

Via e-mail <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>

Re:  Seawall Lots 323 & 324 (Teatro ZinZanni)
Case No. 2015-016326C0OA

Northeast Waterfront Historic District

Dear Mr. Vimr,

On behalf of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers (THD), we are pleased to submit the
following comments on the above-referenced application for a Certificate of
Appropriateness (COA) for the proposed Teatro ZinZanni theater/hotel project.
These comments both complement and supplement previous written and verbal
comments that THD has made to the Architectural Review Committee (ARC) of the
Historic Preservation Commission (HPC), the Waterfront Design Advisory Committee
(WDAC), project proponents, and others.

This project is proposed for a high-profile waterfront site that is literally at the
gateway to the Broadway corridor to North Beach and Chinatown. Because of this
and the sensitivity of its location within the Northeast Waterfront Historic District
and across from the Port’s National Register Embarcadero District, the success of the
project’s design and functioning is of especially high importance for all of us.

While we support a number of the design modifications that have been made
to the hotel over this project’s course of development, we offer the following
comments on the concerns that remain:

Proposed Location of Theater Structure Conflicts With General Plan

We urge you to reexamine the design and location of the theater structure
(particularly its glass enclosure), which would block the Vallejo Street view corridor
and right-of-way, creating General Plan conflicts that include the following:

¢ Conflict with the General Plan’s protection of view corridors by blocking
the Vallejo Street view corridor to the pier bulkhead and bay, which is
explicitly protected by the following policies of the General Plan’s
Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan (bolding and underlining added):

POLICY 10.2
Preserve and create view corridors which can link the City and the Bay.

POLICY 10.11

Maintain and enhance existing grade level view corridors to the Bay
particularly from Kearny, Broadway, Howard, Folsom, and Beale Streets,
and to the bulkhead buildings, significant architectural features, or
waterfront views from Bay, Front, Green, Vallejo, Market, Mission,
Harrison, Steuart, Bryant, Brannan, and Townsend Streets. Create new
view corridors at Pacific and Greenwich Street.

PO BOX 330159 SAMN FRAMNCISCO, CA 94133 - 415.273.1004 www.thd.arg

Founded in 19534 to perpetuate the histeric traditions of San Francisco's Telegraph Hill and to represent the community inferests of its residents and property owners.
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¢ Conflict with the General Plan’s strong presumption against vacating
street areas, which is stated in the following policy of the Urban Design
Element:

POLICY 2.8
Maintain a strong presumption against the giving up of street areas for
private ownership or use, or for construction of public buildings.

e Conflict with the General Plan’s limit on the extent and permanence of
street releases, which is stated in the following policy of the Urban Design
Element:

POLICY 2.10
Permit release of street areas, where such release is warranted, only in
the least extensive and least permanent manner appropriate to each case.

In its recitations about General Plan compliance, the draft approval motion
prepared by staff does not identify and discuss the above conflicts. Until it does, the
motion is flawed and incomplete, and should not be adopted as written.

In any event, to avoid the General Plan conflicts mentioned above, we urge that
the theater structure be relocated out of the Vallejo Street right-of-way, and by a
sufficient margin to avoid blocking or impeding the General Plan-protected Vallejo
Street view corridor. If the theater structure is permitted to remain in its proposed
location and thus requires vacation of public rights-of-way in conflict with General
Plan Policy 2.8, pursuant to Policy 2.10, Vallejo Street vacation should be temporary,
requiring it to revert back to the City, if and when Teatro ZinZanni ends or exits the
space.

Glass Enclosure Is Too Large

The extent of the above conflicts is made more severe by the large and
unnecessary size of the glass enclosure relative to the Spiegeltent, which contains the
actual theater performance area. As can be seen in project renderings, the glass
enclosure is materially larger than the Spiegeltent that it is intended to protect. The
extent of the General Plan conflicts is made still larger by the significant size of theater
accessory structures, particularly those in the backstage area.

The volume of the glass enclosure is more than three times larger than that of
the Spiegeltent. This size seems larger than necessary and creates a more severe
conflict with the General Plan, and thus should be reduced or eliminated.

Glass Enclosure Is Incompatible With Historic District

The theater glass enclosure is not like any other structure in the Northeast
Waterfront Historic District. As currently proposed, it is not sufficiently compatible to
“maintain the scale and basic character of the Northeast Waterfront Historic District”
(Planning Code, Article 10, Appendix D, Section 1). This compatibility is particularly
important given the project's prominent location at the edge of the historic district
and as seen from the heavily-traveled Embarcadero. An alternative, more appropriate
design is needed.
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A Sufficiently Large Sample of Materials Should be Inspected

Prior to approval of a COA, the HPC should ensure that its review of proposed
exterior materials is based upon on inspection of a sufficiently large sampling of
actual materials to provide an accurate sense of their in-place appearance. Given
their prominence, this is particularly important for the materials to be used in the
theater glass enclosure and other theater backstage structures that intrude into the
Vallejo Street view corridor and right of way.

* * *

We look forward to further discussions with the HPC, Planning staff, and the
project team about these and other issues that may arise as the planning process
continues.

Sincerely,

I.I' /{ ‘,/\ ;‘J"

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
Tim Frye tim.frye@sfgov.gov
Jay Wallace jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com
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

Subject: FW: Washington murals.

Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:23:08 PM

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

From: Andrew Wolfram <andrew@tomeliotfisch.com>
Sent: Saturday, March 02, 2019 11:12 AM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: Washington murals.

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Please forward to rest of HPC
Thanks
Andrew

Begin forwarded message:

From: Richard Rothman <rrothma@pacbell.net>

Date: March 2, 2019 at 8:48:39 AM PST

To: Jackie Fox <foxjb39@gmail.com>, Desiree Smith <desiree.smith@sfgov.org>, Tim
Frye <tim.frye@sfgov.org>, Andrew Wolfram <andrew@tefarch.com>

Subject: Washington murals.

Hello,

On Thursday night the mural reflection committee that was set up to talk about the
Arnautoff murals at George Washington voted that all of his murals should be painted
over.

The next step is to send this report to the Board of Education.

Best,
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

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Preventing and Reporting Sexual Abuse and Harassment at Work
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:22:32 PM

Attachments: Equal-Employment-Opportunity-Policy-Chinese.pdf

Equal-Employment-Opportunity-Policy-English.pdf
Equal-Employment-Opportunity-Policy-Spanish.pdf
image001.png

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

From: HRD Alert (HRD)
Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 8:01 AM
Subject: Preventing and Reporting Sexual Abuse and Harassment at Work

Dear Colleagues:

March is National Women’s History Month. It is a time to celebrate the accomplishments of
women across the nation. While we do, let us think about the great achievements that could
be realized if we ended harassment, including sexual harassment, at work. Sexual harassment
is not a “woman’s problem." The City and County of San Francisco (City) works to provide
every City employee with an environment free from harassment and discrimination. That is
why I'm asking you to join me in reviewing the attached City policy on Equal Employment
Opportunity. The policy is attached in English, Spanish and Chinese.

Personnel officers, please print and deliver this email and the appropriate flyer(s) to your
employees without computers or City email.

The policy states that every person has the right to a workplace free from unwelcome
conduct, based on being in a protected class. Harassment, including sexual harassment, is a
form of discrimination. Discrimination can interfere with an employee’s emotional and
physical well-being. The policy also prohibits retaliation against employees who complain
about harassment and discrimination.

Supervisors who witness or receive reports of harassment, discrimination, or retaliation have
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Department of Human Resources
Connecting People with Purpose
www.sfdhr.org

City and County of San Francisco
Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director
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Department of Human Resources
Connecting People with Purpose
www.sfdhr.org

City and County of San Francisco
Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) POLICY

Discrimination and Harassment Prohibited

Discriminating against, or harassing City and County of San Francisco (City) employees, applicants, or persons providing
services to the City by contract, including supervisory and non-supervisory employees, because of their sex, race, age, religion,
color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition (associated with cancer, a history of cancer,
or genetic characteristics), HIV/AIDS status, genetic information, marital status, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, military and veteran status, or other protected category under the law is prohibited and unlawful. For the
purpose of this policy only, the term “employees” includes unpaid interns and volunteers. Discrimination is the unequal treatment
of individuals with respect to the terms and conditions of their employment, based on their membership in a protected category.
Harassment is unwelcome visual, verbal, or physical conduct engaged in on account of a person's actual or perceived
membership in a protected category.

Sexual Harassment Prohibited
Sexual harassment is illegal under federal and state law. Federal law defines sexual harassment as unsolicited and unwelcome
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal, physical, visual, or written conduct of a sexual nature directed to
persons of the same or opposite sex when:
o submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition of employment;
e submission to or rejection of such conduct by an employee or applicant is used as a basis for employment decisions
affecting the employee or applicant; or
 such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an employee's work performance or creating an
intimidating, hostile, or otherwise offensive working environment.

State law defines sexual harassment as unwanted sexual advances or verbal, visual, or physical conduct of either a sexual
nature, or other conduct based on sex. These are some examples of sexual harassment:

e requests for sexual favors or unwanted sexual advances;

 offering employment benefits in exchange for sexual favors;

o making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances;

o verbal harassment (e.g., graphic comments, derogatory comments, sexually suggestive or obscene jokes or telephone

calls);

« physical harassment (e.g., assault, impeding or blocking movement, gestures, or any physical interference with normal
work or movements); or

o visual forms of harassment (e.g., leering, derogatory or sexually explicit emails, posters, letters, poems, graffiti, cartoons,
computer screen savers, or drawings).

Retaliation Prohibited
Retaliation against an individual who reports, files a complaint of, or otherwise opposes conduct he or she reasonably believes to
be unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, or assists in the investigation of a complaint, is also prohibited.

Responsibility for Responding to and Reporting Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation
All employees are encouraged to report discriminatory, harassing, or retaliatory behavior, whether directed at themselves or at
co-workers.

One South Van Ness Avenue, 4™ Floor @ San Francisco, CA 94103-5413 e (415) 557-4800





Supervisory employees are required to take corrective action if employees are subjected to discrimination, harassment, or
retaliation on the basis of a protected category. If a complaint is made to a supervisor, or if a supervisor becomes aware of
potential discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, the supervisor must immediately report it to the department's EEO or Human
Resources personnel. Any supervisor who receives a complaint of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation and fails to report it
may be subject to disciplinary action.

Departments must report all complaints of discrimination, harassment, and retaliation to the Human Resources Director within
five days of becoming aware of such complaints. Departments are responsible for ensuring that all employees know of and are
trained periodically regarding this policy.

Complaint Procedures
Any employee or applicant who believes he or she has been discriminated against, harassed, or retaliated against in violation of
this policy should promptly report the incident and the individuals involved. Complaints must be filed within 180 calendar days of
the date of the alleged discriminatory action, harassment, or retaliatory action, or the date the individual should have first become
aware of a violation. For information or to file a complaint, contact any of the following:

. the employee's supervisor or any other supervisor or manager;

. the department's EEO or Human Resources personnel;

. the City’s Department of Human Resources, EEQO Division located at 1 South Van Ness Avenue,

4th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103, or online at www.sfdhr.org;
. the City’'s EEO Helpline at (415) 557-4900 or (415) 557-4810 (TTY); or
. SFMTA employees may also contact SFMTA’s EEO Officer, Virginia Harmon, at (415) 701-4404 or EEO@sfmta.com

The Human Resources Director is responsible for the investigation and resolution of all discrimination, harassment, and
retaliation complaints. All complaints are kept confidential (to the extent possible); responded to timely; investigated (if necessary)
by qualified personnel in a timely and impartial manner; and documented and tracked. If the Human Resources Director
determines that discrimination, harassment, or retaliation occurred, the City will take appropriate remedial action.

The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing
(DFEH) also investigate and prosecute employment discrimination, harassment, and retaliation complaints. Employees who
believe that they have been discriminated against, harassed, or retaliated against may file a complaint with either of these
agencies using the following contact information:
«EEOC: (800) 669-4000 or TTY (800) 669-6820; or online at www.eeoc.gov
« DFEH: (800) 884-1684 or TTY (800) 700-2320; or online at www.dfeh.ca.gov

Remedies available through these agencies include hiring or reinstatement, back pay or promotion, fines or damages for
emotional distress, and changes in the policies or practices of the employer.

Discipline

Any employee, supervisor, or agent of the City found to have engaged in conduct in violation of this policy may be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. An employee may be subject to discipline for engaging in harassing conduct
that does not meet the definition of harassment under the law, but that, if repeated or allowed to continue, might meet that
definition.

Para mayor informacion sobre el hostigamiento en el trabajo: (415) 557-4900.
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Department of Human Resources
Connecting People with Purpose
www.sfdhr.org

City and County of San Francisco
Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

POLITICA DE IGUALDAD EN LA OPORTUNIDAD DE EMPLEO

Discriminacion y Acoso Prohibido

Discriminar o0 acosar a empleados, solicitantes o personas que prestan servicios a la Ciudad y Condado de San Francisco
(Ciudad) bajo contrato, incluyendo supervisores y empleados sin responsabilidad de supervision, debido a su sexo, raza, edad,
religion, color, origen nacional, ascendencia, discapacidad fisica 0 mental, condicién médica (asociada con cancer, historial de
cancer, o caracteristicas genéticas), condicion de VIH/SIDA, informacion genética, estado civil, orientacion sexual, género,
identidad de género, expresidn de género, estado militar y estado veterano, u otra categoria protegida por ley esta prohibido y es
ilegal. Para el proposito de esta politica, el término “empleados” incluye a los internos sin goce de sueldo y a los voluntarios,
Unicamente. Discriminacion es el tratamiento desigual a individuos con respecto a los términos y condiciones de su empleo,
basado en su pertenencia a una categoria protegida. El acoso es conducta no deseada ya sea visual, verbal o fisica debido a la
pertenencia real o percibida de una persona en una categoria protegida.

Acoso Sexual Prohibido
El acoso sexual es ilegal bajo las leyes federales y estatales. La ley federal define el acoso sexual como avances sexuales no
solicitados y no deseados, el solicitar favores sexuales y otra conducta de una naturaleza sexual ya sea verbal, fisica, visual o
escrita dirigida a las personas del sexo opuesto o del mismo sexo cuando:
e |a sumision a tal conducta es hecha ya sea explicita o implicitamente como un término o condicion de empleo;
e la sumision a/o rechazo de dicha conducta por parte de un empleado o solicitante se utiliza como base para tomar
decisiones laborales afectando al empleado o solicitante, o
e tal conducta tiene el propésito o efecto de interferir irrazonablemente con el desempefio laboral de un empleado o
crea un ambiente de trabajo intimidante, hostil o de otra manera ofensivo.

La ley estatal define el acoso sexual como avances sexuales no deseados o conducta verbal, visual o fisica de una naturaleza

sexual. Estos son algunos ejemplos de acoso sexual:

solicitud de favores sexuales o avances sexuales no deseados;

ofrecer beneficios laborales a cambio de favores sexuales;

amenazar con represalias después de una respuesta negativa a los avances sexuales;

acoso verbal (por ejemplo: comentarios graficos, comentarios despectivos, bromas sexualmente sugestivas u

obscenas o llamadas telefénicas);

e acoso fisico (por ejemplo: asalto, impedir o bloquear el movimiento, gestos o cualquier interferencia fisica con el
trabajo normal 0 movimiento); o

e Las formas de acoso visual (por ejemplo: miradas lascivas, correos electronicos despectivos o sexualmente
explicitos, carteles, cartas, poemas, graffiti, dibujos animados, protectores de pantalla de la computadora o dibujos).

La Represalia Prohibida

La represalia contra un individuo que denuncia el acoso, presenta una queja de acoso, 0 que de otra manera se opone a la
conducta que razonablemente cree que es discriminacion ilegal, acoso o represalias, 0 ayuda en una investigacion de una
queja, también esta prohibida.

La Responsabilidad de Responder aly Denunciar la Discriminacion, el Acoso, y la Represalia

Se incita a todos los empleados a denunciar el acoso, comportamiento discriminatorio o de represalia, ya sea dirigida a ellos
mismos 0 a sus comparieros de trabajo. Los supervisores estan obligados a tomar medidas correctivas si los empleados estan
sometidos al acoso, la discriminacion o la represalia en base de una categoria protegida.
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Si a un supervisor se le presenta una queja de acoso, o el supervisor se entera de alguna discriminacion, acoso o represalia, €l
supervisor debe reportarlo inmediatamente a la Oficina de Igualdad en la Oportunidad de Empleo (EEO) del departamento o al
jefe de personal. Cualquier supervisor que recibe una queja de acoso, discriminacidn o represalia y no la reporta puede ser
sujeto a accion disciplinaria. Los departamentos deben reportar todas las denuncias de acoso, discriminacion y represalia al
Director de Recursos Humanos dentro de cinco dias que se enteraron de tales quejas. Los departamentos son responsables de
asegurar que todos los empleados tengan conocimiento de y que reciban capacitacion periédica relacionada con esta politica.

Procedimientos de Queja

Cualquier empleado que cree que él o ella ha sido discriminado, acosado o recibido represalias en violacion de esta politica
debe denunciar rapidamente los hechos del incidente y las personas involucradas. Las quejas deben ser presentadas 180 dias
de la fecha de la accion discriminatoria, de acoso o represalia o la fecha cuando el individuo primero debié estar enterado de
una violacién. Para mayor informacion o para presentar una queja, comuniquese con cualquiera de los siguientes:

e El supervisor del empleado u otro superior;

e El oficial del departamento de EEO o el jefe de Recursos Humanos;

e La Divisién de la Ciudad de EEO esta en el Departamento de Recursos Humanos ubicado en 1 South Van Ness
Avenue, piso 4, San Francisco, CA 94103 o en linea en: www.sfdhr.org;

e Lalinea de Ayuda de EEO es (415) 557-4900 o (415) 557-4810 (TTY); 0

e Empleados de SFMTA también pueden comunicarse con la representante EEO de la SFMTA, Virginia Harmon, al
(415) 701-4404 o EEO@sfmta.com.

La Directora de Recursos Humanos es responsable por la investigacion y resolucion de todas las quejas de discriminacion,
acoso y represalias. Todas las quejas son confidenciales (a la medida de lo posible); contestadas oportunamente; investigadas
(si es necesario) por personal calificado de manera oportuna e imparcial; documentadas y seguidas. Si la Directora de Recursos
Humanos determina que el acoso, la discriminacion, o represalia ha sucedido, la Ciudad tomara las medidas correctivas
apropiadas.

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) (EE.UU. La Comisién de Igualdad en la Oportunidad de Empleo) y el
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) (Departamento de California de Empleo y Vivienda Justa)
también investigan y enjuician denuncias de acoso, la discriminacion, y represalia en el empleo. Los empleados que creen que
han sido acosados, discriminados, o represaliado pueden presentar una queja comunicandose con cualquiera de éstas
agencias utilizando la siguiente informacion:

e EEOC: (800) 669-4000 0 TTY (800) 669-6820, 0 en linea en www.eeoc.gov

e DFEH: (800) 884-1684 o TTY (800) 700-2320, 0 en linea en www.dfeh.ca.gov

Los soluciones disponibles a través de estas agencias incluyen la contratacion o la reincorporacién laboral, el pago retroactivo o
ascenso, multas o dafios y perjuicios por angustia emocional, y cambios a las politicas o practicas del empleador.

Disciplina
Cualquier empleado, supervisor 0 agente de la Ciudad que se le compruebe que participd en acoso ilegal, discriminacion o
represalia, puede ser sujeto a accion disciplinaria hasta e incluyendo el despido. Un empleado puede ser sujeto a medidas

disciplinarias por participar en conducta de acoso que no cumple con la definicion de acoso bajo las leyes federales y estatales,
pero que si se repite o permite que continte podria satisfacer dicha definicion.

Para mayor informacion sobre la discriminacion, el acoso y represalias en el trabajo: (415) 557-4900.
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special responsibilities. They must immediately report these complaints to the department
personnel officer, department EEO Manager, or the Department of Human Resources EEO
Division. Employees who have been harassed, or have seen this conduct, should report it to
any supervisor, department personnel officer, department EEO officer or the Department of
Human Resources EEO Division. Below is the link to DHR’s EEO Division website for contact
information, policies, and other resources:

http://sfdhr.org/equal-emplovment-opportunit

Thank you for reviewing the policy, and for your commitment to a harassment-free workplace.

Sincerely,

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director
Department of Human Resources

One South Van Ness Ave., 41" Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103

Website: www.sfdhr.org

Connecting People with Purpose

Please do not reply to this message. Replies to this message are routed to an unmonitored mailbox.
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW WATERFRONT SITE AS PART OF
1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN

Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:22:04 PM

Attachments: 3.4.19 Seawall Lot 330.pdf

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

Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 8:16 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW WATERFRONT SITE AS
PART OF 1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, March 4, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW

WATERFRONT SITE AS PART OF 1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN

Mayor proposes site on Embarcadero for 200 bed SAFE Navigation Center to provide shelter
and services for homeless residents, particularly those living on the waterfront for four years

San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced a proposal to build a new
200-bed SAFE Navigation Center on the San Francisco waterfront to provide temporary
housing and services for unsheltered residents. The site, at Seawall Lot 330 on the
Embarcadero, is currently a parking lot across the street from Piers 30-32 and is owned by the
Port of San Francisco.

In October, Mayor Breed announced a plan to add 1,000 new shelter beds by 2020, with 500
of them being built by this summer. Since then, the City has added 212 new beds at two new
Navigation Centers and City staff has been working to identify more sites. The proposed
waterfront site would be the Mayor’s first SAFE Navigation Center, which take the best
practices and lessons learned from prior Navigation Centers, allowing guests to bring their
partners, pets, and belongings with them and providing support to connect residents with
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LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, March 4, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW WATERFRONT
SITE AS PART OF 1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN

Mayor proposes site on Embarcadero for 200 bed SAFE Navigation Center to provide shelter
and services for homeless residents, particularly those living on the waterfront for four years

San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced a proposal to build a new
200-bed SAFE Navigation Center on the San Francisco waterfront to provide temporary housing
and services for unsheltered residents. The site, at Seawall Lot 330 on the Embarcadero, is
currently a parking lot across the street from Piers 30-32 and is owned by the Port of San
Francisco.

In October, Mayor Breed announced a plan to add 1,000 new shelter beds by 2020, with 500 of
them being built by this summer. Since then, the City has added 212 new beds at two new
Navigation Centers and City staff has been working to identify more sites. The proposed
waterfront site would be the Mayor’s first SAFE Navigation Center, which take the best
practices and lessons learned from prior Navigation Centers, allowing guests to bring their
partners, pets, and belongings with them and providing support to connect residents with services
and permanent housing in a setting with 24/7 access. SAFE Navigation Centers are designed to
be rapidly implementable and more cost-effective than traditional navigation centers. SAFE
Navigation Centers will accept placements with a priority for people in the vicinity of the site,
and will employ robust good neighbor policies and 24-hour security.

“To help those living on our streets, we need to meet people with shelters and services where
they are,” said Mayor Breed. “The waterfront has a number of challenges around homelessness,
and by bringing this SAFE Navigation Center to the area, we can work to address these
challenges and get our unsheltered residents on a path to housing and stability.”

The funding for the SAFE Navigation Center on the Embarcadero will come from the recently
approved Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) funding, which will provide both
capital and operational costs. The proposal is to use this location for four years while the Port
works with the community on the long-term development of the site. Mayor Breed’s ordinance
to declare a Shelter Crisis, which will help expedite the creation of new shelters citywide, was
approved by both the Building Inspection Commission and the Planning Commission last week
and is pending at the Board of Supervisors.

“This SAFE Navigation Center is an opportunity for us to address the urgent and growing
challenge of homelessness in the Rincon Hill, South Beach and Mission Bay communities,” said
Supervisor Matt Haney, who represents District 6 on the Board of Supervisors. “We know that

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
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LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

ending street homelessness requires us to build more shelter beds with high-quality wrap around
services. I’'m committed to working closely with residents, businesses, and Mayor Breed to
ensure that we move forward collaboratively in a way that addresses community needs and
improves quality of life for everyone in the neighborhood.”

The Port Commission will hold an informational hearing on the use of Seawall Lot 330 as a
SAFE Navigation Center in March. The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
and the Port will also host community meetings on the proposal. The Port Commission will
consider action in April. If approved by the Port Commission, San Francisco Public Works will
construct the facility, which will open by the end of the summer.

“The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing and the Port had a very positive
experience working with the Dogpatch community, including the Dogpatch Neighborhood
Association, on the Central Waterfront Navigation Center,” said Elaine Forbes, Executive
Director of the Port of San Francisco. “I look forward to working with the South Beach
community and am proud the Port can play a part in supporting Mayor Breed’s efforts to tackle
the crisis of homelessness in our City.”

The Dogpatch Neighborhood Association recently voted to urge the Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing and the Port to extend the term of the Central Waterfront
Navigation Center beyond the initial three-year term because the facility has become a vital part
of the neighborhood.

The City, through the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, currently offers
temporary shelter to 2,500 people per night through traditional shelters, stabilization beds,
Navigation Centers and transitional housing. In addition, they maintain housing for 9,000 people
through permanent supportive housing.

“Seawall Lot 330 offers an excellent opportunity to create a SAFE Navigation Center to serve
the needs of homeless people in northeastern San Francisco,” said Jeff Kositsky, Director of the
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “We hope to replicate the successful
partnership we had with the Port and the Dogpatch community at our Central Waterfront site.”
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services and permanent housing in a setting with 24/7 access. SAFE Navigation Centers are
designed to be rapidly implementable and more cost-effective than traditional navigation
centers. SAFE Navigation Centers will accept placements with a priority for people in the
vicinity of the site, and will employ robust good neighbor policies and 24-hour security.

“To help those living on our streets, we need to meet people with shelters and services where
they are,” said Mayor Breed. “The waterfront has a number of challenges around
homelessness, and by bringing this SAFE Navigation Center to the area, we can work to
address these challenges and get our unsheltered residents on a path to housing and stability.”

The funding for the SAFE Navigation Center on the Embarcadero will come from the recently
approved Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) funding, which will provide both
capital and operational costs. The proposal is to use this location for four years while the Port
works with the community on the long-term development of the site. Mayor Breed’s
ordinance to declare a Shelter Crisis, which will help expedite the creation of new shelters
citywide, was approved by both the Building Inspection Commission and the Planning
Commission last week and is pending at the Board of Supervisors.

“This SAFE Navigation Center is an opportunity for us to address the urgent and growing
challenge of homelessness in the Rincon Hill, South Beach and Mission Bay communities,”
said Supervisor Matt Haney, who represents District 6 on the Board of Supervisors. “We know
that ending street homelessness requires us to build more shelter beds with high-quality wrap
around services. ’'m committed to working closely with residents, businesses, and Mayor
Breed to ensure that we move forward collaboratively in a way that addresses community
needs and improves quality of life for everyone in the neighborhood.”

The Port Commission will hold an informational hearing on the use of Seawall Lot 330 as a
SAFE Navigation Center in March. The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
and the Port will also host community meetings on the proposal. The Port Commission will
consider action in April. If approved by the Port Commission, San Francisco Public Works
will construct the facility, which will open by the end of the summer.

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
community and am proud the Port can play a part in supporting Mayor Breed’s efforts to
tackle the crisis of homelessness in our City.”

The Dogpatch Neighborhood Association recently voted to urge the Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing and the Port to extend the term of the Central
Waterfront Navigation Center beyond the initial three-year term because the facility has
become a vital part of the neighborhood.

The City, through the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, currently offers
temporary shelter to 2,500 people per night through traditional shelters, stabilization beds,
Navigation Centers and transitional housing. In addition, they maintain housing for 9,000
people through permanent supportive housing.

“Seawall Lot 330 offers an excellent opportunity to create a SAFE Navigation Center to serve



the needs of homeless people in northeastern San Francisco,” said Jeff Kositsky, Director of
the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “We hope to replicate the
successful partnership we had with the Port and the Dogpatch community at our Central
Waterfront site.”
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON PROGRESS OF VOLUNTARY AGREEMENT FOR TUOLUMNE
RIVER

Date: Friday, March 01, 2019 2:02:28 PM

Attachments: 03.01.19 Voluntary Agreement Settlement.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, March 01, 2019 2:01 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON PROGRESS OF VOLUNTARY AGREEMENT
FOR TUOLUMNE RIVER

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, March 1, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** STATEMENT***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON PROGRESS OF VOLUNTARY
AGREEMENT FOR TUOLUMNE RIVER

San Francisco, CA— Mayor London Breed has issued the following statement on the updated
Voluntary Agreement solution for Tuolumne River submitted to the State Water Resources
Control Board. The City and its partners developed the agreement as an alternative to the
updated Bay Delta Plan approved by the State Water Resources Control Board in December.

“Today, San Francisco joined a broad coalition of stakeholders in support of advancing the
Voluntary Agreement solution for the Tuolumne River. The plans laid out today, which
include specific costs and timelines for restoration projects on the river, are further evidence
that we remain fully committed to that cause.

I have always maintained that a Voluntary Agreement between stakeholders is the best option
to quickly advance solutions that we know will promote a healthy ecosystem that supports the
fish and wildlife on the Tuolumne River.
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LoONDON N. BREED
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
Voluntary Agreement solution for the Tuolumne River. The plans laid out today, which include
specific costs and timelines for restoration projects on the river, are further evidence that we
remain fully committed to that cause.

| have always maintained that a Voluntary Agreement between stakeholders is the best option to
quickly advance solutions that we know will promote a healthy ecosystem that supports the fish
and wildlife on the Tuolumne River.

There is still much more work to be done and I pledge that San Francisco will continue our
commitment to work with the State Water Board and our environmental stakeholders.

| want to thank Governor Gavin Newsom and his team for their leadership in advancing these
important and complex discussions over the past two months. | also want to thank Senator
Dianne Feinstein, various environmental organizations, the irrigation districts, and numerous
other public and private entities for their support.”
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY TOWN HALLS AND
NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS

Date: Friday, March 01, 2019 11:00:36 AM

Attachments: 2.28.19 Town Halls.pdf

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

Sent: Thursday, February 28, 2019 2:40 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY TOWN HALLS
AND NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, February 28, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY
TOWN HALLS AND NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS

Over the coming months, Mayor Breed will continue her outreach to residents throughout San
Francisco to hear and address their concerns about the issues facing the City

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a series of upcoming Town
Halls to discuss issues of importance directly with residents of San Francisco.

Additionally, Mayor Breed’s Office of Neighborhood Services (MONS) will begin holding
regular office hours in neighborhoods throughout San Francisco to make it easier for residents
to have direct access to her office and receive help navigating the City government.

“I hear all the time from people who feel like City Hall is disconnected from what is
happening in our neighborhoods, which is why I spend so much time out in our communities
meeting with people directly,” said Mayor Breed. “Starting today, we are taking that to the
next level. Whether it is our series of Town Halls or my staff’s community office hours, my
office is going to meet people where they are to help with whatever issue they may have.”
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LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, February 28, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*x* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY TOWN
HALLS AND NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS

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
regular office hours in neighborhoods throughout San Francisco to make it easier for residents to
have direct access to her office and receive help navigating the City government.

“I hear all the time from people who feel like City Hall is disconnected from what is happening
in our neighborhoods, which is why I spend so much time out in our communities meeting with
people directly,” said Mayor Breed. “Starting today, we are taking that to the next level. Whether
it is our series of Town Halls or my staff’s community office hours, my office is going to meet
people where they are to help with whatever issue they may have.”

The first Town Hall discussion is scheduled for Monday, March 11'" at 6:30pm at the San
Francisco LGBT Center, located at 1800 Market Street. The second Town Hall will be held in
Mission Bay on Monday, May 6th. Residents can RSVP at SFMayor.org/townhall.

Mayor Breed’s Office of Neighborhood Services will begin holding regular office hours with
staff representatives and trained volunteers, beginning in March in the Richmond, Sunset,
Bayview Hunters Point, and Excelsior districts and later expanding citywide. For more
information, visit SEMayor.org/mons.
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The first Town Hall discussion is scheduled for Monday, March 1 1th at 6:30pm at the San
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
information, visit SEFMayor.org/mons.
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PERMITTING OF HUNDREDS OF NEW IN-
LAW UNITS, CLEARANCE OF APPLICATION BACKLOG

Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 11:51:55 AM

Attachments: 2.28.19 ADU Six Month Progress.pdf

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

Sent: Thursday, February 28, 2019 11:50 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PERMITTING OF HUNDREDS
OF NEW IN-LAW UNITS, CLEARANCE OF APPLICATION BACKLOG

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, February 28, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PERMITTING OF
HUNDREDS OF NEW IN-LAW UNITS, CLEARANCE OF
APPLICATION BACKLOG

In the six months since Mayor Breed issued Executive Directive to accelerate the approval of
in-law units, the city has permitted more in-law units than in the previous three years
combined

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that in the six months since
she issued an Executive Directive to accelerate the approvals of Accessory Dwelling Units
(ADUs), also known as in-law units, the City has cleared its application backlog. As a result of
this action, the City permitted more in-law units than it did in the previous three years when
the City’s in-law program was first launched.

The Executive Directive Mayor Breed issued at the end of August called for the backlog of
919 units waiting for approval to be cleared and for all new applications to acted on within
four months. It also called on City departments to set clear, objective code standards, and work
to improve the application process for people looking to build in-law units. Since then, 439 of
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

In the six months since Mayor Breed issued Executive Directive to accelerate the approval of in-
law units, the city has permitted more in-law units than in the previous three years combined

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that in the six months since
she issued an Executive Directive to accelerate the approvals of Accessory Dwelling Units
(ADUs), also known as in-law units, the City has cleared its application backlog. As a result of
this action, the City permitted more in-law units than it did in the previous three years when the
City’s in-law program was first launched.

The Executive Directive Mayor Breed issued at the end of August called for the backlog of 919
units waiting for approval to be cleared and for all new applications to acted on within four
months. It also called on City departments to set clear, objective code standards, and work to
improve the application process for people looking to build in-law units. Since then, 439 of the
backlogged in-law units have been permitted, over 90% of which are subject to rent-control, and
the rest of the applications have been reviewed by the relevant departments and are awaiting
responses from the applicants.

“We have made good progress to get this housing approved faster, and we will continue to work
to encourage applicants to come forward to build new in-law units,” said Mayor London Breed.
“This is just a first step. I will not let our bureaucracy stand in the way of building more housing,
especially new rent-controlled housing, because we need more places for people to live in San
Francisco. Whether it’s streamlining the approval process or eliminating permitting fees, we can
and will do more to get more housing built in our neighborhoods.”

Since 2014, the City departments involved in permitting housing did not have clear and
consistent standards on what is needed to add new ADU units to existing single family homes
and apartment buildings. Instead, departments preferred to handle these complex applications on
a case-by-case basis, resulting in unnecessarily long review periods, inconsistencies in direction
to project applicants, and a large backlog of permit applications.

Since the Executive Directive was issued, the City has received applications for 206 new units,
all of which were reviewed within the four-month timeframe. Of those new applications, 18 units
have so far been approved, while the remainder have been reviewed and are awaiting responses
from the applicants. Mayor Breed made the announcement today at a Mission Housing
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Development Corp. property where new in-law units are planned to be created from former
garages.

“Mission Housing is excited to lead the charge for the Affordable Housing Community as we
increase our affordable housing stock by what could be hundreds of new units converted from
our existing Garages,” said Sam Moss, Executive Director of Mission Housing. “During times
such as these, in the midst of this housing shortage crisis, it’s important that every neighborhood
prioritizes new housing, and thanks to Mayor Breed’s leadership we’re one step closer to solving
the housing crisis. Mission Housing Development Corp. is in the business of housing San
Francisco’s low income community not its cars.”

As part of the Mayor’s acceleration effort, several process improvements were made by the City
departments involved in issuing permit approvals. A streamlined “roundtable” review process
was introduced where multiple reviewing departments, including the Planning Department,
Department of Building Inspection (DBI), Fire Department, San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission, and the Department of Public Works came together concurrently to review
applications. This improvement allowed all agencies to issue comments or requests for plan
revisions to ADU applicants all at once, instead of the former linear process.

Efforts to clarify and expedite the application process have benefited from the addition of public
services and documents now available to applicants, including:
e Optional meetings before filing with the Planning, Building, and Fire Departments,
allowing for early multi-agency collaboration and identification of red flags;
e Public information sessions on ADUs for design professionals and homeowners;
e Dedicated department staff to provide informative and consistent advice to applicants;
e Both new and updated public information documents, including a first-ever multi-agency
“ADU Checklist” to outline all requirements and submittal guidelines for each agency;
e An updated “ADU Handbook” to reflect legislative updates and requirements for
permitting.

The Mayor recently introduced legislation to eliminate DBI permitting fees for ADUs and 100%
affordable housing projects. Permitting fees are a significant part of ADU project costs and fees
on 100% affordable housing can range upwards of $100,000-$150,000 per project.

"We are happy to see Mayor Breed and Mission Housing continue to find ways to increase
affordable housing opportunities,” said Dora Orante on behalf of the tenants at Abel Gonzales.
"We're also grateful for the creative ways housing can be designed to help others live in one of
these units."

Further information about the City of San Francisco’s Accessory Dwelling Unit program is
available online at sfdbi.org/adu.
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the backlogged in-law units have been permitted, over 90% of which are subject to rent-
control, and the rest of the applications have been reviewed by the relevant departments and
are awaiting responses from the applicants.

“We have made good progress to get this housing approved faster, and we will continue to
work to encourage applicants to come forward to build new in-law units,” said Mayor London
Breed. “This is just a first step. I will not let our bureaucracy stand in the way of building
more housing, especially new rent-controlled housing, because we need more places for
people to live in San Francisco. Whether it’s streamlining the approval process or eliminating
permitting fees, we can and will do more to get more housing built in our neighborhoods.”

Since 2014, the City departments involved in permitting housing did not have clear and
consistent standards on what is needed to add new ADU units to existing single family homes
and apartment buildings. Instead, departments preferred to handle these complex applications
on a case-by-case basis, resulting in unnecessarily long review periods, inconsistencies in
direction to project applicants, and a large backlog of permit applications.

Since the Executive Directive was issued, the City has received applications for 206 new units,
all of which were reviewed within the four-month timeframe. Of those new applications, 18
units have so far been approved, while the remainder have been reviewed and are awaiting
responses from the applicants. Mayor Breed made the announcement today at a Mission
Housing Development Corp. property where new in-law units are planned to be created from
former garages.

“Mission Housing is excited to lead the charge for the Affordable Housing Community as we
increase our affordable housing stock by what could be hundreds of new units converted from
our existing Garages,” said Sam Moss, Executive Director of Mission Housing. “During times
such as these, in the midst of this housing shortage crisis, it’s important that every
neighborhood prioritizes new housing, and thanks to Mayor Breed’s leadership we’re one step
closer to solving the housing crisis. Mission Housing Development Corp. is in the business of
housing San Francisco’s low income community, not its cars.”

As part of the Mayor’s acceleration effort, several process improvements were made by the
City departments involved in issuing permit approvals. A streamlined “roundtable” review
process was introduced where multiple reviewing departments, including the Planning
Department, Department of Building Inspection (DBI), Fire Department, San Francisco Public
Utilities Commission, and the Department of Public Works came together concurrently to
review applications. This improvement allowed all agencies to issue comments or requests for
plan revisions to ADU applicants at once, instead of the former linear process.

Efforts to clarify and expedite the application process have benefited from the addition of
public services and documents now available to applicants, including:
¢ Optional meetings before filing with the Planning, Building, and Fire Departments,

allowing for early multi-agency collaboration and identification of red flags;

¢ Public information sessions on ADUs for design professionals and homeowners;

o Dedicated department staff to provide informative and consistent advice to applicants;

¢ Both new and updated public information documents, including a first-ever multi-
agency “ADU Checklist” to outline all requirements and submittal guidelines for each
agency,



An updated “ADU Handbook” to reflect legislative updates and requirements for
permitting.

The Mayor recently introduced legislation to eliminate DBI permitting fees for ADUs and
100% affordable housing projects. Permitting fees are a significant part of ADU project costs
and fees on 100% affordable housing can range upwards of $100,000-$150,000 per project.

"We are happy to see Mayor Breed and Mission Housing continue to find ways to increase
affordable housing opportunities," said Dora Orante on behalf of the tenants at Abel Gonzales.
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

Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:13:46 AM

Attachments: 2016-014870ENV-CEOQA Checklist with PTR.pdf

2018-014945ENV-CEQA Checklist and PTR Form.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 3:55 PM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: Categorical Exemptions

Hello,
Please forward the attached to the HPC Commuissioners.

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

736 Hyde Street 0300010

Case No. Permit No.

2016-014870ENV 201706129054

[] Addition/ [[] pemoilition (requires HRE for Il New
Alteration Category B Building) Construction

Project description for Planning Department approval.

The proposed project site is an approximate 2,187-square-foot (sf), rectangular-shaped lot located on the east
side of Hyde Street within the block bounded by Sutter Street, Hyde Street, Post Street and Leavenworth Street
in the Downtown/Civic Center Neighborhood. It is also located within the National Register-Lower Nob Hill
Apartment Hotel Historic District. The single lot is 25 feet in width and extends east a distance of about 87.5 feet
from the front property line at Hyde Street to the rear property line. The paved lot is currently vacant and used for
private automobile parking.

The proposed project would construct a new 5-story, 50-foot tall, 8,040-gross-square-foot (gsf), multi-family
residential building containing nine dwelling units. Access to the building’s dwelling units would be via entry on
Hyde Street. The project would provide 375 sf of rear yard open area as usable common open space for seven
units and about 380 sf of private open space that would be provided for two units at a proposed roof deck. No
vehicle parking is proposed. The project would provide nine, class 1 residential bicycle parking spaces accessed
through the lobby on the first floor. The project would request the SFMTA to install two class 2 on-street bicycle
spaces in a dual bike rack on Hyde Street. One existing curb cut would be

CONTINUED ON ADDITIONAL PAGE

STEP 1: EXEMPTION CLASS

*Note: If neither class applies, an Environmental Evaluation Application is required.*

|:| Class 1 - Existing Facilities. Interior and exterior alterations; additions under 10,000 sq. ft.

|:| Class 3 - New Construction. Up to three new single-family residences or six dwelling units in one
building; commercial/office structures; utility extensions; change of use under 10,000 sq. ft. if principally
permitted or with a CU.

. Class 32 - In-Fill Development. New Construction of seven or more units or additions greater than
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

D Class
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

Comments and Planner Signature (optional): Sherie George
Please see attached CEQA IMPACTS page.
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STEP 3: PROPERTY STATUS - HISTORIC RESOURCE
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER

PROPERTY IS ONE OF THE FOLLOWING: (refer to Parcel Information Map)

. Category A: Known Historical Resource. GO TO STEP 5.

|:| Category B: Potential Historical Resource (over 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 4.

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

- See Preservation Team Review form dated 1/29/2019 for more detailed description how the proposed
project is compatible with the character of the historic district.

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
|:| |:| Reclassify to Category A |:| Reclassify to Category C
a. Per HRER dated (attach HRER)

b. Other (specify):

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

Preservation Planner Signature: Justin Greving

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
Building Permit Sherie George
If Discretionary Review before the Planning Commission is requested, 02/25/2019

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
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Full Project Description

The proposed project site is an approximate 2,187-square-foot (sf), rectangular-shaped lot located on the east
side of Hyde Street within the block bounded by Sutter Street, Hyde Street, Post Street and Leavenworth Street
in the Downtown/Civic Center Neighborhood. It is also located within the National Register-Lower Nob Hill
Apartment Hotel Historic District. The single lot is 25 feet in width and extends east a distance of about 87.5
feet from the front property line at Hyde Street to the rear property line. The paved lot is currently vacant and
used for private automobile parking.

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
vehicle parking is proposed. The project would provide nine, class 1 residential bicycle parking spaces
accessed through the lobby on the first floor. The project would request the SFMTA to install two class 2
on-street bicycle spaces in a dual bike rack on Hyde Street. One existing curb cut would be removed, and two
new street trees would be provided on Hyde Street.

The project would require excavation of approximately 150 cubic yards of soil for grading and construction of
the main structural mat slab foundation. Additional support would be gained by drilled-in-place concrete piers
extending beyond the loose near surface soils. Excavation depths across the building site would be about 3
feet. The anticipated pier depths are estimated to be in the order of at least 15 feet into competent materials.
Construction activities would be completed in succeeding phases over approximately 15 months.
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CEQA IMPACTS CONTINUED

Hazardous Materials. A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (site assessment) was completed in June
2017 by John Carver Consulting.! The project sponsor enrolled in the Maher Ordinance program (Article 22A
of the health code) through the Department of Public Health (health department) in August 2017.2 An approval
of the site assessment for the proposed project was issued on March 6, 2018 by the health department.? This
approval memo requested additional information from the project sponsor and a site characterization workplan
be submitted to the health department. A Workplan for Subsurface Investigation was completed in March 2018
by John Carver Consulting.* The project sponsor received approval of the site characterization work plan in
April 2, 2018 from the health department.>

Transportation. The project site is currently used as a private parking lot. The proposed project would
construct a new residential building containing nine dwelling units. Pedestrian access would be located from
Hyde Street. There would be no vehicle access or off-street parking constructed as part of the proposed
project. The department completed a Transportation Study Determination on December 5, 2016 and concluded
a transportation impact study would not be required for the proposed project.® The proposed project was
analyzed under CEQA section 20199 and meets the screening criteria of a project that would not result in a
significant transportation impact under the vehicle miles traveled metric, either individually or cumulatively.”
NO FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED.

Noise. Proposed project construction activities would temporarily and intermittently increase noise and
possibly vibration levels around the project site throughout the construction period. Such occurrences would
be limited to certain hours of the day. Construction noise is regulated by the San Francisco Noise Ordinance
(Article 29 of the City Police Code). Use of vibration construction equipment/devices, or substantial, heavy
sources of vibration for construction is not proposed.2 NO FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED.

Archeological Resources. A Geotechnical Investigation was prepared in August 2017 by GeoForensics, Inc.?
An Environmental Planning Preliminary Archeological Review completed on November 27, 2017 determined
that no CEQA-significant archeological resources are expected within the project-affected soils.’® NO
FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED.

Historic Resources: A Historic Resource Evaluation Part 2 was prepared by Tim Kelley Consulting, LLC in
June 2016."" The department completed a Preservation Team Review Form on January 29, 2019 and
determined that new work will be compatible with, and will not affect, the integrity of the National Register-
Lower Nob Hill Apartment Hotel Historic District.'> NO FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED.

Neighborhood Notice. A Notice of Project Receiving Environmental Review was sent on November 29, 2017,
to owners and occupants within 300 feet of the project site. No public comment concerning the environmental
effects of the proposed project was received.

"John Carver Consulting, Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment — 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, June 19, 2017.
2 San Francisco Department of Public Health, Maher Ordinance Application for 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, August 7, 2017.
3 San Francisco Department of Public Health, Contaminated Sites Assessment and Mitigation Program, Phase 1 Environmental
Site Assessment Approval, 736 Hyde Street, EHB-SAM Case No. 1620, February 28, 2018.
4 John Carver Consulting, Work Plan for Subsurface Investigation, 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, March 30, 2018.
5 San Francisco Department of Public Health, Contaminated Sites Assessment and Mitigation Program, Work Plan for
Subsurface Investigation Approval, 736 Hyde Street, EHB-SAM Case No. 1620, April 2, 2018.
6 San Francisco Planning Department, Transportation Study Determination Request, Case No. 2016-014870ENV, December 5,
2016.
7 San Francisco Planning Department. Eligibility Checklist: CEQA Section 21099 — Modernization of Transportation Analysis for
736 Hyde Street, May 5, 2018.
8 San Francisco Planning Department, Air Quality and Noise Construction Information Request, Case No. 2016-014870ENV,
January 3, 2019.
9 GeoForensics Inc. Consulting and Soil Engineering, Geotechnical Investigation for Proposed New Apartment Building, 736
Hyde Street, August 6, 2017.
10 San Francisco Planning Department, Environmental Planning Preliminary Archeological Review, Case No.
20160914870ENV, November 15, 2017.
1 Tim Kelley Consulting, LLC, Historic Resource Evaluation Part 2 for 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, June 2016.
12 San Francisco Planning Department, Preservation Team Review Form, 736 Hyde Street, January 29, 2019.
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
736 Hyde Street 0300/010
Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.
2016-014870PRJ 201706129054
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
Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion |12/18/2018 San Francisco,
CA 94103-2479
PROJECT INFORMATION: Reception:
Planner: Address: 415.558.6378
Justin Greving 736 Hyde Street Fax:
415.558.6409
Block/Lot: Cross Streets:
0300/010 Sutter and Post streets Planning
Information:
CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.: 415.558.6377
A n/a 2016-014870ENV
PURPOSE OF REVIEW: PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
(e CEQA (" Article 10/11 (" Preliminary/PIC ( Alteration (e Demo/New Construction

DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: |9/20/2018

PROJECT ISSUES:

[] |Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource?

If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?

Additional Notes:

Submitted: Historic Resource Evaluation Part 2 prepared by Tim Kelley (dated June 2016)

Proposed project: Construction of a 5-story 9-unit multi-family building on a vacant lot.

PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW:

Category: @A CB Cc
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
Criterion 1 - Event: (" Yes (o No Criterion 1 - Event: (® Yes (" No
Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes (o No Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes (e No
Criterion 3 - Architecture: (" Yes (o No Criterion 3 - Architecture: (® Yes (" No
Criterion 4 - Info. Potential: (" Yes (o No Criterion 4 - Info. Potential: (" Yes (o No
Period of Significance: |[,/5 Period of Significance: |1906-1940
(" Contributor (e Non-Contributor






Complies with the Secretary’s Standards/Art 10/Art 11: (® Yes (" No CN/A
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

The subject property is located within the National Register-listed Lower Nob Hill
Apartment Hotel Historic District but as a vacant lot it was identified as a non-contributor
to the historic district. Based on the findings of the HRE Part 2 prepared by Tim Kelley
(dated June 2016), Planning Staff have determined the proposed project will not cause a
significant adverse impact to the historic district which is a historic resource under CEQA.
Planning Staff have reviewed the plans dated 9/20/2018 and determined the proposed
project will not cause a significant adverse impact to the adjacent historic resources. The
proposed project is generally compatible with the character of the surrounding historic
district in the following ways:
1. General massing and scale - The proposed project will be 5-stories tall in keeping with
the general massing and scale of the surrounding neighborhood block and general
character of the historic district. The building does not incorporate any front setbacks and
is built to the adjacent north and south lot lines so as to maintain the strong streetwall
found within the neighborhood.
2. Building proportions and materials - The proposed project incorporates a materially
differentiated base, shaft, and capitol so as to match the vertical rhythm of the
surrounding contributing properties. Materials of the proposed project area also
compatible with the character of the neighborhood that features a high concentration of
stone and finished brick. The proposed project will feature a base of stone veneer, while
the upper floor will be finished in two tones of brick to establish a rhythm of vertical
fenestration similar to other contributing apartment buildings within the historic district.
The building will be capped with an anodized aluminum metal cornice that will reference
other building cornices within the district without being a strict copy.
3. Windows - The windows are a regular rhythm of bronze anodized aluminum windows
with a deep reveal and a thick spandrel panel to reflect the historic proportion of solid to
void common among contributing buildings within the district.
4. Entry - The wide off-center entry with a prominent square canopy and a deep recess is
similar to other buildings constructed on 25' wide lots within the district.

Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: |Date:

H H Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice
Allison K. Vanderslice Date: 2019.01.29 10:41:32 -08'00'
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination

PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Address Block/Lot(s)

411 DOUGLASS ST 2749043

Case No. Permit No.

2018-014945ENV 201810304510

Il Addition/ [[] pemoilition (requires HRE for ] New
Alteration Category B Building) Construction

Project description for Planning Department approval.

RENOVATION & VERTICAL ADDITION TO SFD, ADDITION OF (N) POWDER ROOM IN BASEMENT,
REMODEL OF (E) KITCHEN, ADD (N) INTERIOR STAIR TO (N) 3RD FL, ADD (N) 3RD FL WITH (N)
MASTER SUITE & REAR ROOF DECK

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

Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation prepared for property/project 8, 2018 by Romig Engineers
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
a. Per HRER dated ~ 02/14/2019 (attach HRER)

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

Preservation Planner Signature: Jorgen Cleemann

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
Building Permit Jorgen Cleemann
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
411 DOUGLASS ST 2749/043
Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.
2018-014945PRJ 201810304510
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
Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion |2/14/2019 San Francisco,
CA 94103-2479
PROJECT INFORMATION: Reception:
Planner: Address: 415.558.6378
Jorgen G. Cleemann 411 Douglass Street Fax:
415.558.6409
Block/Lot: Cross Streets:
7058/002 Corwin and Romaine Streets Planning
Information:
CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.: 415.558.6377
B N/A 2018-014945ENV
PURPOSE OF REVIEW: PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
(e CEQA (" Article 10/11 (" Preliminary/PIC (e Alteration (" Demo/New Construction

DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: |10/16/2018

PROJECT ISSUES:

Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource?

[] | If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?

Additional Notes:

Submitted: Historic Resource Evaluation (dated June 2018), prepared by Tim Kelley
Consulting.

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






Complies with the Secretary’s Standards/Art 10/Art 11: (C Yes (" No (@ N/A
CEQA Material Impairment to the individual historic resource: ( Yes (¢ No
CEQA Material Impairment to the historic district: ( Yes (¢ No
Requires Design Revisions: C Yes (e No
Defer to Residential Design Team: (® Yes (" No

PRESERVATION TEAM COMMENTS:

According to the Historic Resource Evaluation (dated June 2018) and information accessed
by the Planning Department, the subject building at 411 Douglass Street is a 2-story over-
basement, wood-frame, wood-clad, hipped-roof residence constructed c.1893 in the
Castro/Upper Market neighborhood. At the front lot line, a driveway slopes down steeply
to the basement garage. A walkway provides access to the main entry set back on the left
(north) side of the first story. The primary facade features a faceted projecting bay with
four windows on each story that terminates with a pediment at the roof. The first and
second stories are divided by a hood clad in scalloped shingles. Above the garage, the first
and second stories each contain small windows set in decorative frames. The roof is clad in
asphalt shingles. The only significant recorded exterior alterations are the rear yard
additions (1970, 2004). Unrecorded and undated alterations include the insertion of the
below-grade garage and the addition of the walkway to the main entrance.

Planning staff concurs with the HRE's conclusion that the subject building is not
individually eligible for listing in the CRHR under Criterion 1, 2, or 3. The subject building
was among the earlier buildings constructed on its block, but was not the first such
building and does not appear to have a notable association with the development of the
neighborhood or any other historic events that would justify a finding of individual
eligibility under Criterion 1. None of the owners or occupants appears to be sufficiently
important to history to support a finding of individual eligibility under Criterion 2.
Architecturally, the subject building exhibits some Queen Anne features, but does not
appear to be a particularly notable example of that style. For instance, the subject
building's main entrance lacks the stylistic exuberance found on full expressions of that
style. Therefore the subject building does not appear individually eligible for the CRHR
under Criterion 3. The subject building does not embody a rare construction type and
therefore does not appear eligible for the CRHR under Criterion 4 as it applies to buildings
and structures (the potential archeological significance of the project site is not evaluated
in this document).

The area surrounding the subject building contains a variety of different buildings that do
not cohere visually or historically into a unified historic district.

Therefore the subject building is not eligible for listing in the CRHR either individually or as
a contributor to a historic district.

Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: |Date:

H H Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice
Allison K. Vanderslice Date: 2019.02.22 18:03:20 -08'00'

AN FRARGISCO
FLAMNNING DEFARTMENT





411 Douglass Street
Preservation Team Review Form
February 14, 2019

Figure 1. 411 Douglass Street. Screenshot of 2017 Google Streetview.






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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW FUNDING TO SUPPORT HOMELESS
PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:13:26 AM

Attachments: 2.27.19 DPH Homeless Outreach Funding.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 4:25 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW FUNDING TO SUPPORT
HOMELESS PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%% PRESS RELEASE ***

MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW FUNDING TO
SUPPORT HOMELESS PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

$3 million grant from California Department of Health Care Services to the San Francisco
Department of Public Health will fund service expansion for Healthy Streets Operations
Center and homeless services

San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced that the San Francisco
Department of Public Health has received a $3 million grant to fund outreach and treatment
efforts for homeless individuals suffering from behavioral health and substance use disorders.
This funding will expand services for two years to further support the Healthy Streets
Operation Center’s (HSOC) efforts to help those struggling on San Francisco’s streets,
including case management, clinical services, and social worker engagement. HSOC is the
City’s coordinated, multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and unhealthy street
behaviors.
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
Department of Public Health will fund service expansion for Healthy Streets Operations Center
and homeless services

San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced that the San Francisco
Department of Public Health has received a $3 million grant to fund outreach and treatment
efforts for homeless individuals suffering from behavioral health and substance use disorders.
This funding will expand services for two years to further support the Healthy Streets Operation
Center’s (HSOC) efforts to help those struggling on San Francisco’s streets, including case
management, clinical services, and social worker engagement. HSOC is the City’s coordinated,
multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and unhealthy street behaviors.

The funding will go towards increasing the City’s number of clinicians, social workers, and peer
navigators; augmenting the Street Medicine Team and Harm Reduction Van to ensure there are
coordinated and visible services; and extending hours of operations for programming and
services to include more nights and weekends so there is greater coverage for those on the
streets.

“This funding will allow us to expand programs that are working to get our homeless residents
connected to treatment and services, instead of letting people continue to cycle through our
emergency rooms and jails,” said Mayor Breed. “We know that we need more housing and
shelter to help our homeless population, but we also need to treat the mental illness and
substance use disorders that can lead to homelessness in the first place.”

“The increased state funding will allow us to build upon our outreach and engagement efforts
that already are making a difference, connecting people experiencing homelessness to care and
services for mental health and substance use issues,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health at
the San Francisco Department of Public Health. “The Health Department is proud to work with
other city agencies and partner organizations to strengthen and support the Healthy Streets
Operation Center, which is providing relief to people on the streets and improving quality of life
for all San Franciscans.”

The funding will:

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

Expand hours and capacity of services

- Add a clinician to staff HSOC on the evening and weekends. This will expand the reach
of the City’s multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and behavioral health
needs on San Francisco’s streets.

- Extend Hospitality House Drop-in Center Hours to include 5:00 p.m.- 9:00 p.m. so
those on the streets have somewhere to go indoors, be safe, and get connected to services.
Hospitality House serves more than 6,000 people a year in its day program, and evening
hours will add capacity to serve more people.

- Increase case management support for individuals identified by HSOC as needing
mental health and support services. Case management is critical to helping people get and
stay stable, healthy and housed. Additional case workers will work directly with
homeless residents to ensure that their progress is kept on track by a case manager to help
steer them to services and programs.

Help improve health conditions on the street

- Add staff to the Street Medicine Team, which provides clinical care, opioid treatment
and additional medical and behavioral health services to homeless people to improve
physical and mental health, and daily functioning. The Street Medicine Team has had
success connecting those struggling with behavioral health and substance use disorders
with treatment and services.

- Expand the Mobile Harm Reduction Therapy and Counseling support program to serve
homeless adults with behavioral health needs. The funding will purchase an additional
van to provide counseling, support and connections in hotspots throughout the City,
including evening and weekend hours. This approach meets individuals where they are
throughout San Francisco to ensure they can access services.

Psychiatric Emergency Services to add staff to link clients to care after discharge

- Add two social workers, to be based at Psychiatric Emergency Services (PES) at
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFG), to provide expertise, information
and referrals for services after PES discharge, and supervise peer navigators.

- Add four peer navigators to PES to help exiting clients connect to services like
Hummingbird Place, Dore Urgent Care, Navigation Centers and other substance use and
behavioral health programs. PES already makes up 30% of the referrals to the recently
expanded Hummingbird Place, demonstrating a clear need to build upon that connection.
By creating a handoff from PES to community services, these navigators will work to
support clients so that they have additional resources and options after leaving PES.
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The grant to the Department of Public Health comes from the California Department of Health
Care Services. The Department of Public Health will use the funding to support these services
through the end of June 2020.

HH#
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The funding will go towards increasing the City’s number of clinicians, social workers, and
peer navigators; augmenting the Street Medicine Team and Harm Reduction Van to ensure
there are coordinated and visible services; and extending hours of operations for programming
and services to include more nights and weekends so there is greater coverage for those on the
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
services for mental health and substance use issues,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health
at the San Francisco Department of Public Health. “The Health Department is proud to work
with other city agencies and partner organizations to strengthen and support the Healthy
Streets Operation Center, which is providing relief to people on the streets and improving
quality of life for all San Franciscans.”

The funding will:

Expand hours and capacity of services

e Add a clinician to staff HSOC on the evening and weekends. This will expand the reach
of the City’s multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and behavioral health
needs on San Francisco’s streets.

o Extend Hospitality House Drop-in Center Hours to include 5:00 p.m.- 9:00 p.m. so
those on the streets have somewhere to go indoors, be safe, and get connected to
services. Hospitality House serves more than 6,000 people a year in its day program,
and evening hours will add capacity to serve more people.

 Increase case management support for individuals identified by HSOC as needing
mental health and support services. Case management is critical to helping people get
and stay stable, healthy and housed. Additional case workers will work directly with
homeless residents to ensure that their progress is kept on track by a case manager to
help steer them to services and programs.

Help improve health conditions on the street

o Add staff to the Street Medicine Team, which provides clinical care, opioid treatment
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

o Expand the Mobile Harm Reduction Therapy and Counseling support program to



serve homeless adults with behavioral health needs. The funding will purchase an
additional van to provide counseling, support and connections in hotspots throughout
the City, including evening and weekend hours. This approach meets individuals where
they are throughout San Francisco to ensure they can access services.

Psychiatric Emergency Services to add staff to link clients to care after discharge

¢ Add two social workers, to be based at Psychiatric Emergency Services (PES) at
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFG), to provide expertise, information
and referrals for services after PES discharge, and supervise peer navigators.

o Add four peer navigators to PES to help exiting clients connect to services like
Hummingbird Place, Dore Urgent Care, Navigation Centers and other substance use and
behavioral health programs. PES already makes up 30% of the referrals to the recently
expanded Hummingbird Place, demonstrating a clear need to build upon that
connection. By creating a handoff from PES to community services, these navigators
will work to support clients so that they have additional resources and options after
leaving PES.

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

Subject: FW: Better Market Street Draft EIR published

Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:13:13 AM

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

From: Thomas, Christopher (CPC)

Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 4:41 PM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Cc: Wietgrefe, Wade (CPC) <wade.wietgrefe@sfgov.org>; Horner, Justin (CPC)
<justin.horner@sfgov.org>

Subject: Better Market Street Draft EIR published

Good Afternoon,
This email is to notify the Historic Preservation Commission that the Draft Environmental Impact
Report (EIR) for the Better Market Street Project has been released and is available for review. Public

comments on the Draft EIR will be accepted from February 28, 2019 to 5:00 p.m. on April 15, 2019.

The Notice of Availability and the Draft EIR can be retrieved at the following website:
https://sfplanning.org/better-market-street-environmental-review-process. CDs and/or paper copies

are available upon request.

For more information or to submit comments on the Draft EIR, please contact Chris Thomas at the
contacts provided below.

Please forward this email to the Historic Preservation Commission commissioners.

Thank you,

Chris Thomas, SF Planning
Telephone: (415) 575-9036

E-Mail: christopher.thomas@sfgov.org

Chris Thomas, AICP
Environmental Planner

Planning Department|City and County of San Francisco
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1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-575-9036|Fax: 415-558-6409

Email: Christopher.Thomas@sfgov.org
Web: www.sfplanning.org
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

Subject: FW: ***pRESS RELEASE*** MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI ANNOUNCED
Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:11:21 AM

Attachments: 2.27.19 Public Defender Adachi Memorial Service.pdf

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

From: Tugbenyoh, Mawuli (MYR)

Sent: Thursday, February 28, 2019 9:54 AM

Subject: FW: ***PRESS RELEASE*** MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI
ANNOUNCED

Good morning-

Please share the below information about the memorial service for Public Defender Jeff Adachi this
Monday at 11AM. This event is open to the public.

Seating will be very limited.
Regards,
Mawuli Tugbenyoh #t 72 %

Liaison to Boards and Commissions
Office of Mayor London N. Breed

415.554.6298 | mawuli.tugbenyoh@sfgov.org

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%*PRESS RELEASE***


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:dennis.richards@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:planning@rodneyfong.com
mailto:richhillissf@gmail.com
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
tel:415.554.5168
mailto:mawuli.tugbenyoh@sfgov.org

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

***PRESS RELEASE***

MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR
PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI ANNOUNCED

Public memorial service to celebrate the life of Public Defender Adachi will take place on
Monday, March 4™ in City Hall

San Francisco — Mayor London N. Breed and the family of Jeff Adachi have announced that
there will be a public memorial service in San Francisco City Hall for Public Defender Jeff
Adachi on Monday, March 4™ at 11 AM. The service will be open to the public.

“On Monday, we will gather together to celebrate Jeff Adachi’s life, his work, and the lasting
impact he will have on our City and our criminal justice system,” said Mayor Breed. “l am
honored to invite the people of San Francisco to come to City Hall to join us in recognizing and
remembering Jeff, who fought hard in the community and in the courtroom, and who was a true
public servant.”

HiH
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MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR
PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI ANNOUNCED

Public memorial service to celebrate the life of Public Defender Adachi will take place on
Monday, March 4" in City Hall

San Francisco — Mayor London N. Breed and the family of Jeff Adachi have announced that
there will be a public memorial service in San Francisco City Hall for Public Defender Jeff

Adachi on Monday, March 4th at 11 AM. The service will be open to the public.

“On Monday, we will gather together to celebrate Jeff Adachi’s life, his work, and the lasting
impact he will have on our City and our criminal justice system,” said Mayor Breed. “I am
honored to invite the people of San Francisco to come to City Hall to join us in recognizing
and remembering Jeff, who fought hard in the community and in the courtroom, and who was
a true public servant.”

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI, AND COMMUNITY LEADERS
CELEBRATE THE GRAND OPENING OF PHASE II OF HUNTERS VIEW REVITALIZATION

Date: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 1:06:07 PM

Attachments: 2.27.19 Hunters View.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 12:43 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI, AND
COMMUNITY LEADERS CELEBRATE THE GRAND OPENING OF PHASE Il OF HUNTERS VIEW
REVITALIZATION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED, SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI, AND
COMMUNITY LEADERS CELEBRATE THE GRAND
OPENING OF PHASE I OF HUNTERS VIEW
REVITALIZATION

Multi-department initiative opens up 177 newly built affordable homes for families

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London Breed, Speaker Nancy Pelosi, Supervisor Shamann
Walton, State Housing Department (HCD) Director Ben Metcalf and community leaders today
celebrated the grand opening of the newest 100% affordable housing phase of the revitalized
Hunters View community. Once completed, the re-envisioned Hunters View will be a mixed-
income, service-enhanced community, developed according to the principles of the Mayor’s
HOPE SF Initiative.

“I grew up in public housing—I know firsthand that the many of these locations were deeply
in need of an upgrade, which is why I am committed to seeing this process through,” said
Mayor Breed. “For the residents of Hunters View, today is the result of years of perseverance
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
COMMUNITY LEADERS CELEBRATE THE GRAND OPENING
OF PHASE Il OF HUNTERS VIEW REVITALIZATION

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

“I grew up in public housing—I know firsthand that the many of these locations were deeply in
need of an upgrade, which is why I am committed to seeing this process through,” said Mayor
Breed. “For the residents of Hunters View, today is the result of years of perseverance and
determination. | am excited that the new Hunters View will serve the community for generations
to come.”

“Revitalizing Hunters View is about ensuring the beautiful diversity of our city, dismantling
barriers and building community,” said Speaker Nancy Pelosi, whose instrumental support for
this project has served as an example of her continued dedication to all families who have lived
in public housing. “Everyone deserves a safe, livable, and affordable place to call home. House
Democrats are committed to supporting investments in rehabilitating aging and isolated public
housing and creating new, affordable housing for America’s working families.”

The renewed Hunters View is the result of a partnership between the Office of Community
Investment and Infrastructure (OCII), HOPE SF, the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community
Development (MOHCD), the San Francisco Housing Authority (SFHA), and the John Stewart
Company, which all played substantial roles in the ongoing efforts to transform and redevelop a
once distressed and isolated, war-era public housing complex.

“Once again [ am excited to see our community be transformed and remain indigenous at the
same time,” said District 10 Supervisor, Shamann Walton. “As a child living right here in
Hunters View (Westpoint at the time), | never envisioned the brand new housing that we see
today. Our children and families now enjoy a community that allows them to take advantage of
the growth here in Bayview and in San Francisco. Vibrancy is here!”
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Consistent with the City’s one-for-one replacement program, no existing residents were
displaced as a result of this multi-phased development. Phases 1 is complete, and Phase 2,
completed in 2017, contains 134 public housing replacement units with an additional 43 new
affordable units. The final affordable housing phase of Hunters View, Phase 3, will begin
construction in summer 2020.

“With each new phase of Hunters View that opens, our city demonstrates a deep commitment to
our residents,” said Office of Community Investment and Infrastructure Executive Director,
Nadia Sesay. “It has been an honor to collaborate with partners and residents to create a safe,
inclusive and vital new community.”

The original Hunters View was constructed in 1957 with 267 temporary units. These units were
never intended to be permanent housing, and due to the poor initial construction of the site and
years of deferred construction, the property deteriorated well beyond repair. The rebuilding of
Hunters View aims to house all current Hunters View residents as well as additional low-income
families. In addition, the market-rate homeownership component is scheduled to kick off in
2020. With the completion of Phase 2, all Hunters View residents that lived onsite now live in
Phases 1 and 2.

“I’'m proud to be a Hunters View resident from before it was redeveloped and to see these
beautiful new buildings built has been really exciting,” said Hunters View resident, Terrell
Tobias. “It was also great to have had the opportunity to help in the construction of these new
homes that went to a community that has been waiting for this and have been deserving for so
long.”

“Completion of the second phase of Hunters View delivers another 177 units of affordable
housing, new infrastructure, another public park, and extensive community service spaces and
programming,” said John Stewart Company President & CEQO, Jack Gardner. “These amenities
are critical to the success of any community and | am excited that they are finally a reality at
Hunters View. This phase took the commitment of the City of San Francisco, Office of
Community Investment and Infrastructure, the State of California, the San Francisco Housing
Authority, HUD, our private lenders and investors, and most importantly, the residents of
Hunters View. We are thrilled to have played a role in delivering on the vision of HOPE SF!”
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
Date: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 9:50:18 AM

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

Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 9:46 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: ***PRESS RELEASE*** MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI
ANNOUNCED

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

«#*PRESS RELEASE***

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

Subject: FW: Letter for HPC Commissioners-Case No 2015-016326COA

Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 3:27:15 PM

Attachments: Letter to HPC members-02-25.pdf

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

Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 3:25 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Vimr, Jonathan (CPC)
<jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>

Subject: Letter for HPC Commissioners-Case No 2015-016326COA

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Jonas/lonathan: Attached is a short letter from the project sponsor for submission to the HPC
Commissioners and for the administrative file in this matter. Please let me know if you require hard
copies of the same. Thank you, Jay

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
1215 K Street, Suite 1150
Sacramento, CA 95814

February 25, 2019

Via Email:

All HPC Members at
commissions.secretary @sfgov.org
and through Planning Staff

RE: Case No.2015-016326-COA
Hotel and Theater at Seawall Lots 323 & 324 /Port Property
SUPPORT FOR PROJECT

Dear Historic Preservation Commissioners:

On behalf of TZK Broadway, LLC, comprised of Teatro Zinzanni, Kenwood
Investments and Presidio Hotel Group, we are pleased to provide you with
additional information regarding our proposed hotel and theater project to be
located on Seawall Lots 323 and 324 in the Northeast Waterfront Historic District
and to respectfully request your approval for the Certificate of Appropriateness
when it comes before you on March 6, 2019.

As you will hear during the hearing, the proposed project complies with the
Secretary of the Interiors Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties,
Standards 9 and 10, San Francisco Planning Code Article 10, Appendix D, and has
received Planning staff’'s Historic Resources Evaluation (HRE), Part 2 Compatibility
Analysis approval based upon the work of two leading San Francisco historic
architectural firms, Carey & Co. and ARG. A copy of the Department staff's HRE Part
2 is attached as Exhibit 1.

In addition, Planning staff has determined that the project is subject to a mitigated
negative declaration and has concluded that the proposed project will not have a
significant impact on the environment if certain mitigation measures are complied
with. Included in the mitigation measures are a series of measures to address
historic concerns should they arise during construction. A copy of the Department’s
conclusion and applicable mitigation measures is attached as Exhibit 2.

The proposed project has also been the subject of over 20 public meetings and many
more informal community meetings. As a result of that outreach, the project has
been endorsed by 19 community groups and Citywide organizations. A copy of the
19 letters of support is attached as Exhibit 3. One of the public meetings was the
September 21, 2016 Architectural Review Committee (ARC) hearing, attended by
President Hyland and Commissioner Pearlman (and former member Wolfram).





Following that meeting, TZK Broadway, LLC modified the proposed project to
address the ARC comments as will be discussed during the March 6t meeting.

We look forward to discussing our project with you on March 6% and respectfully
request your support for approval of the Certificate of Appropriateness for the
project. Please feel free to contact me at 415-601-2081 if you have any questions.

For Distribution to:

President Aaron Hyland

Vice President Diane Matsuda
Commissioner Kate Black
Commissioner Ellen Johnck
Commissioner Richard Johns
Commissioner Jonathan Pearlman

CC:  Jonathan Vimr/SF Planning Department (jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org)






EXHIBIT 1

HISTORIC RESOURCES EVALUATION, PART 2:
COMPATABILTY ANALYSIS





-4 SAN FRANCISCO
s PLANNING DEPARTMENT

PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM

1650 Mission St.
Suite 400
Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Forin Completion |3/23/2018 San francisco,
CA 94103-2479
PROJECT INFORMATION: Reception:
Plannat: Address; 415.558.6378
E. Tuffy Seawall Lots 323 and 324 1 Fax:
W _ ] 415.558.6409
i_%_lgf;ki Lot Criss Streets:
0138/001 and 0139/002 Embarcadero, Broadway, Davis and Vallejo Planning
- SR 7 information:
CEQA Category: A 1011 BPA/Case No.: find’ 415.558.6377
A Northeast Waterfront District | 2015-016326ENV
PURPOSE OF REVIEW: ‘ PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
{6 CEQA (" Article 10/11 (” Preliminary/PIC (" Alteration (" Demo/New Construction

DATE OF PLANS UNDERREVIEW: | March 2017

PROJECT 1SSUES:

< | Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource?

[ | if so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?

Additional Notes:

Proposal is for the demolition of an existing surface parking lot and construction of a
new 4-story hotel with an attached live performance theater. A new publicly-accessible
open space is included in the project. The subject property is located within the
Northeast Waterfront Landmark District. An Historic Resource Evaluation: Part 2
Compatibility Analysis (dated February 26, 2018) was prepared by historic preservation
consultants, Carey & Company.

PRESERVATION TEARM REVIEW:

Historic Resource Frecent i (s Yes {"No * {N/A
individual Historic District/Context i
Property is individually eligible for inclusion in a Property is in an eligible California Register
Ca"fOf'n'a Register under one or more of the Historic District/Context under one or more of
following Criteria: the following Criteria:
Criterion 1 - Event: {" Yes {® No Criterion 1 - Event: " Yes (& No
Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes & No Criterion 2 -Persons: (" Yes {= No
Criterion 3 - Architecture: (" Yes (& No Criterion 3 - Architecture: @& Yes {"No
Criterion 4 - Info. Potential: (" Yes (# No Criterion 4 - Info. Potential; (" Yes (& No
Period of Significance: [,/ —} Period of Significance: [ 2 1850-1960 j
{ (" Contributor (& Non-Contributor |






Complies with the Secretary’s Standards/Art 10/Art 11: @ Yes (" No " N/A
CEQA Material Impairment: e R " Yes | (P No -
Meads More Information : O Yes & Nn

| Requires Design'Revisions: : = { Yes ® No
Defer to Residential Design Team:  Yes (& No

*If No is selected for Historic Resource per (FQA, a signature from Senior Preservation Planner or
Preservation Coordinator is required.

PRESERVATION TEAM COMMENTS:

The project site is located at the northwest corner of Broadway and the Embarcadero in
the North Beach neighborhood. Although historically the site of waterfront storage sheds
and a commercial rail yard, the project site has been used for automobile parking for over
35 years. It was included within the boundaries of the Northeast Waterfront Landmark
District at the time of its designation in 1983 under Article 10 of the Planning Code.

The undeveloped project site is considered non-contributory to the landmark district,
therefore the demolition of the existing surface parking lot would not involve demolition
of an historic resource.

The designating ordinance, in its findings and purposes, encourages development of
vacant and incompatibly developed properties in accordance with the character of the
area. In their "Historic Resource Evaluation, Part 2: Compatibility Analysis", Carey &
Company assessed the Project, as presented in drawings revised to May 2017, for its
compatibility with the character-defining features of the Northeast Waterfront Landmark
District. The report (dated February 26, 2018) found the proposed new construction to be
compatible with historic buildings in the district in its Overall Form, Scale and Proportion,
Fenestration, Materials, Color, Texture and Detail. These categories for evaluation are
detailed in Section 6 of the designating ordinance.

Staff has reviewed the consultant's compatibility analysis and concurs with its findings.
Whiie minor refinements in the detailing of the architectural design may be required by
the Historic Preservation Commission, these would only make the proposal more
compatible with the features of the district. Therefore, the Project would not affect the
integrity of the existing historic district and is determined to be compatible new
construction that will result in a less than significant impact to historic resources.

Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinstor:  |Date:
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February 26, 2018

Kenwood Investments/Teatro ZinZanni
Hotel and Entertainment and Theater Venue
San Francisco, California

HISTORIC RESOURCE EVALUATION

PART 2: COMPATIBILITY ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

This report evaluates the proposed design for Kenwood Investments’ and Teatro ZinZanni's
proposed hotel and entertainment/theater venue within the Northeast Waterfront Historic
District. The project site, Assessor's Parcels 0138/001 and 0139/002 (also identified by the Port
of San Francisco as Sea Wall Lots 323 and 324) in zoning district C-2 is bounded by the
Embarcadero, Broadway, Davis, and Valigjo Streets and currently contains a parking lot. The
current height and bulk requirements are 40-X.

The proposal is to construct a new four-story, approximately 187,800 square-foot hotel and
entertainment/theater building to house the historic Teatro ZinZanni Spiegeltent, and an
approximately 14,000 square-foot public park.

The site is an undeveloped surface parking lot that is a non-contributing property within the
Historic District. The design, therefore, will be reviewed for its compatibility with the character of
the Northeast Waterfront Historic District, and the adjacent resources within the district.
Documents reviewed include design studies prepared by Hormberger + Worstell Architects
(September 2016, December 2016 and March 2017), the San Francisco Planning Code Article 10
Appendix D Northeast Waterfront Historic District, and the Preliminary Project Assessment by
the Planning Department (March 15, 2016). We have also reviewed a memo from Eiliesh Tuffy,
dated November 15, 2016, which summarizes the Planning Department Recommendations and
Architectural Review Committee (ARC) comments. Finally, we reviewed the Waterfront Design
Advisory Committee Draft Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2016.

Copies of the amended, March 2017 Homberger and Worstell design study and May 2017
colored elevations are attached as Exhibit A.

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY'

Designated under Article 10 of the San Francisco Planning Code in 1983, the Northeast
Waterfront Historic District (Historic District) is located at the southeast corner of the North
Beach neighborhood and is bounded roughly by Union Street to the north, the Frbarcadero to
the east, Broadway to the south, and Sansome Street to the west (Figure 1),

This section is surnmarized from City of San Francisco Planring Department, San Francisco Planning Code: Appendix &
to Article 10 - Nogheast Watefront Historic District, Section 5, April 8, 1983,

340 Dhsoedn O 7 Ehevis o 2 e A DATOA 19€ %7
460 Bush Street @ Second Fleor ¢ San Francisco, CA Y4108 « 415.773.0773
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Teatro ZinZanni February 26, 2018
Historic Resource Evaluation

The Historic District is significant for its collection of commercial masonry warehouse structures

maritime activities. The warehouse faciliies were nistorically in continuous industrial use trom tne
Gold Rush to the mid-1960s. The Historic District is significant for its architecture as a
representation of warehouse and industrial buildings, from the brick structures of the Gold Rush
era to the reinforced concrete buildings introduced after the turn of the 20" century. Some of
the extant buildings date from well before the turn of the century, though they were rebuilt after
the 1906 fire. Since warehouse architecture did not undergo profound stylistic changes until the
introduction of reinforced concrete, the pre- and post-fire brick warehouses embody the original
appearance and spirit of the early warehouse district. Additionally, cobblestone paving and the
standard and narrow gauge belt railroad track that served the district are visible at John Maher
Street (previously known as Commerce Street). The area serves as a visual reminder of San
Francisco's earlier maritime-warehousing commerce. The period of significance is from the 1850s

into the 1960s.

2 Al

Figure 1. Northeast Waterfront Historic District; subject property indicated by an arrow.?

Character-Defining Features
¢  Building height within a six-story range; the taller structures closer to the base of
Telegraph Hill and lower buildings near the Embarcadero and the Bay. (The site itself
has a 40-foot height limit per the San Francisco Planning Code.)

lert=planning (retrieved

2 Edited from San Francisco Property Information Map, htir://pre
May 6, 2016).
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Teatro ZinZanni February 26, 2018
Historic Resource Evaluation

= Typical warehouse design, large in bulk, often with large openings at the ground floor
previously used for loading access

= Earlier buildings feature deeply recessed fenestration with minimal glazing that is varied
in size; and typically rhythmically spaced; larger industrial sash windows from the 1920s
onward

= Brick masonry and reinforced concrete

=  Red brick is typical with some yellow and painted brick; muted earth tones predominate
in shades of red, brown, green, gray, and blue

=  Rough-grained facades

*  Arched rough openings appear on the ground floor, frequently repeated on upper
floors; flattened arches for windows

»  Minimal use of decoration; plain and simple surfaces

= Simple, brick or cast-concrete cornices and sometimes low-relief pilasters in earlier brick
buildings

integrity

Despite the alteration of some buildings that were constructed within the period of significance
(i.e. 850 Battery Street, 1010 Battery Street) and the infill of new buildings to the area after the
district designation (55 Green Street, 69 Green Street, and 825 Front Street) the overall
character and feeling of the Historic District maintains integrity.? Both 55 and 69 Green Street
were constructed shortly after the creation of the district in 1983, respectively in 1984 and 1986,
while 825 Front Street was built more recently in 2008. The scale, massing, design, and materials
of the buildings are generally cohesive, and communicate the turn of the century and 20*
century warehouse development. Therefore, the Historic District retains integrity of location,
design, materials, workmanship, feeling, setting, and association.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposal is to develop a surface parking fot by constructing a new four-story, approximately
183,780 square-foot hotel and entertainment venue building on the project site, and a 14,000
square-foot public park at the northern end of the project site. The entertainment venue
structure will house the historic Teatro ZinZanni Spiegeltent.

The four-story hotel building and entertainment venue structure would be a permanent addition
to the district and would occupy the trapezoid-shaped south lot (Seawall Lot 323). This proposed
development along with the anticipated development of the adjacent 88 Broadway site (Seawall
Lot 322-1) would result in the build-out of all vacant undeveloped parcels within the district. The
building height would be 40 feet; mechanical penthouse overrides, including an elevator
penthouse override would rise approximately 15 feet more as permitted by the Planning Code.
The proposed hotel building would be trapezoidal in plan with a central opening to allow light
into the hotel building and would be capped by a flat roof.

The project sponsor is proposing elevations that would be rough textured red brick veneer,
consistent with the Historic District (and the adjacent building to the west, the proposed 88
Broadway project), broken up into repetitive bays with metal industrial sash and glass window
units. The ground level would feature rectangular openings with recessed multi-lite assemblies;

* Construction dates and addresses of tne new buildings from the San Francisco Property Map,
i/ feropeityrmap.siplanning org/ (accessed May 24, 2016).

Gy

Carey & Co., a TreancrHl Company
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Historic Resource Evaluation

the second, third and fourth floors would feature flush rectangular windows with divided lights.

B s

clear glass. 1ne buiiding would terminate with a simple, 44-inch tah metai cormice. Metal
canopies, which have been reduced in size from earlier iterations of the project, would shelter
the rectilinear main entry openings on Broadway and The Embarcadero. The
mechanical/elevator penthouse will be wrapped in simple matte-finished dark metal panels
consistent with the district with a centerpiece of a green screen for visual protection for
neighbors to the south. A mechanical zone at the southeast rooftop will be concealed behind an

opaque fritted glass screen.

The horizontal mass of the building is broken up by recessed vertical breaks in the masonry.
These setbacks will feature matte-finished dark metal industrial sash with non-reflective clear
glazing to differentiate the building as new construction while remaining compatible with the
heavy masonry walls that define the district.

The historic theater tent would be surrounded by a glazed structure, using the same materials as
found in the hotel window openings. The roof over this structure would be either non-reflective
fritted bird-safe clear glass, providing maximum visibility of the Spiegeltent. The one-story
backstage structure will also be surrounded by matte-finished dark metal industrial sash. This
structure attaches to the north side of the tent pavilion, facing the new park.

ANALYSIS - Secretary of the Interior’s Standards

New buildings within a historic district must comply with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards
for the Treatment of Historic Properties: Rehabilitation. In this case, the historic resource is the
entire district. Standards 9 and 10 are especially relevant to an examination of Compatibility.

Standard ¢

New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work will be
differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale
and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.

The proposed buildings will replace a non-contributing surface parking lot. Therefore, the
project will not destroy historic materials, features, and spatial relationships. The following
evaluates the compatibility of the proposed building in relation to the character defining
features listed above for the Historic District.

Overall Form: The proposed hotel building has a simple massing with its trapezoidal plan, four-
story height, and fiat roof; the form of the building is consistent with the Historic District.

The circular permanent tent structure with a conical roof is unique for the Historic District;
however, the structure is attached to the hotel building on the south end of the project site and
to the one-story rectangular structure (backstage) on the north end, both of which have regular
forms balancing the tent and reflecting the character of the district. It should also be noted that
the Historic District has had a pedigree of railroad and roundhouse features dating back to the
State Belt raiiroad line including the roundhouse at The Embarcadero and Sansome Street, and
the permanent tent structure is evocative of that prior era. Incorporating the tent into the
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proposed building makes it a permanent addition to the district. The new tent is clearly
differentiated through its design and massing but the masonry and fenestration details and the
expression and overall form of the proposed project is consistent with the Historic District and
relates to the proposed park by creating a stepped down transition from the 40 foot height of
the hotel and the open space.

Scale and Proporiion: The proposed hotel is four-stories high, and the proposed theater pavilion
reaches approximately 40 feet at its tallest point, both of which are consistent with the Historic
District and the zoning for the site.

The hotel building has mostly symmetrical elevations broken up into repetitive sections. The
unique tent enclosure is lower than the hotel building’s parapet line, and has a smaller footprint,
so it does not dominate the proposed development. The attached backstage structure is one-
story high. The overall design steps down from south to north, as it approaches the park on the
northern end of the project site. The scale and proportion of the proposed development is
consistent with the Historic District.

Fanasirstion: Windows in the Historic District are “deeply recessed, varied in size, often
rhythmically spaced, and relate in shape and proportion to those in nearby buildings.” The
proposed fenestration includes multi-lite recessed windows on the ground level, and flush fixed
windows on the second, third and fourth levels with divided lights. All proposed windows have
dark metal framing and dividers reminiscent of the industrial steel sash windows of the district,
and are regularly spaced along Broadway, The Embarcadero, and Davis Street.

Matzrials: The project proposes a brick exterior cladding of the hotel, which is typical of the
Historic District. Although the brick or cast-concrete cornices are typical of the district, the
proposed metal cornice is a contemporary application compatible with the industrial character of
the Historic District. Non-reflective clear or fritted glass and matte-finished metal are the other
proposed materials to be used on the elevations and both reflect those found throughout the
district. Therefore, the proposed project materials would be compatible with the Historic District.

Color: Red brick is typical of the Historic District, with some yellow, buff and painted brick. The
project proposes red brick veneer for the exterior, which is compatible with the Historic District.
The proposed matte-finished dark metal accents (cornice, window-sashes etc.) are also
consistent with the color palette of the Historic District.

Texture: Most of the exterior would be clad in rough textured brick which is consistent with the
rough-grained fagades typical of the Historic District. The first floor of the building would have
horizontal bands of recessed brick veneer that would differentiate the ground level from the rest.
The ground levels of the buildings in the district are occasionally defined by simple or corbelled
belt courses, and recessed bands of brick or stucco on the first floor (i.e. 1050 Battery and 99
Green), so the proposed treatment would be compatible with the Historic District.

Datsil: The ground floor openings of the hotel building are rectangular. Large arches and
rectangular openings (originally for loading docks and bays) are both common at the ground

floors in the district, so these are compatible with the Historic District.

The buildings in the Historic District are simple forms with minimal decoration. The decorative
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elements can be found at entryway surrounds or in the form of highly abstracted cornices and

pliasters. Ihe proposcd ictel butdaing @ i ;

well as a simple cornice and canopies, ail or which are consistent with and reflect the characier-
defining features of the district.

The mechanical zone at the southeast rooftop is concealed behind an opaque fritred glass
screen. The screen would be visible from The Embarcadero and Broadway; however, due to the
combination of its low height and lightweight cladding, the feature would not distract from the
visual character of the Historic District.

The circular glass tent pavilion with its conical glass roof is unique within the Historic District;
however, it will enhance the visibility of the Teatro ZinZanni's historic Spiegeltent from The
Embarcadero and Vallejo Street. This structure is attached to the four-story hotel building to the
south and to the one-story backstage structure to the north, both of which have regular forms
and simple, minimally decorative expressions balancing the tent and reflecting the character of
the district. The new tent pavilion is clearly differentiated through its design and massing, but
the simple rectangular expression of the overall form of the project is consistent with the Historic

District.

Standard 10. New addiitions and adjacent or related new constructions will be undertaken in
such a manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic
property and its environment would be unimpaired.

Clearly, any future removal of this new building would not have an impact on the Historic
District. According to the aerial photographs and Sanborn maps of the area, the site was vacant
as early as 1938. It was used for storing shipping containers from the 1930s through the 1950s,
and for parking after construction of the freeway in 1959.* On the southern section of the lot, at
50 Broadway underneath the Embarcadero Freeway, a restaurant called Victoria Station
operated from 1969 until 1987, and later California Café until 1990. Built of boxcars and
cabooses, the restaurant structure was temporary in nature.® At the time of the 1983 Historic
District designation, most of the site was used as a parking lot with the Embarcadero Freeway
running above the southern portion.

DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS
Following the Planning Department's and Carey & Co.'s suggestions, the reduction of the
projecting glass and metal bays was studied by Hornberger + Worstell Architects and the
projection was eliminated. The Planning Department and the Architectural Review Committee of
the Historic Resource Commission also made a number of other important recommendations
following Carey & Co.’s June 2016 submittal and those recommendations are also included in
the project sponsor’s design proposal. These recommendations include the following:

1. Main Building: Eliminated arcade at Davis and Broadway; pulled the ground level glass

out to the back of the ground level opening

11938 San Francisco Aerial Views, David Rumsey Map Coilection; Historic Aerials by NETR Online; 1950 and the mid-

1990s Sanborm maps of San Francisco.

5 "The rewards of authenticity,” San Francisco Chronicle, December 5, 1971; “Victorian Station, Inc.,” The Comell H.R.A.
Quarterly, November 1, 1970, "Monrey talks, restaurant reunion,” San Francisco Chronicle, March 8, 1987, "Amy
restaurants in a pickle," San Francisco Chronicle, Aoril 2, 1990,
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2. Main Building: All openings along Davis, The Embarcadero and Broadway will be
rectilinear rather than arched.

3. Main Building: Windows will have more divided lites to reiate to the glazing proportions
of historic industrial sash windows in the District.

4. Tent: Both the cylindrical enclosure and the back-of-house areas will be glazed.

5. Tent: The roof will be a fritted, non-reflective glass.

6. Brick material will be red, rather than buff,

7. Rooftop mechanical equipment will be wrapped in matte-finished dark metal panel
screen walls with a central planted green screen wail along Broadway and an additionai
green screen wall facing west at the corner of Broadway and Davis Street.

CONCLUSION

The proposed theater and hotel development project, which is to be constructed on an existing
vacant lot, will not destroy historic materials, features, or spatial relationships that characterize
the Historic District. The design does not include or incorporate any false-historic features. The
proposed buildings will be compatible with, and will not adversely affect, the surrounding
Northeast Waterfront Historic District. In addition, the project completes the southeast edge of
the District through the construction of a compatible corner building.
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Case No.: 2015-016326ENV Reception:
Project Title: Seawall Lots 323 and 324 — Hotel and Theater Project 415.558.6378
Zoning: C-2 (Community Business) Use District Fax:
Waterfront 3, Special Use District 415.558.6409
40-x Height and Bulk District Planning
Block/Lot: 0138/001 Information:
0139/002 415.558.6377
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Project Sponsor Jay Wallace
TZK Broadway, LL.C
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
square-foot (gsf) entertainment venue that would house Teatro ZinZanni’s historic spiegeltentl and 285-seat
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
parking at existing nearby facilities. Approximately 20 class I bicycle parking spaces and 28 class Il bicycle
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





F.

MITIGATION MEASURES AND IMPROVEMENT MEASURES

The following mitigation measures have been identified to reduce potentially significant impacts resulting from the proposed
project to a less-than-significant level. Improvement measures recommended to reduce or avoid less-than-significant impacts
are also identified below. Accordingly, the project sponsor has agreed to implement the mitigation measures and

improvement measures described below.

F.1.

MITIGATION MEASURES

Mitigation Measure M-CR-2: Archeological Testing

Based on a reasonable presumption that archeological resources may be present on the project site, the following
measures shall be undertaken to avoid any potentially significant adverse effect from the proposed project on buried

or submerged historical resources.

The project sponsor shall retain the services of an archeological consultant from the rotational Department Qualified
Archaeological Consultants List maintained by the San Francisco Planning Department’s archeologist. The project
sponsor shall contact the department’s archeologist to obtain the names and contact information for the next three
archeological consultants on the list. The archeological consultant shall undertake an archeological testing program
as specified herein. In addition, the consultant shall be available to conduct an archeological monitoring and/or data
recovery program if required pursuant to this measure. The archeological consultant’s work shall be conducted in
accordance with this measure at the direction of the environmental review officer (ERO). All plans and reports
prepared by the consultant as specified herein shall be submitted first and directly to the ERO for review and
comment, and shall be considered draft reports subject to revision until final approval by the ERO. Archeological
monitoring and/or data recovery programs required by this measure could suspend construction of the project for up
to 4 weeks. At the direction of the ERO, the suspension of construction can be extended beyond 4 weeks only if
such a suspension is the only feasible means to reduce to a less-than-significant level potential effects on a
significant archeological resource as defined in CEQA Guidelines sections 15064.5(a) and 15064.5(c).

Consultation with Descendant Communities: On discovery of an archeological site”" associated with descendant
Native Americans, the Overseas Chinese, or other potentially interested descendant group, an appropriate
representativem2 of the descendant group and the ERO shall be contacted. The representative of the descendant group
shall be given the opportunity to monitor archeological field investigations of the site and to offer recommendations
to the ERO regarding appropriate archeological treatment of the site, of recovered data from the site, and if
applicable, any interpretative treatment of the associated archeological site. A copy of the final archeological
resources report shall be provided to the representative of the descendant group.

Archeological Testing Program. The archeological consultant shall prepare and submit to the ERO for review and
approval an archeological testing plan. The archeological testing program shall be conducted in accordance with the
approved testing plan. The archeological testing plan shall identify the property types of the expected archeological
resource(s) that potentially could be adversely affected by the proposed project, the testing method to be used, and the
locations recommended for testing. The purpose of the archeological testing program will be to determine to the extent

*" The term “archeological site” is intended here to minimally include any archeological deposit, feature, burial, or evidence of burial.

* An “appropriate representative” of the descendant group is here defined to mean, in the case of Native Americans, any individual
listed in the current Native American Contact List for the City and County of San Francisco maintained by the California Native
American Heritage Commission and in the case of the Overseas Chinese, the Chinese Historical Society of America. An appropriate
representative of other descendant groups should be determined in consultation with the Department archeologist.
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possible the presence or absence of archeological resources and to identify and evaluate whether any archeological
resource encountered on the site constitutes a historical resource under CEQA.

At the completion of the archeological testing program, the archeological consultant shall submit a written report of
the findings to the ERO. If based on the archeological testing program the archeological consultant finds that
significant archeological resources may be present, the ERO in consultation with the archeological consultant shall
determine whether additional measures are warranted. Additional measures that may be undertaken include
additional archeological testing, archeological monitoring, and/or an archeological data recovery program. No
archeological data recovery shall be undertaken without the prior approval of the ERO or the San Francisco
Planning Department’s archeologist. If the ERO determines that a significant archeological resource is present and that
the resource could be adversely affected by the proposed project, at the discretion of the project sponsor either:

(A) The proposed project shall be redesigned to avoid any adverse effect on the significant archeological

resource. OR

(B) A data recovery program shall be implemented, unless the ERO determines that the archeological
resource is of greater interpretive than research significance and that interpretive use of the resource is

feasible.

Archeological Monitoring Program. If the ERO in consultation with the archeological consultant determines that an
archeological monitoring program shall be implemented, the archeological monitoring program shall minimally

include the following provisions:

e  The archeological consultant, project sponsor, and ERO shall meet and consult on the scope of the
archeological monitoring program a reasonably prior to any project-related soil-disturbing activities
commencing. The ERO in consultation with the archeological consultant shall determine what project
activities shall be archeologically monitored. In most cases, any soil-disturbing activities, such as
demolition, foundation removal, excavation, grading, utilities installation, foundation work, driving of piles
(e.g., foundation, shoring), and site remediation, shall require archeological monitoring because of the risk
these activities pose to potential archeological resources and to their depositional context.

e The archeological consultant shall advise all project contractors to be on the alert for evidence of the
presence of the expected resource(s), how to identify the evidence of the expected resource(s) and the
appropriate protocol in the event of apparent discovery of an archeological resource.

e  The archeological monitor(s) shall be present on the project site according to a schedule agreed upon by the
archeological consultant and the ERO until the ERO has, in consultation with the project’s archeological
consultant, determined that project construction activities could have no effects on significant archeological

deposits.

e The archeological monitor shall record and be authorized to collect soil samples and artifactual/ecofactual

material as warranted for analysis.

o Ifan intact archeological deposit is encountered, all soil-disturbing activities in the vicinity of the deposit
shall cease. The archeological monitor shall be empowered to temporarily redirect
demolition/excavation/pile driving/construction activities and equipment until the deposit is evaluated. If in
the case of pile driving or deep foundation activities (e.g., foundation, shoring), the archeological monitor
has cause to believe that the pile driving or deep foundation activities may affect an archeological resource,
the pile driving or deep foundation activities shall be terminated until an appropriate evaluation of the
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resource has been made in consultation with the ERO. The archeological consultant shall immediately
notify the ERO of the encountered archeological deposit. The archeological consultant shall make a
reasonable effort to assess the identity, integrity, and significance of the encountered archeological deposit,
and present the findings of this assessment to the ERO.

Whether or not significant archeological resources are encountered, the archeological consultant shall submit a
written report of the findings of the monitoring program to the ERO.

Archeological Data Recovery Program. The archeological data recovery program shall be conducted in accordance
with an archeological data recovery plan (ADRP). The archeological consultant, project sponsor, and ERO shall
meet and consult on the plan’s scope of the ADRP prior to preparation of a draft ADRP. The archeological
consultant shall submit a draft ADRP to the ERO. The ADRP shall identify how the proposed data recovery
program will preserve the significant information the archeological resource is expected to contain. That is, the
ADRP will identify what scientific/historical research questions are applicable to the expected resource, what data
classes the resource is expected to possess, and how the expected data classes would address the applicable research
questions. Data recovery, in general, should be limited to the portions of the historical property that could be
adversely affected by the proposed project. Destructive data recovery methods shall not be applied to portions of the
archeological resources if nondestructive methods are practical.

The scope of the ADRP shall include the following elements:
e Field Methods and Procedures. Descriptions of proposed field strategies, procedures, and operations.

o Cataloguing and Laboratory Analysis. Description of the selected cataloguing system and artifact analysis

procedures.

e Discard and Deaccession Policy. Description of and rationale for field and post-field discard and

deaccession policies.

e Interpretive Program. Consideration of an onsite/offsite public interpretive program during the course of

the archeological data recovery program.

o Security Measures. Recommended security measures to protect the archeological resource from vandalism,

looting, and unintentionally damaging activities.
e  Final Report. Description of proposed report format and distribution of results.

e Curation. Description of the procedures and recommendations for the curation of any recovered data
having potential research value, identification of appropriate curation facilities, and a summary of the
accession policies of the curation facilities.

Human Remains, Associated or Unassociated Funerary Objects. The treatment of human remains and of associated
or unassociated funerary objects discovered during any soil-disturbing activity shall comply with applicable state
and federal laws, including immediate notification of the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner of the City and
County of San Francisco and, in the event of the medical examiner’s determination that the human remains are
Native American, notification of the Native American Heritage Commission, which shall appoint a Most Likely
Descendant (MLD) (PRC section 5097.98). The ERO shall also be immediately notified upon discovery of human
remains. The archeological consultant, project sponsor, ERO, and MLD shall have up to but not beyond 6 days after
the discovery to make all reasonable efforts to develop an agreement for the treatment of human remains and
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associated or unassociated funerary objects with appropriate dignity (CEQA Guidelines, section 15064.5[d]). The
agreement should take into consideration the appropriate excavation, removal, recordation, analysis, curation,
possession, and final disposition of the human remains and associated or unassociated funerary objects. Nothing in
existing state regulations or in this mitigation measure compels the project sponsor and the ERO to accept the
recommendations of an MLD. The archeological consultant shall retain possession of any Native American human
remains and associated or unassociated burial objects until completion of any scientific analyses of the human
remains or objects as specified in the treatment agreement, if such as agreement has been made, or otherwise, as
determined by the archeological consultant and the ERO. If no agreement is reached, state regulations shall be
followed, including the reburial of the human remains and associated burial objects with appropriate dignity on the
property in a location not subject to further subsurface disturbance (PRC section 5097.98).

Final Archeological Resources Report. The archeological consultant shall submit a draft final archeological
resources report to the ERO that evaluates the historical significance of any discovered archeological resource and
describes the archeological and historical research methods employed in the archeological testing/monitoring/data
recovery program(s) undertaken. Information that may put at risk any archeological resource shall be provided in a

separate removable insert within the final report.

Once approved by the ERO, copies of the draft final archeological resources report shall be distributed as follows:
The California Archaeological Site Survey Northwest Information Center shall receive one copy and the ERO shall
receive a copy of the transmittal of the report to the Northwest Information Center. The Environmental Planning
Division of the San Francisco Planning Department shall receive one bound, one unbound, and one unlocked,
searchable PDF copy on CD of the report, along with copies of any formal site recordation forms (CA DPR 523
series) and/or documentation for nomination to the NRHP/CRHR. In instances of high public interest in or the high
interpretive value of the resource, the ERO may require a different final report content, format, and distribution than

that presented above.

Mitigation Measure M-CR-4: Tribal Cultural Resources Interpretive Program

If the ERO determines that a significant archeological resource is present, and if in consultation with the affiliated
Native American tribal representatives, the ERO determines that the resource constitutes a tribal cultural resource
and that the resource could be adversely affected by the proposed project, the proposed project shall be redesigned to
avoid any adverse effect on the significant tribal cultural resource, if feasible.

If the ERO, in consultation with the affiliated Native American tribal representatives and the project sponsor,
determines that preservation in place of the tribal cultural resources is not a sufficient or feasible option, the project
sponsor shall implement an interpretive program of the tribal cultural resource in consultation with affiliated tribal
representatives. An interpretive plan produced in consultation with the ERO and affiliated tribal representatives, at a
minimum, and approved by the ERO would be required to guide the interpretive program. The plan shall identify, as
appropriate, proposed locations for installations or displays, the proposed content and materials of those displays or
installation, the producers or artists of the displays or installation, and a long-term maintenance program. The
interpretive program may include artist installations, preferably by local Native American artists, oral histories with
local Native Americans, artifact displays and interpretation, and educational panels or other informational displays.

Mitigation Measure M-AQ-2: Construction Air Quality
The project sponsor or the project sponsor’s contractor shall comply with the following:

A. Engine Requirements. Where access to alternative sources of power is available, portable diesel engines shall be
prohibited. Diesel engines, whether for off-road or on-road equipment, shall not be left idling for more than 2
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H. DETERMINATION

On the basis of this Initial Study:

[0 1 findthatthe proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

X Ifindthat although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will
not be 8 significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by
the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

[J 1 findthat the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

[J 1 findthat the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact™ or “potentially significant
unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in
an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation
measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.

[0 1findthar although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all
potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE
DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to
that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are
imposed upon the proposed project, no further environmental documentation is required.

pate [ 9./_/_7#?

[

fa‘{ Lisa Gibson

Environmental Review Officer
for

John Rahaim

Director of Planning
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1525 Grant Avenue
San Francisco,CA 94133 ‘
TEL 415.984.1450

Chmatown Community
Development Center FAX 415.362.7962
TTY 415.984.9910
o ,
www.chinatowncdc.org

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94103
Attention: Laura Lynch

RE:  Support for Teatro Zinzanni and Kenwood Investments

Hotel & Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324 /Broadway and The Embarcadero

Case No. 2015-016326ENV

On behalf of the Chinatown Community Development Center (CCDC), I am writing to
express our support for the Teatro Zinzanni/Kenwood Investments hotel and theater
project and the Planning Department’s decision that the project qualifies for a Mitigated

Negative Declaration.

For over 30 years, Chinatown CDC has been dedicated to the pursuit of our mission to
build community and enhance the quality of life for San Francisco’s residents. We are a
place-based community development organization that strives to empower low-income
residents by providing advocacy, planning, organizing, housing development and
property management for neighborhood across the City. As you know, we are
particularly attentive to protecting Chinatown and thus are pleased to report that
Chinatown CDC wholeheartedly supports the Zinzanni/Kenwood hotel and theater
project at Broadway and The Embarcadero, the gateway to Chinatown and North Beach.

We have participated in numerous meetings with the Project Sponsor and we are fully
aware of the hotel and theater project’s uses, design and scope, and we support the

project wholeheartedly!

The hotel and theater will support the Arts, create a new public park in our
neighborhood, is designed to fit into the historic district, will be sustainably built, and

respects the 40-X height and bulk limit for the site.

Chinatown CDC strongly believes that the Zinzanni/Kenwood hotel and theater project
should be approved, and we urge you to support the issuance of the Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the project. Thank you for your anticipated support for the
Kenwood/Zinzanni hotel and theater project.

Sincerely,

Malcolm Yeung
Chinatown Community Development Center

professionatly ged by Chinatown cgmmunily Developmeant Center do not dlsaimlnale based o 1808, color, creed,
Nexghbor%rks é\' rehgioa sex, national anigin, ege, familial stafus, handicap, ancestry, msdical condition, status, sexval i
orientation, AIDS, AIDS related condition {ARC) menlaldisabllﬁy mental staius, soumaal incoms, or any other arbitrary stalus. oy

CHARTERED MEMEER





John K. Stewart
285 Telegraph Hill Blvd.
San Francisco, CA 94133

Via Email: Jauralynch@sfgov.org

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Attn: Laura Lynch

RE: Case No.2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324
Support for Project

Dear Ms. Lynch:

Gussie and | are long-time North Beach residents and we are writing to express our
support for the Kenwood Investments-Teatro Zinzanni hotel and theater project, and the
Planning Department’s decision that the project qualifies for a Mitigated Negative
Declaration. As you know, my company, The John Stewart Company, and Bridge Housing
are developing the new affordable housing project at 88 Broadway, which is directly across
the street from the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater. I am writing to let you know that
we have worked with Kenwood-Zinzanni on a number of design issues and are currently
cooperating with them on a number of off-site utility issues that we share in common, and
that we too endorse the Kenwood-Zinzanni project.

I have watched the Kenwood-Zinzanni project from its inception. To its credit, the project
promised that it would comply, and to this day, has complied with the site’s 40-foot height
limit. Once built, the project will support a new 192-room, an entertainment venue
featuring Teatro Zinzanni, and a new public park in the neighborhood. The project is
designed to fit into the historic district, will be sustainably built, and respects the height
and bulk limit and the neighborhood character surrounding the project. Finally, the under-
used and undeveloped surface parking lot will become a vibrant public serving venue,
hosting Trust consistent uses on the site and creating a long missing gateway to North
Beach and Chinatown.

I believe that the Kenwood-Zinzanni project should be approved when it comes before the
various approving agencies in the near future and urge your support for that outcome and
the issuance of the Mitigated Negative Declaration.

Sincerely,

Kt

John Stewart






BARBARY COAST BCNA

550 Davis Street, Box 6

‘\ Egé%%?ETﬁgSOD San Francisco, CA 94111
BOARD OF DIRECTORs  November 12, 2018
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE via email to Laura.Lynch@sfgov.org and by U.S. Mail
David Albert Laura Lynch, Staff Contact
Bill Hannan San Francisco Planning Department
;2;?1?;;; 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94103
MEMBERS AT LARGE
orton Geche Re: Case No. 2015-016326ENV
Adam Bergman Seawall Lots SWL 323 and 324
Bob Harrer Hotel and Theater Project

Michele Hennessey
Mary Lou Licwinko
Lee Robbins
James Seff

Dear Ms. Lynch:

Please be advised that the Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association (“BCNA”)
supports the determination by the Planning Department that a Mitigated Negative
Declaration will be issued for the Teatro ZinZanni-Kenwood Investments (TZK) hotel
and theater project, and that no Environmental Impact Report will be required.

We have completed our review of the Initial Study and want to emphasize a few
remaining concems. They are:

1) The loss of 250 parking spaces at the existing parking lot, and the loss of 35
existing street parking spaces, which will require some workers, shoppers and visitors
to find other parking accommodations;

2) The effect of traffic using the 80-foot Broadway passenger loading zone on
drivers exiting from the parking garage immediately across the street at 25 Broadway;
and,

3) Construction noise from impact tools and other construction equipment not
subject to the San Francisco Noise Ordinance, especially during the demolition and
foundational work phases.

We suggest that permanent signage at or near the site should be installed to direct
motorists to nearby parking locations. We have had a discussion with the Project
Sponsor who has agreed to work cooperatively with BCNA and the Port to address
parking signage and availability measures on both the Embarcadero and the SWL
intersections to help direct motorists to nearby parking locations.

Second, we believe that hotel management should open and maintain communications
with the property managers representing the co-owners of the properties across
Broadway from the TZK development (Golden Gateway Commons 1I & 111
HOA/Downtown Properties) to minimize traffic hazards. Again, we have had a
discussion with the Project Sponsor who has agreed to work cooperatively with
BCNA and the property managers to address this issue. We also want to note,





Ms. Elaine Forbes
Page 2

affirmatively, that the Project Sponsor has already agreed to Improvement Measures 1-TR-2a and I-TR-
2b, which specifically addresses monitoring and abatement of queues and active valet parking

management,

Finally, we believe that construction managers should take action to minimize noise, especially during
the demolition and foundational work phases. We see in the Initial Study that the Project Developer will
be required to comply with the City’s Noise Ordinance, Police Code Article 29, section 2907 which we
endorse. We note that section 2907(b) requires that pavement breakers and jackhammers shall be
equipped with acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds to maximize noise attenuation. We have
discussed this issue with the Project Sponsor as well and are pleased to report that the Project Sponsor
has agreed to work with us on this request, by implementing the use of mufflers or other noise screening
measures to maximize noise attenuation from pavement breakers and jackhammers consistent with the

ordinance.

We continue to support the Teatro ZinZanni-Kenwood Investments hotel and theater project and are
very pleased with the relationship the Project Sponsor has developed with BCNA and other affected
neighbors by addressing our concerns during the design and pre-development phases. Please feel free to

contact me with any questions.

Sincerely.

Diana Taylor, President
Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association

cc: Jay Wallace, Kenwood Investments, LLC jwallace@jwallaceassociates.com
Ricky Tijani (ricky.tijani@sfport.com)
Supervisor Aaron Peskin (aaron.peskin@sfgov.org )

Adele Laurence Adele@laurencemanagement.com (Property Manager GG Commons I/III)*
Miguel Ordefiana Miguel@terrenosf.com (Property Manager GGII Commons HOA; 640 Davis St)*

*Contact Adele Laurence or Miguel Ordefiana for contact information of the Property Manager of the
Commercial owner of the properties that are owned in common with the GGI-III residential units HOA (they
manage the garage and commercial units across Broadway from the TZK development). The current owner
(Downtown Properties) is in process of selling their commercial portion.





GOLDEN GATEWAY TENANTS ASSOCIATION
P.0. BOX 2134
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94126
goldengatewaytenants.org

November 7, 2018

Via email to Laura.Lynch@sfgov.orp and by US Mail

Laura Lynch, Staff Contact

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Re: Case No. 2015-016326ENV
Seawall Lots 323 and 324
Teatro ZinZanni and Kenwood Investments hotel and dinner theater

Dear Ms. Lynch:

The Golden Gateway Tenants Association represents occupants of the Gateway, a residential
complex bounded by Battery, Jackson, Drumm and Washington Streets located two blocks from
the Teatro ZinZanni project site. GGTA supports the decision by the Planning Department that
no Environmental Impact Report is required, and that a Mitigated Negative Declaration will be

sufficient.

We have been assured that the Project Sponsor will cooperate with the Port to post signs or
otherwise direct motorists to nearby parking locations; will actively monitor the Broadway
passenger loading zone to control traffic congestion; and will provide sound mufflers and other
acoustic devices to minimize construction noise, especially during the demolition phase.

We continue to welcome the Teatro ZinZanni project, and very much appreciate the excellent
community outreach the Project Sponsor has pursued for several years. Please feel free to

contact us with any questions.

Slncerely, ; ) ; LS ( (Q\)/l
atJ Eggert-Relch President Bill Hannan, Vic President

Golden Gateway Tenants Association Golden Gateway Tenants Association
tatereich@ gmail.com whann@att.net

cc: Jay Wallace, Kenwood Investments, LLC
jwallace@wallaceassociates.com





San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Attn: Laura Lynch

Via Email: laura.lynch@sfgov.org

RE:  Case No. 2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324
Support for Project

| am writing on behalf of UNITE HERE Local 2 which represents 9,000 hospitality industry
workers in San Francisco.

We are writing to inform you that Local 2 strongly supports the Kenwood-Zinzanni hote! and
theater project at Seawall Lots 323 and 324. The developer of this project, Kenwood
Investments, contacted our Union early in the process and entered into a Card Check Neutrality
Agreement (CCNA) that meets all of Local 2’s conditions for operations of the new hotel and
theater as they pertain to front desk personnel. We also want to acknowledge approvingly that
our CCNA is a companion CCNA to the one that the developer signed with Teamsters Local 856,

a measure that we applaud.

We were proud to stand with the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project when it came
before the Board of Supervisors in July 2016 when the project was endorsed by a vote of 11-0,
and we will do so again as this project moves through the entitlement process. Towards that
end, we strongly support the Planning Department’s decision to publish a Mitigated Negative

Declaration for the project.

We also want to note for the record that this project, in addition to entering into the CCNA, has
also maintained the 40-foot height limit on the site and has been designed to meet the
requirements of the Planning Code provisions concerning development in historic districts.
Projects that can do all of those things should be approved to keep our City strong.
Accordingly, Local 2 wants you to know that we strongly support the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel
and theater project and urge you to move the project forward as quickly as possible.

Sincerely,

9D Lay

lan Lewis
Research Director

Anand Singh Chito Cuéljar Tina Chen
President Vice-President Secretary-Treasurer

209 Golden Gate Ave., San Francisco, CA 94102 » phone: 415.864.8770 « fax: 415.864.4158
209 Highland Ave., Burlingame, CA, 94010 » phone: 650.344.6827 « fax: 650.344.9406

®





W
Hotel 0C;ouncil
SAN FRANCISCO

Via Email: laura.lynch@sfgov.org

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Attn: Laura Lynch

RE: Case No. 2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324
Support for Project

On behalf of the Hotel Council of San Francisco and our Board of Directors I am
writing in support of the Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project at Seawall
Lost 323 and 324. Our organization is proud to represent the hotel industry in San
Francisco, which is part of our city’s largest industry, tourism.

This project will provide more hotel and lodging options for our City’s tourism and
visitor base, and will provide good jobs for our residents. The hotel and visitor-
serving industry is San Francisco’s most important industry base and projects like
the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project should be supported for that
reason alone. Accordingly, we strongly support the Planning Department’s decision
to publish a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project.

Our support for the project is due not only to the commitments made and kept by
the Project Sponsor during the review period to further the hotel industry, but also
by the fact that this project has complied with the 40 foot height limit on the site and
the requirements of all Planning Code provisions. Projects that can do all of those
things should be approved to keep our City strong.

We urge you to move the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project forward as
quickly as possible. Thank you.

Sincerely,

LAl

Kevin Carroll
Executive Director

323 Geary Street Suite 405 - San Francisco, CA 94102





LABORERS' INTERNATIONAL UNION OF NORTH AMERICA

LOCAL UNION NO. 261
November 14, 2018

Via Email: laura.lynch@sfgov.org

San Francisco Planning Department
R Vonager 1650 Missic?n Street, Suite 400
= San Francisco, CA 94103

AVID DE LA TORRE  Attn: Laura Lynch
ctary-Treasurer

RE:  Case No. 2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324
Support for Project

I am writing on behalf of the Laborers' International Union of Northern America,
Local 261, which represents over 5,000 residents in San Francisco. Our Union is a
proud member of the San Francisco community and we take our responsibilities to
our community seriously.

It is in that regard that we are writing to inform you of our strong support for the
Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project at Seawall Lots 323 and 324. The
developer of this project contacted our Union early in the process and agreed to
construct the project with union labor. This sfrong commitment for our community,
and the working men and women of our City should be acknowledged and
| 18th Street rewarded by the City and its decision makers. We were proud to stand with the
ci5co, CA 94110 Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project when it came before the Board of
- [415) 826-4550 Supervisors in July 2016 and the project was endorsed by a vote of 11-0, and we will
25 {415) B26-1948 do so again as this project moves through the entitlement process. Towards that
end, we strongly support the Planning Department's decision to publish a Mitigated
Negative Declaration for the project.

Our support for the project is due not only to the commitments made and kept by
the Project Sponsor regarding employment and worker's rights, but aiso by the fact
that this project has consistently and without waiver complied with the 40 foot
k. height limit on the site and the requirements of all Planning Code provisions. Projects
COUNTY that can do all of those things should be approved to keep our City strong.

wood Highway
ar Rafaei, CA 94913 We urge you to move the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project forward as
one (415} 492-0936 quickly as possible. Thank you.
A [415) 492-8233

Sincerely,

VINCE COURTNEY
Recording Secretary






\Livable
City

October 11, 2018

Re: Support for Teatro Zinzanni/Kenwood Investments Hotel Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324/Broadway and The Embarcadero

Dear Members:

Livable City is a San Francisco based non-profit whose mission is to create a San Francisco of great streets and
complete neighborhoods, where walking, bicycling, and transit are the best choices for most trips, where public spaces
are beautiful, well-designed, and well-maintained, and where housing is more plentiful and more affordable.

On behalf of Livable City, I am writing to express our strong support for the Teatro Zinzanni/Kenwood Investments,
LLC hotel and theater project, located on Seawall Lots 323 & 324 at the intersection of Broadway and The
Embarcadero, and encourage you to support it when it comes before you for approval.

Teatro Zinzanni and Kenwood Investments are rooted here in San Francisco. The project sponsor reached out to us,
and have thoroughly reviewed the proposal and met with the project sponsor to better understand aspects of the project

and its public benefits,

The hotel and theater project will provide an active and engaging set of uses and public spaces where Broadway meets
the Embarcadero. The buiiding has been thoughtfully designed to enhance its urban context, engage and activate
adjacent streets, and to be a respectful neighbor to nearby historic buildings. The building will be built to a minimum
LEED Gold standard. It contains no parking, which is both green and appropriate to the setting. The sponsors intend to
rely on the rich transit service near the project site {Muni, BART, ferries) and the site’s excellent walking and cycling

access, supplemented with off-site parking.

The project will build and maintain a new public park and improve pedestrian access with new landscaped sidewalks.
The theater, restaurant, bar, and meeting rooms will activate this stretch of the waterfront in the evening hours, making

this stretch of the waterfront safer, livelier, more diverse, and more inviting.

Lease revenues from the project will help the Port sustain critical public infrastructure, including the seawall and
historic piers, and support public access and desirable maritime activities on the waterfront. The project will generate
millions of dollars in property, sales, and hotel taxes to sustain the City’s General Fund, transportation, and the arts. A
new performing arts venue supports San Francisco’s arts and performance communities, and during both construction
and operation the theater and hotel will provide hundreds of unionized jobs.

Livable City strongly believes that the Zinzanni/Kenwood hotel and theater project will be fine asset to our waterfront,
and we urge you to support the project when it comes before you in the future. Thank you in advance for your
consideration and support for this project.

Sincerely,
o BLGSS

Tom Radulovich
Executive Director

301 8" Street Suite 235 ¢ San Francisco, CA 94103 e 415-344-0489 e www.livablecity.org






North Beach/Chinatown Neighbors and Friends
Supporting Kenwood-Zinznni Hotel and Theater

Via Email: lauralynch@sfgov.org

Ms. Laura Lynch
San Francisco Planning Department
San Francisco, CA 94103

RE: Case No.2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project/Seawall Lots 323 & 324

Support for Project

Dear Ms. Lynch:

We are long-time North Beach and Chinatown community activists, supporters and
neighbors and we are writing to express our support for the Kenwood Investments-
Teatro Zinzanni hotel and theater project, and the Planning Department’s decision
that the project qualifies for a Mitigated Negative Declaration.

The project complies with the site’s 40 foot height limit and once built will supporta
new entertainment venue and a new public park in our neighborhood. The project
is designed to fit into the historic district and has received endorsement from the
Department’s historic office. After participating in numerous meetings with the
project sponsor, we find that the project meet with the requirements of the
Waterfront Land Use Plan and all other planning requirements, and at the same
time, brings desirable community benefits as well as positive economic impact to
the neighborhood as well as the City as a whole.

When the project is approved, San Francisco, in addition to receiving the benefits
described above, will also receive millions of dollars in General Fund and TOT
dollars, new Port lease revenues that can be used to fulfill its Trust obligations, a
new entertainment venue to enhance the City’s artist communities, and hundreds of
jobs during construction and operation of the hotel and theater. For these reasons,
we strongly support the Kenwoced-Zinzanni hotel and theater project and urge the
City to approve the project as soon as possible.

Bob Harrer Diana Taylor Bill Hannan Stewart Morton Joe Carouba

Janet Clyde Brad Paul Chris Martin Anne Halsted John Stewart Dick Grosboll
Rod Freebairn-Smith  Claudine Cheng Malcolm Yeung Wells Whitney

Bruno Kanter Danny Sauter Marv Kasoff Jeannette Etheridge Dave Ho

Leslie Kay ~ Michael DeWees Larry Zintarski Bobby Winston Mort Beebe
Pat Franks  Bob Mittlestadt  Cathy Merrill ~ Susan Heller  Irene Tibitts
Rev. Norman Fong Tom McCarthy Gussie Stewart Denise McCarthy Patricia Neel





- North Beach Neighbors
INLE NORTH BEACH P.0. Box 330115
i NEIGH B S San Francisco, CA 94133
SR northbeachneighbors.org

November 15, 2018

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94103

Atin: Laura Lynch, laura.lynch@sfgov.org

RE: Support Letter: Teatro Zinzanni-Kenwood Investments Hotel & Theater Project,
Seawall Lots 323 and 324, Case No. 2015-016326ENV.

Dear Planning Department,

North Beach Neighbors (NBN) is a San Francisco non-profit organization comprised of North Beach
residents, local businesses, and civic leaders. Since 1981, we have advocated on behalf of neighbors to

create a vibrant and inclusive neighborhood.

With these goals in mind, we write to you today in support of the Teatro Zinzanni-Kenwood Investments
Hotel & Theater Project and the Planning Department's determination that the project qualifies for a
Mitigated Negative Declaration. We were impressed by the community outreach of the developer from
early conception of the project through numerous meetings these past several years. We have seen
broad community input and concerns addressed with changes to the project resulting in an appropriately
scaled and mature building design. Not only does the project comply with the Port's Waterfront Land Use
Plan, it also seems to fit properly within the context of the historic district. We see this project as well
suited to act as a "gateway” to North Beach at this prominent intersection of Broadway Street and the

Embarcadero.

North Beach will be a stronger and more vibrant community when the arts are supported in our area.
Teatro Zinzanni has become woven into the fabric of our neighborhood and we are grateful that the hotel
project offers a sustainable home for the facility. The community will also be well served by the public

park to be constructed as a part of the project. North Beach Neighbors offers our strong support and
asks that you please see that the hotel and theater project moves forward.

Damied -a Santer
Danny Sauter, President
/’Qm?%/m
Bruno Kanter, V.P. / Chair P&Z

CC: Jay Wallace - jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com





TELEPHONE (415) 626-2000 FACSIMILE {415) 626-2009

EMAIL: UALOCAL3BRUALOCAL3B.ORG

=5 UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEN AND APPRENTICES
OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPE FITTING INDUSTRY

LOCAL UNION NO. 38

1621 MARKET STREET ¢« SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

November 7, 2018
Via Email: Jaura.lynch@slgov.org

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Attn; Laura Lynch

RE:  Case No. 2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324
Support for Project

I am writing on behalf of Local Union 38, which represents over 2500 residents in San Francisco.
Our Union is a proud member of the San Francisco community and we take our responsibilities to
our community seriously.

It is in that regard that we are writing to inform you of our strong support for the Kenwood-
Zinzanni hotel and theater project at Seawall Lots 323 and 324. The developer of this project
contacted our Union early in the process and agreed to construct the project with union labor. .
This strong commitment for our community, and the working men and women of our City should
be acknowledged and rewarded by the City and its decision makers. We were proud to stand with
the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project when it came before the Board of Supervisors in
July 2016 and the project was endorsed by a vote of 11-0, and we will do so again as this project
moves through the entitlement process. Towards that end, we strongly support the Planning
Department’s decision to publish a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project.

Our support for the project is due not only to the commitments made and kept by the Project
Sponsor regarding employment and worker’s rights, but also by the fact that this project has
consistently and without waiver complied with the 40-foot height limit on the site and the
requirements of all Planning Code provisions. Projects that can do all of those things should be
approved to keep our City strong.

We urge you to move the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project forward as quickly as
possible. Thank you.

Sincerely,

LARRY MAZZOLA, JR
Bus.Mgr. & Fin.Secty-Treas.

Affiliated with American Federation of Labor Bldg. & Constr, Trades Dept. Metat Trades Dept, Railway Dept, Union Labels Trades Dept, Dominion 1rades & Labor Congress of Canada





Construction Trades Conuncil

San Francisco Building and
TEL. (415) 3459333

1188 FRANKLIN STREET - SUITE 203

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94109
www.sfbuildingiradescouncil.org

EMAIL: fim@sfbuildingiradescouncil.org WA
5 LT 4
R
A Cenvury of Excellence
in Crafismanssip
LARRY MATZOLA, JR. TiM PAULSON JOHN DOHERTY
President Secretary - Treasurer VINCE COURTNEY, JR.
Vice Presidents

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

I am writing on behalf of the San Francisco Building and Construction Trades
Council, which represents 36 Unions in San Francisco.

I am writing to inform you of the Building and Construction Trades Council’s strong
support for the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project at Seawall Lots 323 and
324. The developer of this project contacted our Union early in the process and
agreed to construct the project with union labor. We are proud to support this
project given its strong commitment for our community, and the working men and
women of our City. We were proud to stand with the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and
theater project when it came before the Board of Supervisors in July 2016 and the
project was endorsed by a vote of 11-0, and we will do so again as this project
moves through the entitlement process. Towards that end, we strongly support the
Planning Department’s decision to publish a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the

project.

Our support for the project is due not only to the commitments made and kept by
the Project Sponsor regarding employment and worker’s rights, but also by the fact
that this project has consistently and without waiver complied with the 40 foot
height limit on the site and the requirements of all Planning Code provisions.
Projects that can do all of those things should be approved to keep our City strong.

We urge you to move the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project forward as
quickly as possible. Thank you.

Sincerely, @ ~

Tim Paulson w





SAN

FRANCISCO 235 Montgomery St., Ste. 760, San Francisco, CA 94104
Lol LU EI tel: 415.352.4520 « fax: 415.392.0485

odo ] || {e{ W sfchamber.com - twitter: @sf_chamber

November 1, 2018

John Rahaim Elaine Forbes

Planning Director Executive Director

San Francisco Planning Commission Port of San Francisco
1660 Mission Street, Suite 400 Pier 1, The Embarcadero
San Francisco, CA 94103 San Francisco CA 94111

Re: SUPPORT Teatro Zinzanni-Kenwood Investments Hotel and Theater Project

Dear Director Rahaim and Executive Director Forbes,

The San Francisco Chamber of Commerce, representing thousands of local businesses and their employees is
pleased to express our support of the Teatro Zinzanni-Kenwood Investments Hotel and Theater Project on Seawall

Lots 323 and 324.
The Chamber supports this project for the following reasons:

a. The Project fully complies with the requirements set forth by the City codes, regulations and policies, including
maintaining the 40-foot height limit and the City’s historic preservation codes that govern the project site.

b. The theater created by the Project wili establish a new, permanent home for entertainment of all varieties,
featuring Teatro Zinzanni's world-renowned entertainment performances. The addition of this space will allow
the continued growth of vibrant cultural life in our City, a true pillar of what makes San Francisco special.

¢. This Project will create hundreds of temporary union construction jobs and approximately 85 permanent jobs in
the arts, hotel and hospitality industry fields — all of which are critical for the economic well-being of the City.

d. The Project also re-purposes the Port’s notoriously hard-to-develop and currently under-utilized surface
parking lot and will allow the private sector to build a world class project, capable of generating millions of
dollars in new tax revenues and rent payments for the City and the Port, thus contributing to our City's

resiliency and fiscal responsibility.

e. Finally, the Project is in line with the City's General Plan, Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan, and the
Waterfront Land Use Plan. This is good for the City, its residents and its businesses.

We thank you in advance for your anticipated support of the Teatro Zinzanni-Kenwood Investments Hotel and Theater
Project. If you have any questions regarding the Chamber’s support, please feel free to contact me directly.

Sincerely,

L/

Jim Lazarus
SVP Public Policy
San Francisco Chamber of Commerce

cc: Clerk of the Board, to be distributed to all Supervisors





DIRECTORS
STEPHEN V. GIACALONE
THOMAS A, FOGLE

THOMAS P. O’CONNOR JR.
PRESIDENT

DANIEL A. GRACIA
VICE PRESIDENT
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SECRETARY
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TREASURER

SAN FRANCISCO FIRE FIGHTERS
- Local 798 -
1139 MISSION STREET, SAN FRANCISCO. CA 941031514
TELEPHONE (415) 621-7103 = FAX (415} 6211578
WWV/.SFFDLOCAL798.0RG

November 12,2018

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Attn: Laura Lynch

RE: CaseNo. 2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324
Support for Project

I am writing on behalf of the San Francisco Fire Firefighters Union, Local 798 which
represents over 1500 workers in San Francisco, to inform you that we strongly
support of the Planning Department’s Mitigated Negative Declaration for the
Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project at Seawall Lots 323 and 324.

First, the developer of this project, Kenwood Investments, worked closely with our
Union to determine what the Fire Department’s needs where as they pertain to the
Project. Towards that end, the Project has been designed to improve fire
department access from Davis Street through the undeveloped surface parking lot,
and to The Embarcadero, which makes a major improvement for life safety and fire
fighting purpose, as part of the Project’s overall site improvement and public park
construction plans. As the Battalion Chief for the area surrounding the project, l am
particularly pleased with this outcome.

Second, the Project adheres to all of the dictates of the City’s Planning Code,
including the 40-foot height limit, the requirements of the City's Article 10, and
compliance with development in the Northeastern Historic Waterfront District.

Thirdly, this Project has earned the support of our brothers and sisters in organized
labor. Accordingly, we are proud to stand with the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and
theater project as the project moves through the entitlement process. Towards that
end, we strongly support the Planning Department’s decision to publish a Mitigated
Negative Declaration for the project.

Affilinted with INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATHON OF FIRE FIGHTERS, AFL-CIO, CLC

it





Sincerely,
2

Tom O'Connor






Travel

Via Email: laura.lynch@sfeov.org

November 9, 2018

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

I am writing on behalf of the San Francisco Travel Association, which represents over 1,300 Bay
Area businesses partners involved in the travel and hospitality sectors. San Francisco welcomes
over 25 million visitors per year who spend over $9 billion during their visit. Our organization is
proud to lead the travel industry in San Francisco, the city’s largest and most important economic

driver.

I am writing today to express our strong support for the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater
project at Seawall Lots 323 and 324. This project will provide more lodging, cultural and
entertainment options for visitors to enjoy, and will provide good jobs for our community.

Our support for the project is due not only to the commitments made and kept by the project
sponsor during the review period, but also by the fact that this project has complied with the 40-
foot height limit on the site and the requirements of all Planning Code provisions. This project
will be a true treasure in the City and County of San Francisco and we are thrilled about the
thoughtful planning that the project sponsor has exhibited.

We urge you to move the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project forward as quickly as
possible. Thank you.

Sincerely,
%ﬂ%mzf——

Joe D’ Alessandro
President and CEO

Ben Francisco Travel Association
Cne Front Street, Suite 2900 » San Francisco, CA 94111 « cfaveloom





INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SHEET METAL, AIR, RAIL AND TRANSPORTATION WORKERS

SHEET METAL WORKERS' LocaL Union No. 104
WEST BAY DISPATCH OFFICE

PuonE (415) 621-2930 Eax (415) 621-2554

1939 MARKET STREET, SUITE A, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

November 8, 2018

Via Email: lauralynch@sfgov.org

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Attn: Laura Lynch

RE:  Case No.2015-016326ENV
Kenwood-Zinzanni Hotel and Theater Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324
Support for Project

1 am writing on behalf of the Sheet Metal Workers’ Local Union No, 104. Our Union is a proud
member of the San Francisco community and we take our responsibilities to our community

seriously.

It is in that regard that we are writing to inform you of our strong support for the Kenwood-
Zinzanni hotel and theater project at Seawall Lots 323 and 324. The developer of this project
contacted our Union early in the process and agreed to construct the project with union labor. This
strong commitment for our community, and the working men and women of our City should be
acknowledged and rewarded by the City and its decision makers. We were proud to stand with the
Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project when it came before the Board of Supervisors in July
2016 and the project was endorsed by a vote of 11-0, and we will do so again as this project moves
through the entitlement process. Towards that end, we strongly support the Planning
Department’s decision to publish a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project.

Our support for the project is due not only to the commitments made and kept by the Project
Sponsor regarding employment and worker’s rights, but also by the fact that this project has
consistently and without waiver complied with the 40 foot height limit on the site and the
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

(Lol g G K

Danny Campbell

Business Representative
DC:ir opelu29
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Stewart Morton
1730 Kearny Street
San Francisco, CA 94133
mr.stewartmorton@gmail.com

October 31, 2018

Re: Project Name: Teatro Zinzanni-Kenwood Investments Hotel & Theater Project

Location: Seawall Lots 323 and 324
Project Sponsor: TZK Broadway, LLC

LETTER OF SUPPORT

Dear Members:

| am writing to inform you that | am in support of the Teatro Zinzanni-Kenwood
Investments hotel and theater project located at Seawall Lots 323 and 324 and | am
urging you to support the project when it comes before you for approval.

I have reviewed the project several times as a member of NEWAG, The Telegraph
Hill Dwellers, and in private discussions with the project sponsor and have found
the developer to be most responsive to the communities concerns.

The project has complied with the 40-foot height limit for the site, is designed to be
consistent with the City’s Article 10 and the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for
Construction in historic districts, has implemented many of the suggestions offered
by the community, including the use of red-brick for its exterior veneer consistent
with other buildings in the area, and will construct a new, approximate 14,000 sq. ft.

public park on the site.

In conclusion, I want to let you know that 1 am in support of the Teatro Zinzanni-
Kenwood Investments hotel and theater project, and urge you to support the project
when it comes before you for approval. Thank you for your consideration of this

letter.,

Sincerely,

L%TWL W,(}\r];‘yw?

Stewart Morton

Member, NEWAG

Member, SF Port, Waterfront Plan Working Group
Past Board Member, Telegraph Hill Dwellers
Founding Board Member, San Francisco Heritage






Y TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 856

453 San Mateo Avenue ® San Bruno e California 94066
Telephone: (650) 635-0111 & Fax Number (650) 635-1632 e 1(800) 758-TEAM (8326)

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

I am writing on behalf of the Teamsters International Union, Local 856 which represents over 1,000
workers in San Francisco, including hotel front desk personnel at union hotels throughout the Bay Area.

We are writing to inform you that Teamsters International Union, Local 856 strongly supports the
Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project at Seawall Lots 323 and 324. The developer of this project,
Kenwood Investments, contacted our Union early in the process and entered into a Card Check
Neutrality Agreement (CCNA) that meets all of the Teamsters International Union, Local 856 conditions
for operations of the new hotel and theater as they pertain to front desk personnel. We also want to
acknowledge approvingly that our CCNA is a companion CCNA to the one that the developer signed with

H.E.R.E., Local 2, a measure that we applaud.

We were proud to stand with the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project when it came before the
Board of Supervisors in July 2016 when the project was endorsed by a vote of 11-0, and we will do so
again as this project moves through the entitlement process. Towards that end, we strongly support the
Planning Department’s decision to publish a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project.

We also want to note for the record that this project, in addition to entering into the CCNA, has also
maintained the 40-foot height limit on the site and has been designed to meet the requirements of the
Planning Code provisions concerning development in historic districts. Projects that can do all of those
things should be approved to keep our City strong. Accordingly, Teamsters Local 856 urges you to move
the Kenwood-Zinzanni hotel and theater project forward as quickly as possible.

Sincerely,
%OM / g%ﬁn.wé ‘:va\

Mike Lagomarsino
President
ML/lh





- BROADWAY

COMMUNITY BENEFIT DISTRICT

RE: Support for Teatro/Kenwood Hotel Project
Seawall Lots 323 & 324/Broadway and The Embarcadero

Case No. 2015-016326 ENV

On behalf of the Top of Broadway CBD, an organization that represents over 100 businesses in North
Beach, | am writing to express our strong support for the Teatro Zinzanni/Kenwood Investments hotel
and theater and to urge support for the Planning Department’s decision that the Project qualifies for a

Mitigated Negative Declaration.

The Top of Broadway CBD and | personally have participated in numerous meetings with the Project
Sponsor and we are fully aware of the hotel and theater project’s uses, design and scope, and we
support the project wholeheartedly.

The hotel and theater project will enhance the Arts and cultural aspects of our city, create a gateway to
North Beach and Chinatown and create a new public park in our neighborhood, and it is designed to fit
into the historic district, will be sustainably built, and respects the 40-X height and bulk limit for the site.
This last feature is truly important for our neighborhood as we have fought hard to maintain the 40 foot
height limit and this project should be congratulated, and supported, for its adherence to that height
limit.

Additionally, with the approval of the hote! and theater project, San Francisco will receive millions of
dollars in General Fund fees, TOT doliars and Port lease revenues that will help the Port with its ongoing
infrastructure and seawall needs; create a new performing arts and arts institution that will further the
City's artist communities and the entertainment aspects of North Beach; employ hundreds of Union
workers both during construction and during operation of the hotel; construct a new public park and a
sustainable new building that will fit into the historic district ; and repurpose an under-utilized parking
lot that has been slated for development for years into a vibrant new public serving use along the
waterfront.

Top of Broadway strongly believes that the Zinzanni/Kenwood hotel and theater project should be
approved and thank you for your anticipated support for the Kenwood/Zinzanni hotel and theater

project.

Sincerely,

Jo¢Larouba

Vice President

Top of Broadway CBD

250 Celumbus Avenue, Suite 207 San Francisco, CA 94133 ¢« www.topofbroadwaycbd.com










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

Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 3:18:32 PM

Attachments: 2018-016242ENV-CEOQA Checklist and PTR Form.pdf

2017-009203ENV-CEQA Checklist (ID 1069619).pdf

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

Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 2:22 PM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: Categorical Exemptions

Hello,
Please forward the attached Categorical Exemptions to the HPC commissioners.

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

395 COLLINGWOOD ST 2752022C

Case No. Permit No.

2018-016242ENV 201810304503

Il Addition/ [[] pemoilition (requires HRE for ] New
Alteration Category B Building) Construction

Project description for Planning Department approval.

Remodel and addition to (E) single family dwelling; excavate new basement level; Create (N) foyer and
mudroom and relocate main entry to first flr; Add (N) elevator and interior staircase; Create 2 new bedrooms on
2nd fIr. And relocate living, dining, and kitchen to 3rd flr.; Expand 3rd fIr. toward rear yard and raise ceiling.

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

Archeo review complete, no effect
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

b. Other (specify): Per PTR form singed on 2/16/2019

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
If Discretionary Review before the Planning Commission is requested, 02/19/2019

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
395 COLLINGWOOD ST 2752/022C
Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.
2018-016242PRJ 201810304503
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
Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion |02/01/2019 San Francisco,
CA 94103-2479
PROJECT INFORMATION: Reception:
Planner: Address: 415.558.6378
Elizabeth Munyan 395 Collingwood Street Fax:
415.558.6409
Block/Lot: Cross Streets:
2752/022C 21st Street, Collingwood Street, and Castro Street Planning
Information:
CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.: 415.558.6377
B N/A 2018-016242ENV
PURPOSE OF REVIEW: PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
(e CEQA (" Article 10/11 (" Preliminary/PIC (e Alteration (— Demo/New Construction

DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: | 1/8/2019

PROJECT ISSUES:

Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource?

[] | If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?

Additional Notes:

Submitted: Historic Resource Evaluation Part One Prepared by Tim Kelley Consulting
(June 2018)

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

According to the Historic Resource Evaluation Part One prepared by Tim Kelley Consulting
(dated June 2018), the subject property at 395 Collingwood Street contains a wood-frame
building with two volumes: a large, two story over basement section that is capped with a
cross gable roof that fronts a smaller one-story volume that is capped with a flat roof. The
subject property is a single-family vernacular craftsman clad in stucco. In 1925, the subject
property was built by architect William W. Harper for Frederick C. Haun, a concrete
contractor. The subject property remained in the ownership of the Huan family until 1987,
though numerous tenants occupied the space.

Exterior alterations to the subject property include construction of a masonry and stucco
wall (2001), reroofing (2008), construction of new deck at third floor (2009), replacement of
16 windows (2013) and replacement of 14 additional windows (2014).

No known historic events took place at this property and the building’s construction did
not make any significant contribution to the development of the neighborhood (Criterion
1). None of the owners or occupants have been identified as important to history (Criterion
2). The building does not embody distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region or
method of construction, represent the work of a master, or possess high artistic values,
thus is not eligible for individual listing under Criterion 3 (Architecture). Based upon a
review of information in the Department records, the subject building is not significant
under Criterion 4 since this significance criterion typically applies to rare construction
types when involving the built environment. The subject building is not an example of a
rare construction type. Assessment of archaeological sensitivity is undertaken through the
Department’s Preliminary Archaeological Review process and is outside the scope of this
review.

The subject property is not located adjacent to any known historic resources (Category A
properties) or within the boundaries of any identified historic district. The properties on
the subject block were constructed between 1910 and 1960 and are not a part of a
cohesive development pattern. The subject block is not unified in a way that would
contribute to a potential district.

Therefore, the subject building is not eligible for listing in the California Register under any
criteria individually or as a part of a historic district.

Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: |Date:

Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice

AI I I50n K' Va nd erSI |Ce Date: 2019.02.16 06:50:24 -08'00'
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395 Collingwood Street
Photo Source: Google Street View






SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination
PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Address Block/Lot(s)

2880 VALLEJO ST 0955016

Case No. Permit No.

2017-009203ENV 201707111550

Il Addition/ [[] pemoilition (requires HRE for ] New
Alteration Category B Building) Construction

Project description for Planning Department approval.

The project site is located on the north side of Vallejo Street between Baker and Broderick streets in the Pacific
Heights neighborhood. The project site is occupied by a 29-foot-tall, three-story, single-family residence
(constructed in 1902) approximately 3,629 square feet in size with no off-street parking spaces. The project
sponsor proposes interior renovations and a rear addition including a new dormer and roof at the rear of the
building. The proposed project would add approximately 3,999 square feet to the existing building as well as a
877-square-foot garage for two off-street parking spaces. The project would add a 405-square-foot deck at the
ground floor and a 504-square-foot deck at the third floor. The finished building would be a 29-foot-tall,
three-story, approximately 8,505-gross-square-foot, single-family residence with two off-street parking spaces.
No changes are proposed to the front fagcade or the overall height of the building. During the approximately
12-month construction period, the proposed project would require excavation of up to 8 feet below ground
surface resulting in approximately 130 cubic yards of excavation. The proposed improvements would be
supported by drilled piers; impact pile driving is neither proposed nor required.

STEP 1: EXEMPTION CLASS

*Note: If neither class applies, an Environmental Evaluation Application is required.*

- Class 1 - Existing Facilities. Interior and exterior alterations; additions under 10,000 sq. ft.

|:| Class 3 - New Construction. Up to three new single-family residences or six dwelling units in one
building; commercial/office structures; utility extensions; change of use under 10,000 sq. ft. if principally
permitted or with a CU.

|:| Class 32 - In-Fill Development. New Construction of seven or more units or additions greater than
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

Comments and Planner Signature (optional):

A geotechnical report was prepared for the proposed project. The project site is generally underlain by up to 5
feet below ground surface (bgs) of loose to medium dense sandy fill underlain by very loose to medium dense
sand and sand with silt to the depths of 10 to 35 feet bgs. The depth of bedrock is anticipated to range between
30 to 45 feet bgs. The geotechnical report concluded that the proposed project may be supported by drilled piers
that extend approximately 20 to 45 feet bgs.

The proposed project is required to conform to the local building code, which ensures the safety of all new
construction in the City.
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

mO0O0|0Oom

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

- Project involves less than four work descriptions. GO TO STEP 6.

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

OO ||| | (O

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

- Subject building was previously determined not to be a resource (see Case No. 2012.0228E) but is
located within California Register-eligible Cow Hollow First Bay Tradition Historic District and the
California Register-eligible Pacific Heights Historic District. Proposed scope will not alter the primary
(front) elevation. Changes to side and other elevations visible from the street are compatible with the

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

Preservation Planner Signature: Michelle A Taylor

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
Building Permit Don Lewis
If Discretionary Review before the Planning Commission is requested, 02/14/2019
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
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CEQA Impacts Continued

A geotechnical report was prepared for the proposed project. The project site is generally underlain by up to 5
feet below ground surface (bgs) of loose to medium dense sandy fill underlain by very loose to medium dense
sand and sand with silt to the depths of 10 to 35 feet bgs. The depth of bedrock is anticipated to range between
30 to 45 feet bgs. The geotechnical report concluded that the proposed project may be supported by drilled
piers that extend approximately 20 to 45 feet bgs.

The proposed project is required to conform to the local building code, which ensures the safety of all new
construction in the City. The building department will review the project-specific geotechnical report during its
review of the building permit for the project. In addition, the building department may require additional
site-specific soils report(s) through the building permit application process, as needed. The building
department’s requirement for a geotechnical report and review of the building permit application pursuant to the
building department’s implementation of the Building Code, local implementing procedures, and state laws,
regulations and guidelines would ensure that the proposed project would have no significant impacts related to
soils, seismic or other geological hazards.

Planning staff archeologists determined that the project would have no effect on archeological resources.

The department of public health has determined that the project site does not contain potential or known soil
and/or groundwater contamination and therefore have granted a waiver from the requirements of the San
Francisco Health Code Article 22A.

The subject building was previously determined not to be a resource (see Case No. 2012.0228E) but is located
within California Register-eligible Cow Hollow First Bay Tradition Historic District and the California
Register-eligible Pacific Heights Historic District. The proposed scope would not alter the primary (front)
elevation. Changes to side and other elevations visible from the street are compatible with the district and
include the addition of a new dormer, replacement or addition of new wood shingle siding to match, and
installation of compatible new wood windows. Rear horizontal addition is not visible from right of way. Scope of
work does not materially harm the California Register-eligible historic districts.
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
2880 VALLEJO ST 0955/016
Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.
2017-009203PRJ 201707111550
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLAN FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING
BOND FOR 2019 ELECTION

Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 2:13:46 PM

Attachments: 2.25.19 Affordable Housing Bond.pdf

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

Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 1:54 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLAN FOR AFFORDABLE
HOUSING BOND FOR 2019 ELECTION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, February 25, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLAN FOR

AFFORDABLE HOUSING BOND FOR 2019 ELECTION

With today’s approval by Capital Planning Committee of the $300 million Affordable Housing

Bond for November 2019, Mayor will convene a working group of housing stakeholders to
help craft the bond

San Francisco, CA — Today the Capital Planning Committee (CPC) approved the proposed
Capital Plan for Fiscal Years (FYs) 2020-2029, which includes a $300 million Affordable
Housing Bond that was recently announced by Mayor London N. Breed. Under the proposed
Capital Plan, the Bond is proposed for the November 2019 election. The Capital Plan now
goes to the Board of Supervisors for approval.

Following the vote by the CPC, Mayor Breed announced that she is convening an Affordable
Housing Bond Working Group, which will include elected officials, housing experts,
affordable housing developers, tenant advocates, property owners, labor leaders, community
leaders and others, to help craft the expenditure plan for the bond.
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
Bond for November 2019, Mayor will convene a working group of housing stakeholders to help
craft the bond

San Francisco, CA — Today the Capital Planning Committee (CPC) approved the proposed
Capital Plan for Fiscal Years (FYs) 2020-2029, which includes a $300 million Affordable
Housing Bond that was recently announced by Mayor London N. Breed. Under the proposed
Capital Plan, the Bond is proposed for the November 2019 election. The Capital Plan now goes
to the Board of Supervisors for approval.

Following the vote by the CPC, Mayor Breed announced that she is convening an Affordable
Housing Bond Working Group, which will include elected officials, housing experts, affordable
housing developers, tenant advocates, property owners, labor leaders, community leaders and
others, to help craft the expenditure plan for the bond.

“For too many San Franciscans, it is simply too expensive to live here. This housing bond will
allow us to continue expanding our affordable housing stock so that our low- and middle-income
communities can remain in our City,” said Mayor Breed. “Over the coming months I will be
bringing stakeholders to the table so that we can move forward together on this important
measure. We need to continue to work to provide funding for affordable housing while also
working to break down the barriers that block housing from being built.”

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

In January, Mayor Breed announced the inclusion of the Affordable Housing Bond in the Capital
Plan. The previous draft of the plan had the Affordable Housing Bond slated for the March 2020
election, with the Earthquake Safety and Emergency Response Bond slated for the November
2019 election. At the time of the announcement, Mayor Breed said conversations were still under
way as to which Bond would be placed on the ballot for which election. The Capital Plan
approved today places the Affordable Housing Bond for the November 2019 election and the
ESER Bond for the March 2020 election.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

The proposed Capital Plan will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors on March 5" by Mayor
Breed. The Affordable Housing Bond will be introduced in the coming months.

HiHt
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“For too many San Franciscans, it is simply too expensive to live here. This housing bond will
allow us to continue expanding our affordable housing stock so that our low- and middle-
income communities can remain in our City,” said Mayor Breed. “Over the coming months I
will be bringing stakeholders to the table so that we can move forward together on this
important measure. We need to continue to work to provide funding for affordable housing
while also working to break down the barriers that block housing from being built.”

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

In January, Mayor Breed announced the inclusion of the Affordable Housing Bond in the
Capital Plan. The previous draft of the plan had the Affordable Housing Bond slated for the
March 2020 election, with the Earthquake Safety and Emergency Response Bond slated for
the November 2019 election. At the time of the announcement, Mayor Breed said
conversations were still under way as to which Bond would be placed on the ballot for which
election. The Capital Plan approved today places the Affordable Housing Bond for the
November 2019 election and the ESER Bond for the March 2020 election.

The proposed Capital Plan will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors on March 5™ by
Mayor Breed. The Affordable Housing Bond will be introduced in the coming months.
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 10:20:32 AM

Attachments: 2.22.19 Public Defender Jeff Adachi.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 9:35 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF
ADACHI

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, February 22, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** STATEMENT **%*
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF PUBLIC
DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI

San Francisco — Mayor London N. Breed issued the following statement regarding the
passing of San Francisco Public Defender Jeff Adachi, who died tonight at the age of 59.

"I am saddened to announce that San Francisco Public Defender Jeff Adachi passed away
tonight. My heart goes out to his wife, Matsuko, his daughter, Lauren, and all his friends and
family.

As one of the few elected public defenders in our country, Jeff always stood up for those who
didn't have a voice, have been ignored and overlooked, and who needed a real champion. He
was committed not only to the fight for justice in the courtroom, but he was also a relentless
advocate for criminal justice reform. Jeff lead the way on progressive policy reforms,
including reducing recidivism, ending cash bail, and standing up for undocumented and
unrepresented children.
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR LoONDON N. BREED

SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, February 22, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
wxk STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF PUBLIC
DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI

San Francisco — Mayor London N. Breed issued the following statement regarding the passing
of San Francisco Public Defender Jeff Adachi, who died tonight at the age of 59.

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
didn't have a voice, have been ignored and overlooked, and who needed a real champion. He was
committed not only to the fight for justice in the courtroom, but he was also a relentless advocate
for criminal justice reform. Jeff lead the way on progressive policy reforms, including reducing
recidivism, ending cash bail, and standing up for undocumented and unrepresented children.

San Francisco has lost a dedicated public servant, and our communities have lost a champion.”

HitH
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San Francisco has lost a dedicated public servant, and our communities have lost a champion."
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

Subject: FW: Mayor London N. Breed Lunar New Year Celebration
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 10:19:29 AM
Attachments: LNY Chinese Invite.png

LNY English Invite.png

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

Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 4:58 PM

Subject: FW: Mayor London N. Breed Lunar New Year Celebration
Good afternoon-

| wanted to pass on another exciting invitation.

Mavyor Breed will be hosting her first Lunar New Year celebration. We would love for all
commissioners and commissioner secretaries to attend if you are able.

Regards,

Mawuli Tugbenyoh %t & %%

Senior Advisor

Office of Mayor London N. Breed
415.554.6298 | mawuli.tugbenyoh@sfgov.org

From: MONS (MYR)
Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 4:44 PM
Subject: Mayor London N. Breed Lunar New Year Celebration

You are cordially invited to Mayor London N. Breed’s Lunar New Year celebration to
welcome the Year of the Boar with our community and City leaders on Monday, February 25,
2019.
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Mayor London N. Breed
together with
Assessor-Recorder Carmen Chu
Board of Supervisors President Norman Yee
Supervisor Sandra Lee Fewer
Supervisor Gordon Mar

cordially request the pleasure of your company
at the celebration of

Lunar New Year 2019

Year of the Boar

Monday, February 25, 2019
5:30pm - 7:30pm
Doors open at 5:00pm, Program starting at 5:30pm
Seating is Limited

City Hall Rotunda
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102

RSVP: please email mons@sfgov.org or call (415,





Doors open at 5:00PM, program starts at 5:30PM.
Please find attached updated invitations in both English and Chinese.

RVSP by:

e  Email: mons@sfgov.org
e  Phone: 415-554-5977

For further information, please contact Judy Lee or Mason Lee.
Sincerely,

Mayor’s Office of Neighborhood Services
Office of Mayor London N. Breed

City and County of San Francisco

(415) 554-5977


mailto:mons@sfgov.org
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mailto:Mason.lee@sfgov.org

From: Son, Chanbory (CPC

To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Invitation to screening of Political Animals with Mayor Breed and Carol Midgen
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 9:18:04 AM

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
Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 12:29 PM
Subject: Invitation to screening of Political Animals with Mayor Breed and Carol Midgen

Commission | would appreciate you sharing this invitation with your Commissioners.
Good afternoon Commissioners-

| hope your schedule might permit you to attend a special screening of the film Political Animals with
Former State Senator Carole Migden and Mayor London Breed.

Details are as follows:

Thursday, February 28, 2019
4:30 PM - 6:30 PM

City Hall, Room 201

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102

To view the trailer for Political Animals, please click the following link:

http://www.politicalanimalsdoc.com/. Please RSVP to abigail.fay@sfgov.org

Regards,

Mawuli Tugbenyoh #t 7 4%

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPLETION OF HUMMINGBIRD PLACE
EXPANSION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE STABILIZATION BEDS

Date: Friday, February 22, 2019 11:27:25 AM

Attachments: 2.21.19 Hummingbird Place.pdf

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

Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2019 2:52 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPLETION OF
HUMMINGBIRD PLACE EXPANSION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE STABILIZATION
BEDS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, February 21, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPLETION OF
HUMMINGBIRD PLACE EXPANSION OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE STABILIZATION BEDS

Fourteen new beds will help serve individuals suffering from addiction and mental illness and
advance Mayor Breed’s goal of opening 100 new beds this year

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that 14 new beds are now
operational at Hummingbird Place, a Navigation Center specifically tailored to serve clients
with behavioral health and substance use issues.

Hummingbird Place can now serve up to 29 overnight clients at a time, in addition to daytime
clients. As a result of the recent Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) windfall
appropriation, Mayor Breed now expects to be able to open an additional 86 new substance
use and behavioral health stabilization beds, bringing the total to 100 new beds this year.

“For those who are severely ill on our streets, these beds serve as a chance to stabilize and
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
operational at Hummingbird Place, a Navigation Center specifically tailored to serve clients with
behavioral health and substance use issues.

Hummingbird Place can now serve up to 29 overnight clients at a time, in addition to daytime
clients. As a result of the recent Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) windfall
appropriation, Mayor Breed now expects to be able to open an additional 86 new substance use
and behavioral health stabilization beds, bringing the total to 100 new beds this year.

“For those who are severely ill on our streets, these beds serve as a chance to stabilize and decide
on their next steps, including treatment,” said Mayor Breed. “Helping people suffering from
severe mental illness and addiction is not only good for those individuals, it is good for the City.
We can’t allow these people to continue cycling between the emergency room and the criminal
justice system.”

Hummingbird Place works closely with adults facing homelessness, mental health and substance
use challenges and introduces clients to a multi-disciplinary system of care. In October, Mayor
Breed announced the expansion at Hummingbird Place and directed the San Francisco
Department of Public Health (SFDPH) to expedite and expand a plan to add mental health beds
at Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital.

“We are delighted to expand Hummingbird Place, which is helping the City’s most vulnerable
residents break out of the cycle of alternating from the streets, to jail to hospitalization,” said Dr.
Grant Colfax, San Francisco Director of Public Health. “Hummingbird Place provides a safe
environment for clients to pause, away from the stresses of life on the street and get linked to
supportive services to improve their living situation, health and wellbeing.”

Mayor Breed supported funding in the budget to expand Hummingbird Place, which is located
on the campus of Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital. The 24-hour facility is managed
by PRC, a San Francisco-based nonprofit that helps people affected by HIV/AIDS, substance use
or mental health issues better realize the opportunities available to them by providing integrated

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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SAN FRANCISCO

legal, social and health services that address the broad range of social risk factors that impact
wellness and limit potential.

“Hummingbird Place offers a critical, short-term overnight model that facilitates patient
stabilization, provides linkage to social services and offers clients an opportunity for referral to
longer-term treatment and recovery,” said Brett Andrews, CEO of PRC. “The work we’re doing
makes a real, tangible impact across San Francisco to help end homelessness and provide other
vital services to these local residents.”

HiHt
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decide on their next steps, including treatment,” said Mayor Breed. “Helping people suffering
from severe mental illness and addiction is not only good for those individuals, it is good for
the City. We can’t allow these people to continue cycling between the emergency room and
the criminal justice system.”

Hummingbird Place works closely with adults facing homelessness, mental health and
substance use challenges and introduces clients to a multi-disciplinary system of care. In
October, Mayor Breed announced the expansion at Hummingbird Place and directed the San
Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH) to expedite and expand a plan to add mental
health beds at Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital.

“We are delighted to expand Hummingbird Place, which is helping the City’s most vulnerable
residents break out of the cycle of alternating from the streets, to jail to hospitalization,” said
Dr. Grant Colfax, San Francisco Director of Public Health. “Hummingbird Place provides a
safe environment for clients to pause, away from the stresses of life on the street and get
linked to supportive services to improve their living situation, health and wellbeing.”

Mayor Breed supported funding in the budget to expand Hummingbird Place, which is located
on the campus of Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital. The 24-hour facility is managed
by PRC, a San Francisco-based nonprofit that helps people affected by HIV/AIDS, substance
use or mental health issues better realize the opportunities available to them by providing
integrated legal, social and health services that address the broad range of social risk factors
that impact wellness and limit potential.

“Hummingbird Place offers a critical, short-term overnight model that facilitates patient
stabilization, provides linkage to social services and offers clients an opportunity for referral to
longer-term treatment and recovery,” said Brett Andrews, CEO of PRC. “The work we’re
doing makes a real, tangible impact across San Francisco to help end homelessness and
provide other vital services to these local residents.”
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